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With the convergence of stakeholder contributions we 
remained boldly resilient in the face of challenges across 
our domestic and cross border operations. 

During the year that passed, we witnessed a dramatic 
turnaround in our profitability as well as in the overall 
company outlook. We successfully stayed ahead of the 
curve with revived optimism and reinforced strategic 
efforts, supported by significant projects that were 
cemented during the year under discussion.

We are now more focused than ever before in driving our 
business by capturing the optimistic growth potential of 
the construction and infrastructure related industries - 
turning adversity into triumph.
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About Sierra Cables PLC

About the Company 
Sierra Cables PLC was established 
in 1999, and has entrenched its 
credentials in Sri Lanka and overseas 
as a comprehensive wire and cable 
supplier for residential, commercial 
and industrial sectors and has gained 
a strong reputation for producing 
cables using only the most pure of 
raw materials sourced from leading 
global suppliers. Its manufacturing 
operations are conducted at its primary 
production facility located in Kaduwela 
- a substantially capacious facility 
designed to manufacture products that 
meet domestic and global standards 
of quality, product durability and safety. 
Its parent company, Sierra Holdings 
Limited, is a diversified conglomerate in 
Sri Lanka.

Subsidiaries & Associates 
Sierra Cables PLC’s subsidiaries are 
Sierra Industries (Private) Limited 
and Sierra Cables East Africa 
Limited in Kenya, which diversified 
to manufacturing pipes and cables, 
respectively. 

Its two associate companies, Tea Leaf 
Resort (Private) Limited involved in 
leisure and the T & G Lanka (Private) 
Limited is manufacturing cables and 
harness assemblies. Meanwhile, Cables 
PTE Limited in Fiji is a joint venture 
of Sierra Cables PLC which also 
manufactures cables.

Overseas Presence 
The company’s maiden international 
manufacturing plant was set up in 2015 
in Nairobi, Kenya. Sierra Cables East 
Africa Limited mainly focuses on the 
emerging Eastern African region. 

In 2016, the company set up a plant in 
Fiji Islands, Cables PTE Limited, a joint 
venture with two Fijian companies which 
accessed the Pacific Islands, Australia, 
New Zealand markets.

Product Portfolio 
Its products range includes Domestic 
cables, Industrial cables (Armoured 
and Unarmoured), Aerial Bundled 
Conductors (ABC), Overhead 
Conductors, Telecommunication 
cables and Low Smoke Halogen Free 

(LSHF) and Fire Resistant (FR) cables. 
In 2018, the company embarked 
on manufacturing Fire Resistant 
Cables, obtaining certifications from 
laboratories in Singapore (TUV), India 
(Central Power Reacher Institute) and 
France (LCIE Testing Laboratory). 

Today, Sierra Cables PLC manufactures, 
supplies, and exports a comprehensive 
range of copper and aluminum cable 
products for the power sectors in 
Sri Lanka and overseas. In 2019, 
Sierra Cables PLC commenced the 
manufacturing of solar cables in-house, 
attaining SLS Certification (SLS 1542). 
It is the first manufacturing company 
to obtain SLS certification in Sri Lanka 
for solar cables. With our commitment 
to research and development, 
logistical capabilities, engineering 
and manufacturing operations, we 
manufacture the broadest product 
range in the industry.

World-Class Quality Standards 
The company’s product quality and 
excellence has been recognised with a 
range of local and international quality 
certifications including ISO, Sri Lanka 
Standards (SLS) and other prestigious 
global certifications. All products are 
made with the highest quality raw 
material and in compliance with industry 
standards. 

Recent Landmark Projects 
Some of the prestigious projects Sierra 
Cables PLC has supplied to in the recent 
past are Keells Waterfront, Rigid Tyre 
Factory in Horana, Inter-Continental hotel, 
Brandix – Ratmalana, Ceylon Beverages 
Can Pvt Limited, Queensbury Hospital – 
Galle, Havelock City – Phase v, Imperial 
Builders Destiny Project, China Harbour 
Engineering Limited and Shangri-la Hotel 
- Hambantota.

Awards and Accolades 
In a recent accolade, Sierra Cables 
won a Silver award at the CA Sri Lanka 
55th Annual Report Awards in 2019, 
under the category of ‘Manufacturing 
companies with a turnover up to 5 Bn’. 
In the past too, the company has been 
bestowed with prestigious awards for 
excellence and best practices in its 
business.

FijiFiji

KenyaKenya ColomboColombo
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Vision

Being the bridge 
in energising the 
community 

Values

As a responsible and 
ethical corporate citizen, 
Sierra Cables PLC conduct  
its affairs based on a set of 
values. Every member of 
the Sierra Cables family is 
committed to follow them

Mission

Achieve a continuous growth 
to enhance the stakeholder 
value while offering a high 
quality product

Become a reputed 
organisation by promoting 
sustainable development

Uplifting the living standards of 
the Sierra Cables family

Strategic
Goals

Mnufacture Innovative Product 
Ranges and to be the pioneer 
in the cable industry

To extend footprint beyond 
Sri Lanka’s geographical 
boundaries

To reduce the environmental 
impact by reducing the carbon 
footprint year on year

Corporate 
Values

Our 
Ethics

We are proud of our culture of teamwork 
and cooperation which inspires our team 
of high achievers. We engender this 
ethos through knowledge-sharing, an 
inclusive approach to decision-making, 
ample learning and development 
opportunities and two-way 
communication and feedback. 

A strictly implemented zero tolerance 
policy for discrimination based on 
religion, race, gender and ethnicity has 
given rise to a culture of equality and 
dignity for all.

Our uncompromising ethics dictate the 
principles that form, the bedrock on 
which our stakeholders perceive us:

• Transparency and accountability

• Legal and regulatory compliance 

• Honest and truthful dealings

Pursuit of Excellence: Every cable is 
manufactured to the highest quality 
standards 

Customer-centric: Add value to 
customer experience by fulfilling their 
requirements 

Innovation: Driving innovation 

Environmental stewardship: Operate 
responsibly to ensure minimal impact on 
environment 

Stakeholder engagement: Proactive 
and continuous engagement

Our 
Culture

Culture, Ethics & Corporate Values

Vision, Mission, Values & 
Strategic Goals



6 Sierra Cables PLC | Annual Report 2019/20

Our Journey - Milestones

Overseas Presence in Fiji
Accessed Paci�c Islands, Australia, New 

Zealand markets through a joint venture, 
Cables PTE Limited located in Fiji islands.

NCE Export Award
Won the Bronze Award for Industry 

Sector - Extra Large Category.

Highest Turnover 
Achieved Highest Group 
Turnover of Rs. 5.6 Bn.

Kenya Market Entry
Our very �rst Power Cable 
manufacturing plant outside Sri Lanka, 
Sierra Cables East Africa Limited, 
mainly focusing on emerging East 
African Region.

2011

2015

2016

2017

2018

2020

2019

20102009

2005

1999

CNCI Industrial Excellence 
Gold Award

Sierra Cables PLC won the 
Gold Award for excellence in 
industrial sector enhanced 

quality standards, 
productivity, employee 
bene�ts and relations.

Public Listing
Obtained the public listing on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) 
through an Initial Public Offering 
(IPO).

Quality Crown Award
Won BID Quality Crown Award 

based on QC100 Total Quality 
Management (TQM) model of the 
Company.

Incorporation
Sierra Cables Limited was 

incorporated as a legal 
entity in 1999.

Manufacturing FR Cables
Manufacturing of Fire Resistance Cable 
obtaining certi�cations from laboratories in 
Singapore, India and France.

In-house Solar Cable 
Manufacturing
Started manufacturing Solar cables in-house 
obtaining SLS 1542 Certi�cation.

Annual Report Silver Award
Won Silver Award for the First Integrated Annual 
Report at CA Sri Lanka 55th Annual Report 
Awards.  

Best Cable Manufacturer of the Year
UDC International Business Awards 2011 in 

recognition of innovation, product development 
and sustainability

Sierra Industries (Pvt) Ltd
Subsidiary of Sierra Cables PLC engaged in the 

manufacturing and distribution of uPVC pipes 
and �ttings.
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Our Second Integrated Report

In this Second Integrated Annual Report by Sierra Cables 
PLC for the year 2019/20, we have attempted to improve on 
expanding the scope and depth of information from the previous 
year to provide a meaningful insight into our performance for 
the year. We are proud to state that last year’s first integrated 
report was duly bestowed with a Silver Award under category of 
‘Manufacturing companies turnover up to 5 Bn’ at the 55th CA 
Sri Lanka Annual Report awards, which reflects the quality of the 
reporting journey we have embarked on. 

This report for the year ended 31st March 2020 sets out a 
balanced and concise assessment of our financial, social, and 
environmental performance and how we drive sustainable 
growth while balancing stakeholder interests. The company 
recorded an impressive financial performance in the period 
under consideration and this report elaborates on the pillars 
that contributed to this stellar performance based on a capital 
management reporting structure. Sierra Cables PLC is focused 
on harnessing innovation and technology to ensure the impact 
of its operations on social, economic and environmental pillars 
remains within accepted norms. This report offers stakeholders 
information relating to our strategy, value creation model, 
governance, performance and company prospects. 

Review of Operations 
The Integrated Report covers the operations of Sierra Cables 
PLC from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020 and contains 
information relating to financial and non-financial events 
of the Company. The report is structured in line with our 
business model and comprises a discussion on our strategy, 
performance, governance, and prospects, and how they help to 
create sustainable value.

Financial Statements and External Assurance 
The Financial Statements presented on pages 68 to 75 of 
this Report have been prepared in accordance with the Sri 
Lanka Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements 
of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 and Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange. The narrative on Corporate 
Governance (pages 45 to 52) complies with the Code of 
Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. In producing 
this report we drew further on concepts, principles, and 
guidance from The International Integrated Reporting Council 
(IIRC) Framework and The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), 
Standards.

External assurance on the Financial Statements and related 
notes has been provided by Messrs KPMG, Chartered 
Accountants. Their assurances on the Financial Statements are 
presented in pages 76 to 122 of this Report. 

Focus on Material Aspects 
This Report is prepared primarily for our current and potential 
investors; however, it also contains information relevant to 
other stakeholders including customers, employees, suppliers, 
shareholders; especially the communities which we operate in. 
In essence, this report focuses on the material aspects of our 
operations, which influence our processes of value creation for 
the benefit and service of our stakeholders. 

In this report, we have attempted to present information in a 
readable, meaningful and relevant form. In doing so, we have 
attempted to demonstrate the many factors that contribute 
to the value creation process and the inter-connectedness 
between capitals.
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Our Stakeholder Framework 
Our stakeholders are defined as individuals or groups that can be considerably impacted by our actions, products and services, 
and whose perceptions in turn can impact us. Through meaningful dialogue with our key stakeholder groups, we are able to better 
understand and address their needs and concerns while balancing the distribution of value created. As a responsible corporate 
citizen, we put value creation for our stakeholders at the heart of our strategy. We maintain a number of formal mechanisms to 
remain linked to our stakeholder groups.

Stakeholder

Purpose of 

Engagement 
Mode of 

Engagement 

Frequency of 

Engagement 

Stakeholder 

Concerns 

and Expectations

Company

 Response 

Shareholders  � To provide 
timely and 
relevant 
information 
to existing/ 
potential 
investors

 � Annual Report

 � Annual General 
Meeting (AGM)

 � Dividends

 � Annually as 
and when 
required

 �  Substantial dividends 
and appreciation of 
the share value

 � Payment of dividends

 � Higher return on 
investment

Customers  � Create product 
awareness

 � Print media, 
Social Media, 
Group Website, 
Exhibitions

 �  As necessary  � Innovative products  � Ongoing product 
development to suit 
changing customer 
needs 

 � To provide a 
high level of 
service

 � Distribution 
network 

 � On a regular 
basis

 � Improved service 
levels

 � A distribution network 
across the country to 
improve convenience 
and deliver better service 
to the customer

 � Solicit customer 
feedback 
(customer 
complaints/
suggestions)

 � Interactions at 
operational level

 � On a regular 
basis

 � Effective complaint 
handling and 
mitigating 
mechanism, obtaining 
information on 
products and 
services, customised 
products to suit 
customer needs

 � Efficient customer 
assistance at the Head 
Office level and at the 
distribution level

 � Maintain 
customer 
relations

 � Customer 
relationship 
management

 � On a regular 
basis

 � Access to 
information, company 
developing products 
and services aligned 
with customer 
requirements

 � Improving service 
delivery to the customer 
by incorporating 
customer suggestions 
into strategy 
development

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Contd.

Stakeholder

Purpose of 

Engagement 
Mode of 

Engagement 

Frequency of 

Engagement 

Stakeholder 

Concerns 

and Expectations

Company

 Response 

Employees  � Engaging in the 
value creation 
process

 � Regular 
meetings, 
discussions, 
workshops, 
Circulars, Emails, 
Performance 
review

 � As necessary 
as well as 
annually

 � Attractive 
remuneration

 � Ethical Work 
Practices  

 � A positive 
environment to 
maintain work-life 
balance

 � Career growth 
opportunities

 � Maintaining direct 
communication with 
the management 
(open door policy)

 � Salaries on par with 
industry rates

 � Creating a motivating 
work culture

 � Facilitating training 
and development 
opportunities

 � Motivating employees 
and soliciting employee 
feedback through 
discussion

 � Opening up two-way 
communication channels 
to offer opportunities for 
growth in performance 
and remuneration

 � Maintaining a clear 
channel to investigate, 
raise concerns and 
implement necessary 
actions

Suppliers  � For responsible 
procurement

 � Maintain 
long-term 
relationships and 
partnerships

 � Feedback 
evaluation

 � Registration of 
suppliers 

 � On a regular 
basis

 � Flexible payment and 
delivery terms

 � Rewards

 � Easy coordination and 
timely completion of 
documentation 

 � Enhance long term 
business partnership 
with suppliers and 
maintain international 
standards in material 
sourcing

Communities  � To strengthen 
relationships 
with 
communities

 � Participation 
in community 
activities

 � As and when 
required

 � Minimum adverse 
impact on the 
environment

 � Support for social 
causes

 � Employment 
opportunities

 � Compliance with 
environmental 
compliance measures

 � Enhance manufacturing 
system to reduce 
environmental impact

 � Create employment 
opportunities 
for neighbouring 
communities, 
internships, etc

Environment  � To ensure 
sustainable use 
of resources 
and minimum 
impact on the 
environment

 � Audits

 � Obtaining 
standardisation 
certificates

 � On a regular 
basis

 � Consciously lower 
the negative 
environmental 
impact of the 
Company operations, 
thereby ensuring 
environmental 
sustainability

 � Pursue environmental 
compliance strategies

 � Adhere to national and 
international quality 
standards

 � Prudent use of raw 
material, energy and 
natural resources to 
minimise wastage
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Material Aspects Relevant to Sierra Cables PLC

No. Aspect/Material Topic
Material Matters of Concern to  

Sierra Cables
Significance to 
Sierra Cables To Stakeholders

Economic/ Financial
01 Economic Performance Financial growth under current market conditions and 

earning profitability
H H

02 Financial Transparency Maintaining Audited accounts, Financial Statements, 
Budget Preparation

H H

03 Tax Contribution Total amount of tax paid to the government H M

04 Reporting Disclosing Company’s financial status to management, 
investors and the government / All stakeholders

H H

05 Market Presence Strengthening market presence and increase market 
share (penetrate into domestic market)

H H

06 Indirect Economic  
Impacts

Investment on infrastructure M M

Environmental

07 Materials Purchasing high quality raw material H H

08 Energy Efficient energy consumption H M

09 Water Minimise water wastage and conserve water H M

10 Bio-diversity Impact on the Bio diversity M L

11 Emissions Impact of emissions on the environment M L

12 Effluents and Waste Construct proper waste disposal systems, recycling 
wastage 

H H

13 Environmental  
Compliance

Adherence to environmental laws, regulations, 
standards and other requirements 

H H

14 Eco-efficiency of 
operations

Efficient use of resources, creating less waste, 
minimise energy usage through reduction in density of 
raw material, proper recycling of waste

M M

Social

Labour practices and decent work

15 Employment Employee recruitment and retention H M

16 Training and Education Conducting programs, courses, seminars to develop 
employee skills and knowledge

H M

17 Diversity and Equal 
Opportunity

Ensuring equal basic salary and remuneration to both 
men and women

H H

18 Occupational Health and 
Safety

Ensuring safe and healthy work environment by 
educating employees on health and safety, providing 
safety material, and compliance to safety measures

H H

19 Employee Assessments Carrying out annual performance appraisal, special 
rewards and recognition

M L

20 Risk and Crisis 
Management

Assessing risks and their effective mitigation/ risk 
mitigation policy, manuals, committees 

H H

21 Supply Chain  
Management

Monitoring suppliers for quality adherence, acquiring 
quality raw material, ensuring timely delivery

H M
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Contd.

No. Aspect/Material Topic
Material Matters of Concern to  

Sierra Cables
Significance to 
Sierra Cables To Stakeholders

Human Rights

22 Human Rights  
Assessment

Safeguarding human rights of all stakeholders H H

23 Non-discrimination Non discrimination of all stakeholders H H

Society

24 Local Communities Providing employment opportunities for local 
community, managing better relations with 
communities

M M

Product Responsibility

25 Customer Health and 
Safety

Create quality products without compromising health 
and safety

H H

26 Marketing and Labelling Better marketing and communication strategy for 
wider reach

H M

27 Customer Relationship 
Management

Establish direct informal communication lines with 
customer, obtain customer feedback, encourage 
factory visits, support social events, establish wide 
spread network and loyalty programmes

M H

28 Product Innovation/ New 
Product Development

Continuous development of products to suit the 
changing customer requirement/ Product development 
process, committees, market testing

H M

Other Corporate Aspects

29 Corporate Governance Board of directors & committees, policies and 
procedures, transparency and accountability, legal 
aspect, monitoring 

H M

30 Corporate Citizenship CSR initiatives (internship opportunities for students, 
seminars for electrician community, factory visits), 
adherence to local and international quality standards, 
providing employment opportunities for neighbouring 
community

H M

31 Stakeholder Engagement Initiatives to encourage stakeholder engagement, AGM 
to voice concerns

H M
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1 Economic Performance

2 Financial Transparency 

3 Tax Contribution

4 Reporting

5 Market Presence

6 Indirect Economic Impacts

7 Materials

8 Energy

9 Water

10 Bio-diversity

11 Emissions

12 Effluents and Waste

13 Environmental Compliance

14 Eco efficiency of operations

15 Employment

16 Training and Education

17 Diversity and Equal Opportunity

18 Occupational Health and Safety

19 Employee assessments

20 Risk and crisis management

21 Supply chain management

22 Human Rights Assessment

23 Non-discrimination

24 Local Communities

25 Customer Health and Safety

26 Marketing and Labelling

27 Customer Relationship Management

28 Product innovation/ new product development

29 Corporate Governance

30 Corporate Citizenship 

31 Stakeholder Engagement
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Financial Highlights (Group)

 Description 2020 2019

Net Turnover  5,563,252,957  4,699,657,203 

Profit Before Tax 264,299,230  496,847 

Profit After Tax 228,758,686  12,396,169 

Shareholders's Fund 2,012,502,986 1,786,653,793

Issued & fully paid Number of shares  537,512,430  537,512,430 

Total Assets 4,898,190,475  5,304,842,442 

Market Capitalisation  1,128,776,103  860,019,888 

Current Ratio (%)  1.35  1.20 

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE %) 20% 14%

Per Share

Market Value   - Highest  3.70  2.40

 Lowest  1.30  1.50 

 Last Traded  2.10  1.60 

Earnings  0.43  0.03 

Net Assets  3.74  3.32 
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Non-Financial Highlights

Financial 
Capital

Human Capital
ISO Standards
ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001

SLS Certifications
SLS 412, SLS 733, SLS 750, 
SLS 1186, SLS 1504 and SLS 1542

International Certifications
United Kingdom (BS), Australian 
(AS) New Zealand (NZS) and 
France (NFC), Japanese (JIS), 
American (ASTM)

Intellectual Capital

Social & 
Relationship Capital

� 14%  Non-Machine 
purposes water saving

� Solar power generation 
enhanced upto 1 MW

Natural Capital

290 Employees

Ascertained Partnership
More than 130 suppliers and over 
5,000 customers 

Engaging with the Community 
Donations for needy families in the midst 
of COVID-19 crisis

Highest Group
Turnover 

Manufactured 
Capital

Pioneering Initiative
Established Copper 

tinning in-houseRs. 5.6 Bn

� Achieved 90%  training 

objectives 

� Attrition rate dropped 

by 13%

Financial Highlights (Group)
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Chairman’s Message

It gives me immense pride to present 
the Annual Report and the Financial 
Statements for the year ended 
31st March 2020, marking yet another 
strong performance by Sierra Cables 
PLC despite facing twin calamities 
during the year under review, namely 
the Easter Sunday attacks in April 
2019 and the outbreak of COVID-19 in 
the last quarter of the same year. The 
company’s notable performance despite 
the economic implications of these 
challenges reflects its brand reputation 
and the strength of its enduring 
relations with business partners, which 
ensured that the company sustained its 
comfortable financial position. 

Macro-economic Conditions 
Suffering intense pressure from 
these challenging events, the tourism 
and construction sectors were 
severely impacted, while spill-over 
effects of the April attacks were felt 
across the economy, worsening the 
sluggish economic growth and further 
dampening business confidence. 
Growth of credit to the private sector 
decelerated sharply during the year 
under review, driven by subdued 
economic activity and weak business 
confidence affecting the performance 
of the financial sector. 

Unfortunately, as domestic economic 
activity started to show early responses 
to the policy measures to revive 
the economy and improve business 
sentiments at the beginning of the year 
2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 
pandemic, the containment measures 
adopted by all countries including Sri 
Lanka, and the resultant projected 
contraction in the global economy, 
triggered further uncertainties and a 
slowdown. 

Industry Environment 
The industry sector registered a growth 
of 2.7% in 2019, compared to the 
growth of 1.2% in the previous year. 
Construction activities rebounded 
during the year, growing by 4.0% in 
value added terms as against the 
contraction of 2.5% in 2018 with the 
accelerated completion of large scale 
construction projects. Extension of the 
Southern Expressway and the Outer 

Circular Highway and the rapid progress 
of the Central Expressway project 
ahead of the presidential election, as 
well as the construction work related 
to condominium development projects 
largely contributed to the expansion 
in construction activities during the 
year under consideration. Further, the 
building material imports volume index 
increased by 1.5% during the year 
against the decline of 3.7% witnessed 
in 2018, indicating the positive 
developments taking place in the 
construction sector. 

Meanwhile, credit to the private sector 
granted by Licensed Commercial Banks 
(LCBs) for construction activities grew 
by 5.6% as at end December 2019, 
compared to the growth of 14.1% 
recorded as at end December 2018. 
However, the long delay in payments 
for government related projects 
created severe financial constraints for 
construction firms. For Sierra Cables 
PLC, performing strongly amidst such 
tough economic conditions was no 
mean feat. 

Performance & Challenges 
Faced 
Despite the challenges in the economy, 
Sierra Group of companies delivering a 
record high turnover of Rs. 5.6 Bn and 
net earnings of Rs. 229 Mn at financial 
year-end proves our agility in adapting 
to changes in the macro economic 

environment. The Group posted a Gross 
Profit margin of 17% as against 12% in 
the previous year, marking a significant 
improvement. Operating profit too 
grew by 57% and Group Profit after 
Tax rose by Rs. 216 Mn. to Rs. 229 Mn. 
Progressive quarter on quarter growth 
helped boost company shareholders’ 
confidence. Earnings per share too grew 
to 43 cents as compared to 3 cents in 
the previous year, which is a reflection 
of the Group’s commitment to enhance 
shareholder wealth. As for company 
performance, Profit after Tax increased 
by Rs. 123 Mn while a Net Profit margin 
of 3% was achieved in contrast with 
0.7% in the preceding year. 

Global prices of copper and aluminium, 
metals, important ingredients for the 
manufacture of cables, showed an 
upward trend in early 2019, but declined 
and stabilised at a low level midway 
through the year, which helped to earn 
substantial profits through the year. 
Other fiscal challenges during the year 
too were surmounted with the right 
strategies. During the period under 
review, exports witnessed a decline due 
to global demand weakening. Further, 
the Sri Lankan rupee depreciated in 
early 2019, which proved challenging 
as the company is reliant on imports 
of raw materials. In response, the 
company successfully lowered the 
impact of exchange rates through 
close monitoring and astute mitigation 
strategies. 

Sierra Group of companies delivering 
a record high turnover of Rs. 5.6 Bn 
and net earnings of Rs. 229 Mn at 
financial year-end proves our agility 
in adapting to changes in the macro 
economic environment. 
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Chairman’s Message

Furthermore, our subsidiary in East 
Africa was successful in reducing its 
losses during the period under review 
and is now more strongly positioned, 
having secured new orders amidst a 
boom in the East African region. 

Our joint venture in Fiji, Cables PTE 
Limited is making a strong headway 
in the local market and this was duly 
reflected in sales growth of 58% 
recorded during the year under review, 
which resulted in the company carving 
out a 30% share of the local market in Fiji. 

Future Strategies 
Going ahead, we will remain on the 
look-out for profitable market niches 
and tap uncontested market segments 
such as solar cables. Sierra Cable has 
won acclaim as the first company in 
Sri Lanka to obtain SLS certification 
for locally manufactured solar cables 
that meet the most stringent technical 
requirements. As a result, the company 
is dominating the solar cables segment. 
Our foray into solar cables is inspired by 
our mission to reduce the company’s 
carbon footprint through reduced 
wastage, energy recovery and near 
sourcing strategies. 

We remain hopeful that the 
government will consider granting 
large infrastructure projects to local 
companies, while curtailing imports 
which benefits the local economy and 
conserves valuable foreign exchange. 

Appreciation 
I would like to place on record my 
gratitude to colleagues in the Board for 
their unstinted support. The Managing 
Director, the management team and 
the employees have remained tireless 
in their efforts to help achieve our 
ambitious targets. The faith placed in 
us by all our stakeholders including 
shareholders, suppliers, customers and 
financial partners continues to motivate 
us to achieve our bold vision.

W.A.P. Perera 

Chairman

Colombo
31st August 2020
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Sierra Cables PLC successfully sustained 
its high growth momentum from the 
previous year and improved on it 
significantly to record a historic Group 
Turnover of Rs. 5.6 Bn for FY2019/20 in 
comparison to Rs. 4.7 Bn recorded in the 
preceding year. Meanwhile, the Company 
too had set ambitious operational and 
financial targets towards realising its 
vision of becoming a Rs. 5 Bn entity 
by year-end, but the lockdown due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic forced a 
temporary shut-down of its facilities in 
March. Nevertheless the most gratifying 
feeling for us comes from the fact 
that the Group’s outstanding financial 
performance was achieved despite the 
enormous macro-economic challenges 
that prevailed in the country through the 
year under review, which is a testimonial 
to the commitment of our people 
and the efficacy of our systems and 
processes. 

The year 2019/20 witnessed volatile 
political developments and weakened 
economic growth, eroding investor 
confidence and causing a slowdown 
across diverse sectors of the economy 
including infrastructure projects that 
ground to a halt in the aftermath of the 
April 2019 terrorist attacks. Although 
the final quarter showed an uptick in 
business confidence, the impact of 
the pandemic will take its toll on Sri 
Lanka’s economy as it has on the global 
economy. 

Operational Highlights 
As a Group, Sierra Cables PLC delivered 
a record-breaking financial performance 
in FY2019/20 by achieving the highest 
revenue in the history of its operations. 
Further, Gross Profit and Earnings too 
showed positive growth compared 
to the previous year. Sierra Cables 
achieved a Group Turnover of Rs. 5.6 Bn 
and a Gross Profit margin of 17% which 
reflected growth of over 63% compared 
to the previous year. The Group’s Net 
Profit margin increased to 4% compared 
to 0.3% in the previous year. The robust 
financial performance by the Group in 
the current year resulted in Earnings per 
share growing to 43 cents as compared 
to 3 cents in the previous year, an 
affirmation of our commitment to our 
shareholders.

Meanwhile, the Company recorded a 
20% revenue growth to reach Rs. 4.9 Bn 
in 2019/20. Turnover improved by Rs. 
810 Mn and Gross profit increased from 
Rs. 504 Mn to Rs. 853 Mn, marking an 
increase of as much as 69%. Although 
global prices of copper, aluminium, 
and other key raw material showed an 
upward trend at the beginning of 2019, 
a subsequent decline was seen as 
prices stabilised favourably at a low level 
half-way through 2019. This served to 
reduce cost of production and enhance 
the company’s bottom line.

Operating Profit grew by 57% despite 
the increase of Selling & Distribution 
and Administration expenses, arising 
out of the additional provision made 
against the receivable on account of 
forecasted post COVID-19 negative 
macro-economic factors and additional 
expense made for solar cable research 
and development. Supported by 
strategic mitigation strategies, the 
Company reduced exchange losses 
by as much as 48% in FY2019/20. 
Sustaining the positive trend, the 
Company brought down its net finance 
cost by Rs. 41 Mn from Rs. 218 Mn in the 
previous year, which is 19% saving. The 
Company succeeded in expanding Net 
Profit to Rs. 151 Mn in the year under 
review as against Rs. 28 Mn in 2018/19. 
The year under review, bolstered 
primarily by efficient operational 
practices, has seen the company adopt 
effective scrap management strategies 
and waste reduction methodologies. 

Overall, the year under review witnessed 
a concerted effort by all divisions in 
the company to enhance productivity. 
A steering committee was established 
and meetings were held on a weekly 
basis for troubleshooting and to plan 
coordinated marketing and production 
strategies, while staying within 
earmarked budgets. This oversight 
and commitment helped cost control 
and reduced wastage to deliver what 
could be called a year of operational 
excellence. Despite the constraints in 
the economy we were successful in 
growing the customer base further.

During the year under review, we 
focused on expanding market share in 
vital market segments, namely in the 
Dealer, Projects, Institutional and Export 
markets. The Projects and Institutional 
segments performed creditably, 
reflecting a growth rate of 33% over the 
previous year. The Company sustains 
its dominance in the Projects market, 
the largest contributor to profitability in 
the year under consideration, which is 
our strength due to our joint synergies 
with Sierra Holdings, a construction 
conglomerate. During the year under 
review, the Company secured iconic 
construction projects such as Keells 
Waterfront, Sri Lanka’s largest real 
estate project; Pearl Grand Hotel; Rigid 
Tyre factory; Havelock city Phase V and 
other such landmark projects. 

Managing Director’s Review

Achieving 18% growth 
during challenging operating 
environment due to competition 
and unforseen incidents is 
noteworthy.
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This strong performance was driven 
through operational improvements 
and enhancements which will spill over 
during 2020/21. The Ceylon Electricity 
Board (CEB), a major customer for 
Sierra Cables, opened tenders for the 
supply of Aerial Bundle Cables hitherto 
supplied by us. As a result, overseas 
competitors offered the same cables 
at prices much lower than possible to 
manufacture locally, thereby dumping 
cheap and inferior quality cables in the 
Sri Lankan market. The government, 
after much lobbying efforts, obtained 
Cabinet approval to reverse the tender 
evaluation procedure and directed 
CEB to give priority to local cable 
manufacturers.

Overall, the Company strengthened its 
position in the cables industry segment 
while attracting recognition from peers 
and industry organisations. During the 
year under review, Sierra Cables won 
a Silver award for its First Integrated 
Annual Report at the 55th Annual 
Report Awards Ceremony in 2019, 
organised by CA Sri Lanka.

Performance of Group 
Companies 
Overall, all Group companies delivered 
revenue growth despite various 
obstacles through the year. The 
subsidiary Sierra Industries sustained 
profits from 2018/19 as a result of 
acquiring a sizeable contract from the 
National Water Sanitation Drainage 
Board (NWSDB). The Company 
successfully grew its revenue by 4% 
and recorded 15% Gross Profit margin 
in 2019/20. 

During the year under review, Sierra 
Cables East Africa was successful in 
bringing down losses from the previous 
year while recording 7% growth in 
revenue. Going forward, we expect this 
entity to make greater profits as the 
Company has secured some significant 
tenders on hand.

Cables PTE Limited, our joint venture 
in Fiji, managed to increase turnover 
by 58% during 2019/20 while its Gross 
Profit went up by 300% due to an 
expansion programme which included 
enhancing the product portfolio by 
making a shift from domestic to 

industrial cables, as they offer higher 
margins. As a result of these multi-
pronged strategies, market share grew 
to about 30% in the local market in Fiji. 
The Company has a team of more than 
20 local staff who were retained despite 
the economic uncertainty caused by the 
pandemic. 

T&G Lanka (Pvt) Limited, another 
associate company of Sierra Cables, 
it is a joint venture with a Norwegian 
company achieved substantial revenue 
and net profit growth in the year 
under review in contrast with the 
preceding year. The company concluded 
FY2019/20 with a revenue growth of 
63% and a substantial net profit growth. 

Sustainable Growth 
Sierra Cables PLC continued to 
pursue sustainable manufacturing 
strategies in the year under review. 
Manufacturing solar cables, it became 
the first company to acquire the 
SLS certification, even successfully 
convincing Sri Lanka Customs Authority 
and the Sustainable Energy Authority to 
promote its locally manufactured solar 
cables. In this manner, Sierra Cables PLC 
continues to tap new opportunities in 
the market and was in fact the first local 
cable manufacturer to gain inroads into 
the Port City by supplying cables to a 
sub-station project in 2018. 

Meanwhile, in keeping with its 
commitment to sustainable 
manufacturing, the company has 
expanded solar panels up to 1 MW 
at its factory premises. Solar power 
generation is a reflection of the 
company’s sustainability-focused 

mindset while taking advantage of 
the present government’s thrust on 
expanding power generation from 
renewable sources of energy. 

Leveraging on technology, a new ERP 
system is functionalising in mid-2020, 
delivering benefits from better data 
analysis capability as a result. Once the 
system becomes operational, a much 
more positive impact on operational and 
financial efficiencies are anticipated. 

Future Outlook 
If not for the negative impact of 
Covid-19 on economic recovery, the 
year would have proved favourable 
for the construction industry, since 
the government has pledged its 
commitment to boost the construction 
sector by way of tax incentives and 
capital infusions to pay longstanding 
dues to contractors. Rejuvenation of 
the construction industry augurs well 
for the cable manufacturing business 
and restriction on imports through the 
year points to a greater opportunity 
for local manufacturers. Our strategic 
move to strengthen market intelligence 
capabilities has helped the company 
secure key contracts and this capacity 
will be further enhanced in the months 
ahead.

The company will continue on its 
digitalisation journey by harnessing 
the power of Artificial Intelligence now 
being introduced in a preliminary stage 
at the factory premises to gauge how 
fast the machines are operating and 
to maximise them. The benefits of the 
drop in interest rates in the market will 
cascade to the corporate sector to 

This strong performance was 
driven through operational 
improvements and 
enhancements which will spill 
over during 2020/21.
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Managing Director’s Review Contd.

improve liquidity, thereby empowering 
companies to secure short term loans 
to take advantage of low interest rates. 
The government has expressed a strong 
commitment to improve SMEs and 
support local manufacturers by lowering 
import duties. All these factors have 
helped enhance the liquidity position of 
the company. 

While our strategic objective is to 
sustain and grow the substantial 
turnover achieved in 2019/20, we 
remain focused on seizing opportunities 
emanating from projects such as the 
Colombo International Financial City 
(formerly known as Port City) in the 
future. At this point, Foreign Direct 
Investment (FDI) inflows into Sri Lanka 
seem like a bleak prospect due to 
the global impact of the pandemic. 
Moreover, the drop in lending rates 
would probably boost the housing 
construction sector and dampen the 
boom in the apartment sector, which 
would also impact sales of our products. 

I have no doubt that the year ahead will 
be challenging during which reducing 
cost of raw materials will be our main 
endeavour, since it forms 90% of the 
total cost of the product. We will also 
be investing in expanding laboratory, to 
enhance quality levels further. Armed 
with a fresh outlook, strategic approach 
and indefatigable spirit, Sierra Cables 
PLC remains optimistic about the future 
of the Group and the outlook for the 
economy. 

Appreciation 
I wish to express my appreciation to 
the Chairman and the members of the 
Board for their wise counsel through a 
challenging year - amid a global pandemic 
– in which we came close to achieving 
our target to be a Rs. 5 Bn company 
during 2019/20. Our employees have 
been a pillar of success during the year 
as have our customers, dealers, suppliers, 
financial partners and other stakeholders 
who have extended their continued 
support to the company.

D. S. Panditha

Managing Director

Colombo 
31st August 2020
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Operating Environment

Global Economy 
According to The World Economic 
Outlook of the International Monetary 
Fund (IMF), global economic growth in 
2019 recorded 2.9% compared to 3.6% 
in 2018. Subdued growth in the US and 
the Euro area advanced economies 
grew at 1.7% in 2019, compared to 
2.2% in the previous year, despite 
the improved growth performance 
in economies such as UK and Japan. 
Meanwhile, growth across emerging 
market and developing economies 
moderated to 3.7% in 2019 from 4.5% 
in 2018, largely due to country specific 
shocks that weighed on domestic 
demand. Among key emerging 
economies, the moderation of growth 
of China, India, Russia and Brazil was 
noteworthy in 2019 over the previous 
year. 

Reflecting subdued economic activity 
across the globe, growth of world 
trade volume of merchandise and 
trade in services moderated notably 
in 2019 to 0.9% in comparison to the 
growth of 3.8% in 2018. As trade and 
manufacturing slowed significantly, 
commodity prices showed a significant 
drop in 2019, as reflected in the decline 
in petroleum prices by 10.2% in 2019, 
compared to the acceleration by 29.4% 
in 2018. 

Looking ahead, the global economy, 
which had been on an arduous path of 
recovery amidst gathering economic 
and political headwinds, showed 
signs of a far-reaching setback with 
the COVID-19 pandemic. The global 
economy in 2020 is widely set to 
experience its worst recession since the 
Great Depression according to IMF, with 
global growth projected to contract by 
3% per cent in 2020.

Sri Lanka Economy in 2019/20 
Sri Lanka’s economic engine failed to 
gather pace in the year under review 
as the Easter Sunday attacks had a 
severe impact on the tourism sector, 
with adverse effects being felt across 
the economy, compounding the sluggish 
growth of the economy and dampening 
business confidence. Growth of credit to 
the private sector decelerated sharply, 

driven by subdued economic activity 
and weak business confidence, affecting 
the performance of the financial sector. 
Considering the need to support 
economic activity amidst pressures in 
the external sector, the Central Bank 
adopted an accommodative monetary 
policy stance, and took steps to 
expedite the transmission of monetary 
policy measures to the economy 
through regulatory action aimed at 
reducing market interest rates. 

As domestic economic activity started 
to show early responses to the policy 
measures taken to revive the economy 
and improving business sentiments 
at the beginning of the year 2020, the 
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the containment measures adopted by 
all countries including Sri Lanka, and 
the resultant projected contraction in 
the global economy triggered further 
uncertainties regarding the country’s 
economic performance in 2020. In the 

near term, the economy is likely to be 
impacted severely in terms of its growth, 
fiscal, external, and financial sector 
performance, while causing hardships to 
all stakeholders of the economy. 

Sector Performance 
The cable industry progressed well 
during the year under review as the 
construction sector picked up, resulting 
in demand for cable products and 
services. The construction and mining 
and quarrying subsectors grew by 
4.0% and 2.8% respectively in 2019, 
mainly supported by the government 
infrastructure development projects, 
compared to contractions of 2.5% and 
5.2%, respectively recorded in 2018. 
Several private sector backed luxury 
projects also recommenced construction 
which benefitted cable manufacturers. In 
addition, price of raw materials declined 
during the year which resulted in higher 
profit margins for the industry. 

LME Aluminium Price Trend

LME Copper Price Trend



23Sierra Cables PLC | Annual Report 2019/20

Company Performance 
Sierra Cables PLC successfully recorded 
its highest-ever turnover of Rs. 4.9 Bn as 
at 31st March 2020, compared to Rs. 4 
Bn in the preceding year. The company 
was able to sustain its market share with 
strong support from all its business arms 
while growing its customer base and 
achieving operational improvements 
and strengthening its project market 
segments.  

A weakened global economy resulted 
in subdued demand through the 
year under review in contrast to 
the preceding year. As a result, the 
performance of the company’s exports 
arm fell slightly short of achieving its 
ambitious goals, however the year under 
review continued to reinforce the strides 
the company has made in entrenching 
its footprint in overseas markets.  

Meanwhile, Sierra Cables sustained 
its dominance in the project market 
supported by group synergies with 
Sierra Holdings, a construction 
conglomerate. During the year, the 
company expanded its project market, 
winning iconic projects such as tenders 
from the Ceylon Electricity Board, and 
construction sector projects such as 
JKH Waterfront, Pearl Grand Hotel, etc. 
Subsidiary Sierra Industries too turned 
around into a profit-making operation 
in 2018/19 as a result of acquiring a 
sizeable contract from the National 
Water Sanitation Drainage Board 
(NWSDB). 

Overall, the Company pursued 
sustainable manufacturing strategies 
to enhance productivity, practice cost 
control and reduce wastage in a year of 
operational excellence marked by new 
research and development innovations. 
The Company plans to sustain its 
digitalisation journey, having upgraded 
the ERP system with additional 
functionalities and Artificial Intelligence. 
Forecasting the industry against the 
backdrop of the global pandemic is 
tough but as a Group, Sierra Cables PLC 
is well geared and prepared to meet 
emerging challenges.
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INPUTS
OPERATIONAL 
ENVIRONMENT

OUR PROFIT FORMULA

EXTERNAL VARIABLES 
IMPACTING VALUES

REVENUE

OUR MATERIAL RISKS

EXPENSES

- Political instability
- Natural calamities
- Regularity changes in the 

local front

- Domestic Market  (Dealer, 
Project, Institutional)

- International Market 
 (export to over 07 
countries)

- Increased taxes
- High inflation
- Natural disasters

- Overhead expenditure
- Staff & Admin
- Selling & Distribution
- Research & Development
- Taxes

Funds used to drive our strategic 
ambitious and support operations

Stakeholder relationships that 
the Company nurtures and relies 
on to create Sustainable Value

Tacit knowledge, Standards and 
Procedures

Natural resources that are used in 
our value creation

Financial 
Capital

Social & 
Relationship 

Capital

Intellectual 
Capital

Natural 
Capital

Operating Environment Contd.

Our Value Creation Model

Page 26

Page 37

Page 39

Page 41

Skills, attitudes and experience of 
our employees

Human 
Capital

Page 32

Manufacturing facilities and other 
physical infrastructure used in 
manufacturing activities

Manufactured 
Capital

Page 28
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VALUE PROPOSITION OUTPUTS

Intellectual Capital

Social and Relationship Capital

Manufactured Capital

Human Capital

Financial Capital

Natural capital

CLIENT

EMPLOYEES

SOCIETY

PARTNERS

Ensure that clients receive 
access to quality products to 
suit their requirements

» Ensure their professional 
development through 
a training and learning 
culture

» Ensure their work-life 
balance

» Contribute to 
sustainability through 
environmental 
conservation 

» Provide employment 
opportunities

» Establishing collaborative 
relations with suppliers 
in obtaining quality raw 
material and seek cost 
savings

» Net Profit Rs. 229 Mn

» Achieved 90% trainings out of training objectives 
during the year

» Ascertained partnerships with more than 130 
suppliers and over 5,000 customers 

» Tax paid Rs. 31.4 Mn
» Donations for needy families in the midst of 

COVID-19 crisis

» System Implementation
» Introduction of an Artificial Intelligence backed 

system
» Electrician trainings
» Providing skills development training for employees

» Execute new methods of Waste Reduction

» Solar power generation upto 1 MW

» EPS Rs. 0.43

» Attrition Rate droped by 13%

» New Acquisitions
	� Bunching Machine 
	� New Tin coating unit
	� Curing Chamber
	� Extruder machine screws

» In-house Manufacturing of Solar Cables

» 14% Saving of water for 
Non-machine purpose

» Highest Share Price Increase Rs. 3.70
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Financial Capital

Sierra Cables PLC recorded an 
outstanding performance during the 
2019/20 financial year despite weak 
economic growth and disruption 
to business activity caused by the 
April terrorist attacks and the global 
pandemic in the fourth quarter of 
the year under consideration, further 
exacerbated by a slowdown in 
construction activities. Throughout 
the year, the Company maintained 
disciplined expenses and borrowings. 

Revenue 
The 2019/20 year proved to be a 
landmark year as Sierra Cables PLC 
posted the highest group turnover of 
Rs.5.6 Bn while the subsidiary Sierra 
Industries posted Rs. 550 Mn. Despite 
the impact of loss of opportunities due 
to the Easter Sunday attack and impact 
from COVID-19, the Company increased 
its turnover by 20% to Rs. 4.9 Bn, with 
substantial contributions from the 
Projects and Institutional markets.

Gross Profit 
The Group recorded a Gross Profit 
for the year under review of Rs. 947 
Mn, which reflects an increase of 63% 
from the corresponding period of the 
previous year when it recorded Rs. 580 
Mn in 2018/19. Meanwhile the Gross 
Profit of the Company increased by an 
impressive 69% for the same period. 

The Gross Profit margin recorded at 
17% as against 12% recorded in the 
previous year, marking a significant 
growth due to prices of raw materials 
remaining fairly stable through the year 
under review. Global prices of copper 
and aluminium and metals, key raw 
materials for the manufacture of cables 
rose in early 2019 but declined and 
stabilised at a low-level midway through 
the year which helped grow profits in 
2019/20.

These earnings reflect the Group’s focus 
on balanced growth, its innovation drive 
and the efficacy of its systems to be 
able to thrive amidst such a challenging 
environment.  

Operating Profit 
Selling & Distribution Expenses 
recorded significant increase compared 
to the previous year, However, the 
Company managed to retain its ratio 
to sales to 6%. Higher provision had to 
be made for the current year based on 
the Expect Credit Loss (ECL) calculation 
method for debtor outstanding mainly 
due to the post COVID-19 impact on 
adverse micro-economic forecasts. 

Even though Administration, Selling and 
Distribution expenses and provisions 
increased, the Operating Profit recorded 
57% growth than the previous year for 
both Group and Company, indicating our 
focus on stringent cost management 
strategies in delivering profits whilst 
driving the revenue growth of the 
Company during the period under review.

Strengthening the sustainable and cost 
saving approach of our operations, 
Sierra Cables infused capital to increase 
solar based electricity generation by 
the Company to 1 MW. We expect 
this investment to yield substantial 
energy savings for us, hence positively 
contributing to the Company bottom line. 

Profit After Tax 
Considering the Sierra Group recorded 
its strongest financial performance in 
FY 2019/20, the profitability of both 
the Group and the Company soared 
accordingly. The Group’s Profit After Tax 
reached Rs. 229 Mn in 2019/20 over the 
previous year Rs. 12 Mn. Similarly, the 
Company Profit After Tax improved to 
Rs. 151 Mn in the year under review.
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Financial Capital consists of the pool of funds that 
are available to the organisation for use in the 
production of goods or the provision of services 
obtained through financing, such as debt, equity 
or grants or generated through operations or 
investments. 
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Finance Cost 
The finance cost comprises of the interest 
cost on the borrowings and impact of 
exchange rate fluctuations. There is a 21% 
decline in Group finance cost compared 
to the preceding year mainly due to the 
reduction in exchange loss. Even though 
the exchange rate dropped significantly 
towards the latter part of the year with 
the COVID-19 impact, the Company was 
able to mitigate the exposure by adopting 
appropriate mitigating actions. 

Cash Flow 
As a result of prudent financial measures, 
the Group was successful in generating an 
increase in cash and cash equivalents by 
Rs. 61 Mn. during FY2019/20. Group Net 
Cash Inflow generated from operating 
activities was Rs. 502 Mn compared to Rs. 
54 Mn Net Cash Outflow in the previous 
year. A higher operating profit resulted in 
a positive cash generated from operations 
leading a positive cash balance at the 
end of the period. Group Net Cash from 
investing activities indicates a negative 
balance of Rs. 141 Mn mainly due to the 
Sierra Cables’ solar investment made 
during the period under consideration. 
However, the negative opening balance 
of Rs. 204 Mn impacted the Rs. 145 Mn 
of negative Cash and Cash Equivalents at 
the end of the year.

Sierra Cables PLC was given a 
standalone rating of BB+ (lka) by Fitch 
Ratings, signifies the credit quality of the 
Company. We expect cashflows to be 
strengthen further in the year ahead.

Tax Expenses 
The Group incurred a sum of Rs. 36 
Mn as total tax expenses for the period 
under review compared to a Rs. 12 Mn 
refund in the corresponding period in 
the previous year. In the year under 
review, the Company’s Net tax expense 
was Rs.31 Mn for the current financial 
year with a reversal of Rs. 18 Mn as 
differed tax.

Interest Cover 
Sierra Group has provided for interest 
coverage of up to three times in 
FY2019/20 compared to twice in the 
previous year which reflects the positive 
momentum of the business and its 
comfortable balance sheet position. 

Shareholder Wealth 
Buoyed by the strong performance 
recorded in the quarter financials, the 
highest share value recorded during 
the year under review was Rs. 3.70. As 
a result of the robust growth, Group 
Earnings per share rose to 43 cents as 
compared to 3 cents in the preceding 
year. The company remains committed 
to ensuring high returns on investments 
for its shareholders. 

Return on Capital Employed 
The Group’s Return on Capital Employed 
(ROCE) for the year under review was 
20% whilst in the prior year it was 14%. 
The upward trend in ROCE indicates 
a positive influence on the Group and 
Company. 
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Manufactured Capital

Manufactured Capital 
is defined as all material 
resources and energy 
used throughout 
the manufacturing 
process and measures 
how effectively and 
sustainably these are 
used. As a sustainable 
organisation, Sierra 
Cables PLC seeks to 
maximise effectiveness 
and efficiency in using 
manufacturing capital, 
while practising policies 
that sustain the quality 
and quantity of material 
nutrients and industrial 
ecologies into the 
future to bring about 
benefits within the 
organisation. 

As an organisation with significant 
interests in the manufacturing 
sector, the quality, trustworthiness 
and competency of Sierra Cables’ 
manufacturing expertise is the salient 
determinant of success. 

Sierra Cables PLC operates its main 
manufacturing plant in Kaduwela. The 
Company also has overseas presence 
in Sierra East Africa Private Limited, 
a subsidiary company located in 
Kenya, which caters to regional and 
international buyers wanting to take 
advantage of duty-free entry from East 
Africa to western nations; and Cables 
PTE Limited, an associate company 
located in Fiji, to which Sierra Cables 
supplies technical support by way of an 
experienced technical labour force. 

Upholding Excellence 
During the year under review, the 
focus was on enhancing quality and 
meeting relevant local and international 
standards by sourcing the best quality 
raw materials. Sourcing raw materials 
is strictly controlled and monitored to 
ensure quality so that the Sierra Cables 
brand image is maintained and upheld. 
Committed to enhancing efficiency 
further, Artificial Intelligence (AI) - based 
monitoring tools are being introduced 
to evaluate the results initially before 
scaling up further AI capability.

Quality permeates the entire 
manufacturing process - from 
procurement of raw materials, 
manufacturing process, quality, testing, 
delivery, to after-sales services. Quality 
checks are carried out in 3 stages 
spanning, Incoming, In-line and final 
inspection. In addition, all products 
undergo megger and continuity tests, 
while heavy cables are subjected to high 
voltage testing prior to being distributed 
in the market. All products are made 
using the highest quality raw material 
and in compliance with the required 
industry standards including ISO 9001, 
ISO 14001 and ISO 45001. Sierra Cables’ 
products are in compliance with United 
Kingdom (BS), Australian (AS) New 
Zealand (NZS), France (NFC), Japanese 
(JIS), American (ASTM) and International 
Electro technical Commission (IEC) 
standards. The company also adheres 
to Sri Lanka Standards Institutions’ SLS 
412, 733, 750, 1186, 1504 and 1542 
standards.

Significantly, Sierra Cables is one of two 
companies in Sri Lanka that completes 
the ‘Compulsory Test Report’ requested 
by government institutions. This third-
party accreditation test report, obtained 
from LCIE laboratory in France, further 
strengthens the company’s ability to 
obtain contracts from varied government 
entities. 

Product Responsibility 
The Company has been resolute in 
sustaining high quality assurance in all 
its product categories and in ensuring 
maximum customer safety and security. 
Most of the key raw materials are 
imported to ensure the highest quality 
standards are maintained. The Company 
uses 99.97% or above pure copper 
and virgin PVC. The virgin PVC material 
prevents expansion fires in case of any 
explosion and is proof of our marketing 
theme, ‘Fire Protect’.

Investments in Machinery 
2019/20 
Sustaining its continuous improvement 
policy, the company’s main investment 
during the period under review was 
in importing new machinery and 
modification of existing machinery and 
capacity enhancements. The benefits 
of these investments have been quick – 
with the factory now operating towards 
100% capacity as compared to 73% 
in the preceding year, by effectively 
eliminating production bottlenecks. 

In order to increase factory utilisation 
and increase stranding capacity, new 
machinery were introduced during the 
year under review.
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New Machinery Purpose

Screws for extruder  machines Needed in the manufacture of Low Smoke Halogen Free (LSHF) cables 

New bunching machines Increased stranding and bunching wire capacity

New tin coating unit Combined with modification of existing machinery, it helps tin coating process for solar 
cables in-house as opposed to importing tinned copper in an important value addition

Curing chamber The cable treating equipment and modified machine has enhanced process efficiency and 
increasing capacity and speed to produce a wide range of products 

New Initiatives in 2019/20 
Innovation has been a key driver of 
the company’s success and the R&D 
team continues to test and develop 
new products such as the in-house 
copper tinning method. Sierra Cables 
has commenced manufacturing solar 
cables and its newly-established tin 
copper plant allows the entire process 
of manufacturing solar cables to be 
done in-house to required standards. 
Managing copper tinning in-house 
instead of outsourcing is a pioneering 
initiative of its kind in Sri Lanka and 
reflects the company’s R&D and 
innovation capacity. While drawing the 
copper rods, the tinning and annealing 
is conducted in the same machine. 
Currently, tinned copper is used only 
for solar cables, though plans are being 
drawn up to extend this method across 
the product portfolio.

As the company expands its product 
portfolio, testing facilities for cables will 
be enhanced further, thereby enabling 
the company to assure clients of the 
highest product quality. The presence 
of testing facilities will make it possible 
to conduct more frequent quality 
inspections that meet and exceed client 
expectations. 

A UPS system is being considered for 
installation to stabilise electricity supply 
during the manufacturing process. 
When manufacturing customised 
cables for specific lengths, power supply 
disruption generates higher energy 
cost which tends to affect the final 
cost of the item. Therefore, with the 
UPS inserted for extruder machines, 
there will be adequate energy to run 
the machines without halting to ensure 
continuous manufacturing.

Overall, all production targets were met 
in 2019/20 which is part of the customer 
service excellence standards maintained 
by the company, with forward planning 
also on schedule. 

Sustainable Manufacturing 
Sustainable manufacturing underpins our 
entire manufacturing chain as we strive 
to achieve our sustainable goals such as 
lowering energy cost, recovery of energy 
and rainwater harvesting while modifying 
existing machinery. In order to lower 
import costs, near sourcing is practised, 
which also serves to lower the carbon 
footprint. The company’s sustainable 
manufacturing methodology is 
elaborated in the Natural Capital section 
on pages 41 to 42 of this annual report. 
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Sierra Solar Cables can be used in indoors and outdoors for flexible 
Photovoltaic (PV) installation in extreme environmental conditions.

Sierra Solar Cables are manufactured by using best quality 
Tinned-Copper and insulating & Sheathing materials with Low 
smoke Halogen free and UV protection and Ozone resistance 
properties which enhance the weathering and fire retardant 
properties. Sierra solar cables comply with TUV Specification and 
also SLS 1542.

With the increased demand for safety in public 
areas and buildings, contractors are now being 
advised to install materials that are non-hazardous 
to members of the public in case of fire. Smoke 
and poisonous fumes can be a greater risk to lives 
than that of fire alone.

A cable that ensures security during fire must have 
passed three tests pertaining to halogen content, 
smoke density and flame propagation. Sierra range 
of Low Smoke Halogen Free (LSHF) products are 
stringently tested to BS standards to ensure low 
risk of fire hazards.

Solar Cables

Fire Resistant  
Cables

Low Smoke 
Halogen Free 
(LSHF) Cables

Manufactured Capital Contd.

Product Portfolio

Recent New Product Developments

In addition to all above properties 
mentioned under LSHF cables, 
these are designed to maintain 
circuit integrity and continue to 

work for a specified period of 
time under defined conditions.
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Overhead

01.  Single Sheathing Cables
02.  Parallel Multi Core Cables 
03. Earth Cables
04.  Flexible Cables

Domestic

01

02

03

04

01 02 03

Industrial

01.   Armoured Cables
02.  Control Cables
03.  Unarmoured Cables
04.   Solar Cables
05.  Low Smoke Halogen Free Cables
06.  Fire Resistant Cables
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01. All Aluminium Conductors (AAC)

02.  Aluminium Conductors Steel 
Reinforced (ACSR) 

03.  All Aluminium Alloy Conductors (AAAC)

01 02 03

Institutional/Tenders

01. Aerial Bundle Cables
02. Drop Wire
03. Bare & Insulated Cables

Miscellaneous
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01. Screen Cables
02. Telecommunication Cables
03. Co-axial Cables
04. Auto Cables
05. Switch Gear Cables
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Human Capital

Our Approach to Human Capital 

Adhering to the 
principles of sustainable 
development, Sierra 
Cables PLC focused on 
strategically enhancing 
the value of its human 
capital through 2019/20 
in ways that enriched 
the organisation and its 
associates, evidenced 
in the impressive 
performance achieved 
during the period under 
consideration. The Human 
Resource (HR) strategy 
was based on equipping 
associates with the 
required knowledge, skills 
and attitudes to make a 
meaningful contribution 
to the organisation’s 
performance. 

A new HR policy was formulated to realign all HR assets to be channelled towards a 
High Performance Work System (HPWS) in an integrated manner and for maximum 
impact. In accordance with the new strategic approach, training programmes were 
tailored to enhance abilities, motivation and opportunities for associates, strongly 
supported by knowledge-sharing tools. These targeted HR practices improve 
individual performance, motivate associates and create new opportunities for career 
progression, thereby benefitting the company’s performance in the long term. 
Supported by special training programmes, the focus was maintained on quality 
enhancement, further augmented by motivational and technical programmes for staff 
from the maintenance and production departments.

HR Vision

To be the most sought after partner of associates’ progress while helping 
them to realise their professional and personal dreams

HR Mission

Equipping our associates with the required knowledge, skills and attitudes 
to undertake challenging roles in the dynamic business environment 

Creating an organisational culture and climate that improves our 
associate’s motivation, commitment and concern to serve customers 
through a High Performance Work System for improved organisational 
performance

Knowledge 
Acquisition

Ability
Financial 

Performance

Motivation
Employee 

Performance

Opportunity
Operational 

Performance

Knowledge 
Sharing

Knowledge 
Management

HPWS Organisational 
Performance

Knowledge 
Approach
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Equal Opportunity and 
Diversity of Workforce 
Sierra Cables PLC’s Human Resource 
Management Policy ensures that 
associates are not discriminated 
against based on gender, ethnicity or 
physical disability, as the company 
provides equal opportunity and sustains 
a multicultural work environment. 
The organisation upholds workplace 
diversity and incorporates this concept 
into its recruitment process. While 
the nature of the manufacturing 
operation requires male associates, 
the company balances this out with 
greater female representation in the 
supporting and back-office functions 
across all departments. Sierra Cables 

PLC is committed to gender parity to 
the maximum extent possible given the 
nature of its business. 

Employee Conduct 
All associates must act in accordance 
with the code of conduct provided in 
the Sierra Cables Handbook. Managers 
and supervisors have additional 
responsibilities, and are expected to be 
aware of and familiar with the company’s 
policy on workplace discrimination and 
harassment and its application and 
actively support and promote this policy.

Recruitment and Retention 
Valuing the process of recruitment 
and retention as key to organisational 
success, vacancies are advertised 
internally or externally according to 
arising needs. Senior management 
recruitment is done through 
professional networks or head-
hunting. Retention strategies include 
a combination of internal promotions, 
inbuilt succession plans, special/
overseas assignments, a challenging 
work environment and special cash 
benefits and foreign tours for sales and 
marketing employees in recognition of 
their outstanding performance 

Machine Operators are critical in the 
manufacturing process, therefore a 
grading system was introduced during 
the year under review, along with a new 
NVQ level for cable machine operators 
with the assistance of the National 
Apprentice and Industrial Training 
Authority (NAITA), to provide operators 
with a valid qualification. Other 
enhancements during the year included 
a revised annual benefit scheme for 
employees under probation; overseas 
exposure in subsidiaries at Kenya and 
Fiji as special assignments; and long 
service rewards initiated by the internal 
Welfare Society for associates who have 
rendered loyal service to the company 
for more than 10 years.
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Succession Plan 
Identifying and developing future 
leaders of the company is a key 
activity of the HR team. An upto-date 
skill inventory consisting of existing 
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities of every 
associate and a competency matrix 
is maintained and the gap is bridged 
using training and development. The 
established criteria are used to assess 
candidates and identify those who hold 
the potential to grow into a leadership 
position. The company has in place a 
talent pool qualified to eventually fill 
key roles in the organisation and these 
resources are further developed via 
training and work experience.

Training and Development 
Policy 
The purpose of this policy is to outline 
principles and procedures to ensure that 
training and development opportunities 
are available fairly and consistently 
across Sierra Cables PLC and used 
effectively and efficiently. The policy 
covers professional skill development 
courses, certificate courses and 
seminars conducted internally and 
externally. The main objective is to 
ensure that the company has a pool 
of employees with the appropriate 
knowledge, skills and abilities to meet 
organisational business objectives in 
both the short and longer term and 
to allow associates to achieve their 
potential and career aspirations. We 
aim to create a culture of learning 
throughout where individuals take 
responsibility for creating partnership 
with the company for their development.

Attrition rate 
The decline in attrition rates can be 
attributed to a structured HR policy 
that promotes a conducive workplace, 
promotes staff welfare incentives, and 
offers career progression and training 
and development opportunities. The 
attrition rate dropped from 15% in 
2018/19 to 13% in the year under review. 
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Performance Management 
The company has put in place 
a comprehensive performance 
management cycle, which helps 
associates review their performance 
expectations, including both the 
behaviours they are expected to exhibit 
and the results they are expected to 
achieve during the upcoming rating 
cycle. In addition to providing feedback 
whenever exceptional or ineffective 
performance is observed, providing 
periodic feedback about day-to-day 
accomplishments and contributions is 
also very valuable.

The Employee Input or Self-appraisal 
takes the form of asking associates to 
provide self-ratings on performance 
standards, which are then compared 
with the manager’s ratings and 
discussed. Each job role has a 
customised performance evaluation 
criteria inclusive of KPI measurements, 
quantitative measures as well as 
behavioural criteria. Evaluations are 
done in three stages: self-appraisal, 
superior appraisal and cross 
functional team appraisal to reach an 
approximately 270-degree appraisal. 
In the Performance Review stage, 
feedback is provided on an ongoing 
basis. During this meeting, managers 
discuss with subordinates their 
ratings, narratives and rationale for the 
evaluation given.

Continuous educational in-house 
workshops on performance appraisal 
and rating errors for superiors ensure 
the appraisal is always objective in 
nature. Performance management is 
an ongoing process where appraisals 
are generally conducted annually, at 
the time of employment confirmation, 
assigned for a special assignment, while 
being absorbed into the permanent 
cadre or to facilitate an internal 
promotion. 

Continuing Professional 
Development 
A culture of Continuing Professional 
Development or CPD is promoted 
throughout the organisation to make 
learning and development a conscious 
proactive endeavour. The company has 
formulated a blend of diverse modes of 
learning and development for effective 
professional development. This CPD 
culture has helped to develop skills and 
knowledge of associates to maintain a 
sustainable and competitive advantage. 
Some of the on-going CPD programmes 
are:

� Company wide Improvement 
Programme (CWIP) is an open 
forum for all associates to 
contribute their suggestions for 
the overall improvement of the 
company. These suggestions 
are collected from all employees 
following which their relevance is 
analysed and evaluated prior to 
implementation. This intervention 
ensures associates are represented 
in the management decision-making 
process by encouraging them to 
offer suggestions for company 
improvement and also for infusing a 
sense of engagement and ownership. 

� Bread Talk, an informal 
communication platform for 
executives across all departments, 
was developed to encourage 
constructive criticism and has 
helped to create a healthy dialogue 
and mutual understanding among 
executives for a firefighting-free 
work culture. This intervention 
is facilitating development of 
cross-functional team culture, 
where everyone can work across 

Human Capital Contd.
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departments collaboratively, through 
mutual understanding and towards 
one goal. It also provides solutions 
under mutual agreement to make a 
proactive plan to mitigate potential 
future challenges.

� Idea Carnival, formerly known as 
Communication Day, was designed 
for associates, particularly the young 
work cadre in building their soft skills. 
A person within the cadre is assigned 
to conduct a weekly power point 
presentation for 15 minutes on any 
topic of interest in enhancing the 
knowledge of other colleagues. The 
aim is to enhance presentation skills, 
public speaking and elevate self-
confidence, in addition to orienting 
newcomers. Listeners are welcomed 
to constructively criticize and provide 
feedback for further improvement. 

� Path-breaking programme is 
designed to improve synergy in cross 
functional teams and within and 
among departments. It is conducted 
once every fortnight for one hour 
where team building activities 
are organised for batches of staff 
and prove to be a stress relieving 
mechanism with a purpose as each 
team-building activity is followed 
by a learning point discussion 
session. Its outcomes are improved 
communication, teamwork, empathy 
and higher morale. 

� Continuous climate surveys and 
employee engagement surveys 
are used as a HR tool to diagnose 
employee perception of the working 
culture and other benefits provided. 
Certain initiatives are taken as 
remedial actions after careful 
screening and analysis of data while a 
post-effectiveness feedback survey 
enables to identify the success rate. 
During the year under review, the 
company conducted a cost effective 
survey and plans to address the 
findings to improve productivity 
enhancement tools.

� Personnel Best Programme is aimed 
at improving efficient and effective 
target achievement through tapping 
critical points (such as waste 
reduction, quality, customer base 
development, achieving sales target, 

innovations etc) while adhering to 
quality and required competencies. 
Production, maintenance and sales 
departments that are considered 
the backbone of the company are 
divided into teams (for example, 
production department divided 
as per work areas; maintenance 
as one unit; and sales as another) 
to compete with each other 
against set criteria customised 
for each department. Each criteria 
is quantifiable in financial terms. 
The best team is selected after 
progressing with quarterly reviews to 
provide feedback. The winning team 
gets a valuable prize and is provided 
with recognition. 

� Health and safety audit, improving a 
healthy and safe work environment 
using health and safety audits, a 
team is formulated incorporating 
associates of each department 
(including few heads of departments) 
and made responsible for conducting 
safety and health audits after being 
trained on the same to provide the 
management with valuable input 
for improvements, so that the 
management gets an actual picture 
of employee expectations for a safe 
working environment.

� Knowledge facilitating hub, this 
is a formal and scheduled training 
programme for newly recruited 
machine operators who have 
no experience in cable machine 
operations. A systematic training plan 
guides participants for one month 
including orientation, socialisation, 
and technical knowhow along with 
on-the-job training. Supervisors 
of the production department, 
designated team leaders and heads 
of production department act as 
facilitators. It serves as a smooth 
entry into machine operations, 
helping the learning curve, promotes 
proper integration to company 
culture and serves as an in-built 
training school. 

Occupational Health and 
Safety 
Sierra Cables PLC provides a safe and 
healthy work environment with policies 
in place to prevent injuries and minimise 
losses through responsible behaviour. 
The health and safety of employees is 
of vital importance and during the year 
under review, the Company focused 
on bringing down the percentage of 
accidents by 62%, moving rapidly 
towards achieving a zero accident rate. 
The concern for occupational safety 
is cascaded down from the Board and 
management teams, therefore intensive 
training is provided to underline 
responsible practices and safety gear 
etc. Only 5 accidents were reported in 
2019/20 as compared to 13 in 2018/19 
and 18 in 2017/18. A greater thrust is 
being placed on improving this rate 
down to zero accidents in the coming 
year. The Company is ISO 45001:2018 
certified which reflects its commitment 
to provide a safe and healthy workplace.
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Grievance Handling 
The open-door policy practised at Sierra 
Cables PLC ensures that associates 
have the freedom to approach their 
supervisors and superiors at any time 
to raise their concerns. While this policy 
promotes the early settlement of many 
concerns, a formal mechanism is in 
place for the escalation of grievances. 
This involves a step-by-step process, 
whereby an employee may escalate a 
grievance from his own supervisor, to 
the supervisor’s superior and then to the 
Managing Director. 

Staff Welfare Policy 
A host of staff welfare measures are on 
place to ensure employees feel valued. 
For example, death donations are 
extended for staff and family members, 
with all permanent employees within 
Sierra Cables PLC contributing to this 
fund. Further, the Welfare Society 
distributes stationary and toys annually 
for employees’ children. The in-built 
roster system pervades a flexible work 
environment for machine operators and 
ensures work-life balance. The Company 
concludes every year with an annual 
staff trip to promote rest, recreation 
and camaraderie. Moreover, there is 
an insurance policy in place to assist 
associates at the time of hospitalisation, 
and for medical bill reimbursements and 
24-hour critical illness coverage. 

Future Outlook 
In order to achieve the objectives of 
the Group’s branding strategy, the 
HR strategy is aimed at building an 
entrepreneurial culture by making 
associates feel that they are no longer 
employees but partners in business 
who hold the potential to add value to 
product development and business 
improvement. In our strategic approach 
to equipping the Group with the 
knowledge-based workforce to achieve 
its ambitious goals, we are looking at 
extending multi-disciplinary training 
for employees by understanding their 
competency level and strengths and 
weaknesses, while ensuring upskilling 
activities take place regularly as a key 
talent retention strategy.

Human Capital Contd.
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Social and Relationship Capital

Management Approach 
As a well-respected corporate entity, 
Sierra Cables PLC nurtures all its 
relationships with equal care to ensure 
that any third party - customer, supplier 
or business partner - that comes into 
contact with the company cherishes 
the experience. The Company’s product 
portfolio spans over 700 products 
spread across 13 product categories to 
meet evolving needs of customers. As a 
Group, it takes care to manufacture only 
socially and environmentally responsible 
products to minimise any negative 
impact. Sierra Cables remains flexible 
in order to accommodate customer 
requirements beyond the standard 
product categories to deliver added 
value.

Key customer segments:

 � Projects Market which caters to 
Apartments, Hotels, Commercial 
Buildings, Housing projects and Mega 
infrastructure development projects;

 � Dealer Market which caters to 
Local distribution channels, Agents, 
Distributors and dealers;

 � Institutional category which caters 
to Government tenders – such as 
Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB) for 
national electrification projects - and 
Telecommunication providers

 � Exports market which spans more 
than 10 global destinations including 
the Maldives, Ethiopia, Kenya, 
Rwanda, Seychelles, Fiji and Vietnam. 
The Company continues to seek 
emerging opportunities in these 
export markets to further entrench 
its presence. 

Customers 
The Company fosters positive customer 
relationships by promoting quality, 
excellent customer service and loyalty for 
long-term sustainability of relationships. 
Significant emphasis is placed on 
certain aspects of customer relationship 
management, which are considered key 
drivers of customer loyalty: 

Customer Satisfaction 

The Company remains focused on 
eliciting feedback across all its customer 
segments in order to improve user 
experience. By ensuring its products 

and services exceed customer 
expectations, it has been able to carve 
out a greater share of the market during 
the year under consideration and win 
new business. Customer feedback is 
recorded formally and solicited monthly 
from a sample client pool. This practice 
has helped strengthen customer 
relations whilst ensuring the Company 
can feel the market pulse at all times. 
Set guidelines are followed as part 
of the process of resolving customer 
complaints.

Customer Data Privacy 

Customer information is deemed 
confidential and not disclosed to 
external parties. If for some reason it 
has to be shared with statutory bodies, 
customer permission is obtained. During 
the financial year under consideration, 
no incident of breach of customer 
privacy or loss of customer data was 
reported. 

Product Safety and Quality 
Assurance 

Sierra Cables PLC ensures safety of 
customers by paying close attention 
to product quality. Its products are 
manufactured using the highest quality 
raw material in compliance with the 
required industry standards, including 
ISO 9001 Quality Management 
System; ISO 14001, ISO 45001, SLS 
and International Standards; and test 
certifications from laboratories in 
Singapore, India and France. The list 
of certifications are detailed in the 
Intellectual Capital section on pages 
39 to 40. All products manufactured by 
Sierra Cables comply with statutory and 
legal requirements.

Fairness and Transparency 

The Company’s products are offered 
only after evaluating customer needs 
and even customised on request to 
ensure customer satisfaction and 
adherence to required quality standards. 
Total transparency is followed when 
it comes to product features and in 
providing the necessary literature and 
knowledge to customers in order for 
them to optimise usage. As a rule, it 
ensures fairness in the treatment of all 
stakeholders including shareholders, 
employees, communities and other 
stakeholders. 

Anti-Competitive behavior 

The Company actively discourages 
anti-competitive behavior. Pricing of 
products is in line with the country’s 
monetary policy and market trends. The 
Group did not incure any fines or attract 
penalties for anti-competitive, anti-trust 
or monopolistic practices in the year 
under review. 

Anti-Corruption 

Sierra Cables PLC has zero tolerance for 
corruption in any form. The Company 
remains compliant with industry rules 
and regulations that are critical to the 
practice of ethical work procedures; 
hence, it adheres to all required industry 
measures including ISO system 
certification audits and SLS product 
certification audits. Documentation of 
all functions is monitored by internal 
auditors. Further, CCTV surveillance is 
maintained all around the factory and 
office premises to ensure no fraudulent 
activity takes place. Overall sound 
internal controls are in place to ensure 
ethical manufacturing practices. There 
were no reports of risks and/or incidents 
relating to corrupt practices during the 
year under review. 

Product Packaging and Labelling 

In order to exert end-to-end control, 
packaging for all products are done 
in-house with high quality packaging 
materials. The heavy cables are wound 
around wooden drums, which are reused 
many times over. This reduces the 
need for disposal of packaging material 
and demonstrates our sustainability 
commitment. 

Customer Health and Safety 

It is the company’s primary duty to 
manufacture products that are safe 
and free from harmful substances that 
could prove dangerous for customers. 
The purity of raw materials is ensured 
through strict procurement rules. 
All products undergo a megger and 
continuity test while heavy cables 
undertake high voltage testing. Sierra 
Cables is the market leader for LSHF 
(Low Smoke Halogen Free cable) and 
FR Cables for greater safety. We are 
planning to enhance the portfolio further 
with similar unique and innovative 
products. Further, the Company uses 
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only 99.97% or above pure copper and 
virgin PVC for prevent the expansion 
of fire, with 100% inspection at each 
stage to ensure compliance with 
environmental, quality and safety 
standards. 

Customer Loyalty

Electricians are key customers for the 
company’s range of cables and in order 
to engage this segment, Sierra Cables 
PLC conducts seminars which not only 
refresh and upgrade their technical 
knowledge, but also provide information 
about the product range offered by 
the Company. A point scheme is also 
offered to hardware stores that can 
be redeemed later on in the form of 
attractive rewards to drive greater 
loyalty.

Marketing Communications 

During the year under review, greater 
emphasis was placed on brand building 
and strengthening relationships 
with customers through sales 
representatives and via social media. 
The Company’s sales and marketing 
team covers the entire country except 
the Northern region which is managed 
by a distributor. Going ahead, greater 
attention will be focused on driving one-
on-one sales. 

Suppliers & Business Partners 
Management Approach

Sierra Cables PLC’s business processes 
embed ethical procurement practices 
whilst enhancing company performance 
through cost effective sourcing 
of quality products. Our approach 
demonstrates our commitment to 
conducting business in an open, ethical 
and transparent manner, qualities that 
are valued by our business partners.

Suppliers

Since the majority of raw materials 
used in the production of cables are 
imported, the company has a strong 
portfolio of suppliers amongst countries 
in the immediate vicinity of Sri Lanka 
to reduce the carbon footprint by 
‘near sourcing’. As a rule, the Company 
ensures a streamlined process such as 
timely completion of documentation, 
continually updating suppliers with 
industry quality requirements and 
market trends; and instructing them on 
ways to minimise cost. The Company 
also monitors suppliers for quality 
adherence and quality of raw material 
along with timely delivery. Laboratory 
testing of samples of materials is 
a critical stage in the raw material 
inspection process for the Company.

Business Partners

The company has to maintain robust 
relations with banks, government 
regulatory bodies and other institutions 
for streamlined operations. Sierra 
Cables PLC ensures timely settlement 
of loan installments, efficient 
documentation and ethical compliance 
with standards and certifications as 
per the various government regulators. 
As a responsible corporate citizen, the 
company ensures all tax and statutory 
payments are made in a timely manner. 
The Company has also acquired the 
necessary Environment Protection 
License as endorsement of its 
conformity to environmental standards.

Community 
As a Company that operates in a 
community, Sierra Cables PLC remains 
acutely aware of its responsibility 
towards the local community. As a 
longstanding entity, we have built 
strong relationships with surrounding 
communities and engaged in 
sustainable projects for the benefit 
of customers, the community and the 
environment. 

Engaging with the Community 
around the Factory 

Engaging with the community residing 
in the immediate vicinity of the factory 
is critical for the smooth functioning of 
operations. As a result, the Company 
supports local community events such 
as religious and cultural festivals. In 
2019/20, the Company donated dry 
rations to needy families around the 
factory in the midst of the COVID-19 
crisis. Further, the factory attempts to 
extend employment opportunities to 
youth from neighbouring communities, 
thereby having a positive economic 
impact by empowering local 
communities. 

Way Forward 
After recording a strong financial 
performance in 2019/20, the company 
looks ahead with optimism with a focus 
on seizing emerging opportunities, 
strengthening market intelligence 
capabilities and driving its process 
automation and digitalisation journey 
further to expand its customer base. 
Sierra Cables PLC looks ahead towards 
innovating sustainable solutions to 
maintain its leadership position in the 
market and to strengthen relationships 
with business partners.

Social and Relationship Capital Contd.
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Intellectual Capital

Sierra Cables 
PLC’s enduring 
presence in the cable 
manufacturing sector 
of Sri Lanka for the 
past 21 years has given 
it a unique advantage 
in terms of industry 
knowledge and 
brand reputation as a 
capable and reliable 
manufacturer. This 
tacit knowledge drives 
the Intellectual Capital 
of the company through 
people and processes. 

As an established manufacturer, its 
robust reputation and comprehensive 
portfolio of wire and cable products are 
strong and irreplaceable assets that 
represent its intellectual property. This 
also includes brand equity, trademark, 
knowledge and inventions, quality 
certifications and the advanced IT 
platform. All these facets lend the 
organisation its corporate identity and 
contribute towards a knowledge-based 
culture. Sierra Cables PLC consistently 
invests in assets that enhance its 
corporate reputation. 

Brand Value 
Intellectual capital encompasses the 
intangibles associated with brand 
and reputation that are critical to 
the organisation to gain significant 
competitive advantage. A strong brand-
building strategy has helped enhance 
brand identity and brand visibility of 
Sierra Cables. The company leverages 
on showcasing the corporate brand logo 
at strategic touch points and locations 
and supports events which help brand 
interaction with customer segments. 

Elevating customer engagement, the 
Company operates an Electrician’s 
club which provides technical training 
to electricians and updates their 
knowledge about products, industry 
trends and safety measures through 

dynamic training sessions. Sierra Cables 
also inspires the next generation by 
offering internships and factory visits for 
students. The Company regularly takes 
part in local and international trade fairs 
to meet and network with existing and 
prospective customers. 

Moreover, its sale force fulfils its 
responsibility for communicating brand 
related information to customers and 
business partners. During the year, 
marketing efforts were accelerated, 
while all mandatory industry quality 
certifications were renewed. Backed 
by an island-wide distribution network, 
there is ample brand recognition 
amongst relevant customer segments 
across the country. Sierra Cables 
PLC has delivered a robust financial 
performance in the year under review 
and this positive development can be 
attributed to its brand equity.  

Ethics and Integrity 
At Sierra Cables PLC, ethical practices 
are promoted ahead of any other 
consideration and it is this conviction 
that has driven customer loyalty and 

helped enhance brand reputation. The 
company has in place systems and 
processes to ensure greater value is 
delivered to customers by practising 
innovation. The company operates at 
the highest pinnacles of integrity by 
upholding partnerships and agreements 
and fulfilling deliveries in a timely 
manner and in full compliance with the 
highest quality standards.

Sierra Cables upholds local and 
international quality certifications which 
differentiates its offering from others in 
the industry. All products are made using 
the highest quality raw material and in 
compliance with the required industry 
standards including ISO 9001 and ISO 
14001 and ISO 45001. Sierra Cables’ 
products are in compliance with United 
Kingdom (BS), Australian (AS) New 
Zealand (NZS), France (NFC), Japanese 
(JIS), American (ASTM) and International 
Electro technical Commission (IEC) 
standards. The company also adheres 
to Sri Lanka Standards Institutions’ 
SLS 412, 733, 750, 1186, 1504 and 
1542 standards and is certified with the 
Builder Green Certification.

INTELLECTUAL
CAPITAL

Systems &
Processes

Our Brand
Tacit knowledge/ 

Capacity for 
innovation

Organisational
Capital
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Significantly, Sierra Cables PLC is 
one of two companies in Sri Lanka 
that completes the ‘Compulsory 
Test Report’ that is requested by 
government institutions. This third-
party accreditation test report, obtained 
from LCIE laboratory in France, 
further strengthens the company’s 
ability to obtain contracts from varied 
government entities. 

Infusing Technology 
The ongoing upgrading of the existing 
Navision ERP system is expected to 
functionalised during 2020. Immediate 
benefits are expected after the 
implementation, especially, in terms 
of improving data analysis capability. 
Further, the system will integrate all 
operations across the value chain, 
thereby, streamlining the processes, 
ensuring the accuracy of costing, 
monitoring and controlling products 
and gaining competitive advantage. The 
introduction of an Artificial Intelligence 
(AI) backed system is being monitored 
in the production stage as an initial 
experiment. Other manufacturing 
processes are being steadily digitalised.

Sierra Cables’ IT policy covers the 
most critical aspects of Information 
Technology (IT) governance, which 
includes network security plans, disaster 
recovery plans, business continuity 
plans, data classification and retention 
plans. In line with its ethical standards, 
company installs only licensed software 
in all computer devices at the Head 
Office.

Performance Culture 
The organisation’s corporate culture 
represents shared values, assumptions, 
norms, beliefs and strategies. Shared 
knowledge amongst employees is 
a valuable resource that impacts 
the growth of the organisation and 
the employees’ career progression 
and satisfaction in the workplace. 
As a result, the organisation places 
the highest priority on inculcating 
a knowledge-based culture by 
providing corporate trainings both 
internal and external and development 
opportunities for enhancing skills, 
encouraging a learning culture for 
better employee engagement and 

knowledge dissemination, and by 
promoting a dynamic work culture. 
Our ethics framework promotes a 
high performance corporate culture to 
encourage employees to reach their full 
potential. 

Awards & Recognition 
Sierra Cables’ sustained efforts to build 
a distinctive brand have attracted many 
awards and accolades. In 2019, the 
company won the coveted Silver award 
in the ‘Manufacturing companies with 
turnover up to Rs. 5 Bn category at the 
prestigious 55th CA Sri Lanka Annual 
Report awards. This award is significant 
because some of Sri Lanka’s leading 
companies were also competing in the 
same category, however Sierra Cables 
PLC’s annual report was awarded for the 
superlative quality of its reporting. In the 
past, the company has earned a bouquet 
of awards, namely, Bronze Award in 
Extra Large category at NCE Export 
Awards (2017) amongst others. 

Memberships of Industry 
Associations 
The company leverages its reputation 
for innovation and its pioneering status 
to influence opinion on local industry 
platforms such as the Ceylon Chamber 
of Commerce since 2010 as Patron 
Member, National Chamber of Exporters, 
The Ceylon National Chamber of 
Industries, Sri Lanka Chamber of Small 
& Medium Industries and The Plastics 
& Rubber Institute. Sierra Cables also 
collaborates with international bodies 
such as the International Chamber 
of Commerce, European Chamber of 
Commerce, Germany Business Council, 
Sri Lanka-Australia-New Zealand 
Business Council and Sri Lanka-China 
Business Council as member.

Intellectual Capital Contd.
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Natural Capital

Our operations could potentially have 
an impact on raw materials, energy, 
water, waste and effluents and our 
carbon footprint, which is why the 
Group as a whole has established its 
strategic priorities, targets and the 
actions necessary to achieve its defined 
sustainability standards, articulated 
in the Environmental Management 
Policy. The Natural Capital explains in 
detail the aspects of our value chain 
that we monitor and against which we 
benchmark our performance year after 
year for sustainability manufacturing. 

Environmental Management 
Policy 
Sierra Cables assesses the social and 
environmental impact of its operations 
through the prism of its environmental 
policy, which in turn helps to measure 
the company’s environmental 
performances. Some of the key 
initiatives taken by the company are:

 � Optimising the use of raw materials, 
energy and natural resources;

 � Research and Development to save 
energy and water cost; 

 � Identifying waste streams and 
implementing measures to minimise 
generation in order to reduce 
environmental pollution; 

 � Communicating this policy 
effectively to employees, general 
public and other stakeholders; 

 � Providing necessary training 
to create awareness of green 
responsibilities of employees; 

Our operations across the company 
and manufacturing facility are carried 
out with minimum negative impact 
on the environment. The Company 
also complies with the necessary 
environment-related legal requirements. 
During the year under consideration, 
there were zero instances of non-
compliance against environmental laws 
and regulations.

Materials Management 
The Company utilises a variety of 
input materials which account for a 
significant proportion of the costs. 
Multiple measures and actionable plans 
are in place within the sector to ensure 
the efficient and responsible use of 
raw materials. To improve the quality of 
raw materials, we monitor our suppliers 
regularly and review new and existing 
suppliers, examine samples and select 
the best quality materials. Responsible 
procurement policies are in place to 
source from reliable suppliers. Quality 
checks from the raw material stage 
through the entire production life-cycle 
till market are conducted. Furthermore, 
frequency of final inspection has 
also been increased to ensure quality 
consistency. 

Water Resource Management 
Various programmes are conducted 
to reduce water consumption for 
both production and non-production 
purposes, which have delivered 
substantial savings on water usage. The 
key achievement of this programme 
during 2019/20 was recording 14% 
savings for non-machine purposes. 

Despite greater production activity 
during the year under review, average 
water consumption for machine 
purposes reduced in FY2019/20.

The chart below tracks the positive 
trend over last three years for 
machine purpose water consumption. 
Production value of Rs. 1,167,000 per 
cubic meter increased to Rs. 1,830,000 
per cubic meter between 2018 to 2020.
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Rainwater harvesting is also being 
successfully implemented across 
the factory premises. Besides this, 
the Company continues taking water 
consumption readings for non-
production utilisation: promoting 
environmentally-conscious behaviour 
amongst employees especially when 
it comes to water conservation; 
minimising water leaks and optimising 
water usage by upgrading systems and 
processes.

Waste Management 
 � Waste Reduction of XLPE – The 

Company has successfully shifted 
from using grafted polymer to Base 
Polymer, thus significantly reducing 
wastage generated in the process of 
color change, changeovers, as well 
as machine cleaning frequency. The 
use of base polymer has improved 
processing ability significantly. 
The shift has delivered an overall 
reduction in wastage and savings 
in material consumption and labour 
hours;

As a company engaged in manufacturing 
cables, we make a significant contribution to 
building infrastructure for the development 
of communities. At the same time, the 
company remains cognisant of the impact 
that its manufacturing operations have on the 
environment, which is why Sierra Cables PLC 
has articulated the minimum standard that 
should be adopted for managing environmental 
impacts while striving to improve its sustainability 
performance annually. 
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Natural Capital Contd.

 � The Company has adopted an 
environmentally-friendly wooden 
drum reusage programme to reduce 
wood consumption. Our cables are 
wrapped around wooden drums 
and we have a system of collecting 
the drums from sites for reuse as a 
service to customers; 

 � Compacting Waste - The Company 
is recycling waste by baling it into 
blocks to use as paving bricks and for 
other purposes. The baling also helps 
to compact waste and saves storage 
space. 

Bio-diversity 
Sierra Cables PLC does not pose a direct 
threat to any natural habitats, fauna or 
flora. However, the Company remains 
mindful of conserving natural resources 
while educating employees on the 
importance of protecting biodiversity. 
No environmental grievances, monetary 
fines or non-monetary sanctions were 
encountered by environmental laws and 
regulations. 

Compliance 
Sierra Cables PLC has obtained the 
following certifications in endorsement 
of its conformity to environmental 
standards:

 � Green Certificate by Ceylon Institute 
of Builders 

 � ISO 14001 

Energy Management 
Energy consumption is constantly 
monitored and a variety of innovative 
solutions have been pioneered by the 
Company such as:

 � Recovering energy through micro 
machines by modifying the steam 
recovery process which delivers 
enhanced efficiency; 

 � Providing solar generated electricity 
for the factory and office premises 
while providing additional electricity 
to the national grid;

 � Reducing power consumption of the 
lighting system by cleaning existing 
polycarbonate sheets and increasing 
the number of sheets; using natural 
sunlight in the warehouse; replacing 
CFL bulbs in the plant with LED bulbs;

 � Optimising machine runs by 
encouraging machine runs at off-
peak times and using the interlocking 
system during peak hours to prevent 
two machines operating at the same 
time; 

 � Optimising compressed air system by 
introducing ring blowers in reducing 
compressed air. Additionally, water 
lines (by fixing water filters and 
drainers) and air lines (by reducing 
the compressed air leakages) are 
maintained without leaks. As a result, 
from July to March, there was a 10% 
saving of compressed air utilisation.

 � Optimising energy consumed by 
air conditioning by replacing old air 
conditioning units with energy saving 
inverter technology; running ACs at 
room temperature; adding ‘On-off’ 
timer for AC machines on automatic 
mode and running ACs with power 
generated by the Ceylon Electricity 
Board (CEB) after disconnecting 
them from generators;

 � While manufacturing customised 
cables for specific lengths, 
generators are used so that in case 
power supply is disrupted, there is 
no requirement to restart production 
as this generates higher energy 
cost and affects the final cost of 
the product. We are in the process 
of installing UPS for the extruder 
machines, so that during sudden 
power cuts, until generators are 
fired up, there is ample energy to run 
the machines to ensure continuous 
manufacturing. 

Way Forward 
Valuing natural capital will help future-
proof the business. It is evident that 
businesses that are truly sustainable 
are the ones that place the least burden 
on the environment and society, and 
Sierra Cables PLC has historically 
been conscious of reducing its carbon 
footprint. For example, the investment 
made in the 100 KW Solar project in 
2017/18 as a pilot project delivered 
savings in energy cost and has shown 
promise to become a new business 
line for the Company in the arena of 
renewable power generation. As a 
result, a decision was taken to invest in a 
solar power generation project of 1 MW, 
with commercial operation of the new 
project commencing in December 2019. 
Further investments in solar power 
generation projects are in the pipeline. 

With each passing year, Sierra Cables 
PLC’s systems and processes are 
being enhanced to ensure that while 
its production output is expanding, 
the company is reducing its energy 
consumption and waste generated, 
to reduce any adverse impact on the 
environment. Ultimately, Sierra Cables 
PLC remains committed to integrating 
economic, social and environmental 
responsibility into every aspect of its 
operations.
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Company managed to maintain a positive trend in approaching the target of 
an average production value not less than Rs. 1000 per 1 kwhs of Electricity.
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The Board of Directors’ Profile

W.A.P. Perera  - Chairman

Non-Executive Director

Mr. W.A.P. Perera is a founder Director of Sierra Construction 
(Private) Limited and serves as the Chairman of Sierra Cables 
PLC. He accounts for over 38 years of experience in the 
construction industry. 

D.S. Panditha  - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Executive Non-Independent Director 

Mr. D.S. Panditha is the Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer of Sierra Cables PLC. He is a member of Institute of 
Incorporated Engineers, Life member of Sri Lanka Institute of 
Marketing and also a fellow member of Chartered Institute of 
Professional Managers. At present, Mr. D.S. Panditha is a Vice 
Chairman of Ceylon National Chamber of Industries Sri Lanka. 
He has over 45 years experience in Cable and Pipe industry. 

Ms. G.S.M. Irugalbandara 
Non-Executive Director

Ms. G.S.M. Irugalbandara was a Director of Alucop Cables. She 
has an MBA from the University of Southern Queensland. She 
has been attached to KPMG as a Tax Manager prior to joining 
Alucop Cables. She now serves as a Non-Executive Director at 
Sierra Cables PLC.

E.A.D.T.B. Perera 
Non-Executive Director

Mr. E.A.D.T.B. Perera is a founder Director of Sierra Construction 
(Private) Limited with 38 years of experience in the construction 
industry.

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane is a Senior Professor in Civil Engineering 
and immediate past Vice- Chancellor of University of Moratuwa. He 
is an academic, a researcher and a consultant with experience and 
expertise in the broad areas of construction management, project 
management, technology management and entrepreneurship. He 
has extensive experience in organisation leadership and corporate 
governance. He has been a past Director General of the National 
Science Foundation and has served/is serving in governing boards 
of several public and private sector corporate entities.

He has a BSc Eng in Civil Engineering degree with first class honors, 
University of Moratuwa, MSc in Construction, Loughborough 
University of Technology, United Kingdom and a PhD from the 
same University. He is a Past President and a Fellow of the 
Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka; a Fellow of National Academy 
of Sciences Sri Lanka; a Fellow of Institute of Project Managers; 
life member of Sri Lanka Association for Advancement of Science 
and a founding member of the Society of Structural Engineers 
Sri Lanka. He is also a Graduate Member of Sri Lanka Institute of 
Directors.

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe is a Chartered Electrical Engineer 
by profession with a BSc Eng (Hon) degree in Electrical & 
Electronics from the University of Peradeniya. He is a holder 
of an MSc Degree in electrical power transmission and 
distribution from the University of Manchester Institute of 
Science & Technology, UK and a MA Degree in Economics. 
He was a former General Manager of Central Engineering and 
Consultancy Bureau.

M.N. Gunasekera 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. M.N. Gunasekera was a former Chief Executive Officer / 
Director of Shaw Wallace & Hedges PLC, and its Subsidiary 
and Associate Companies. He counts over 41 years of work 
experience, out of which, 34 years have been with the Shaw 
Wallace Group and 12 years as the Chief Executive Officer. 
He has extensive experience in the total finance function 
and legal matters, specialising in taxation and overall general 
management.

He was a former Council Member and President of the Sri 
Lanka Institute of Taxation. He is a Fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka; Fellow of the Institute 
of Certified Management Accountants of Sri Lanka and 
Fellow of the Sri Lanka Institute of Taxation. He has followed a 
Management Development Programme at the Cranfield School 
of Management, Bedford, England.

Ms. S.N. Lokuge 
Non-Executive Director

Ms. S.N. Lokuge is successfully completed her Master Degree 
in International Business (Deakin University) where as she has 
earned her Bachelors of Commerce degree from Swinburne 
University of Technology in Australia, with a Graduate 
Certificate in Business Administration from the Swinburne 
University of Technology. 

In addition, she serves as a Director for the International Tertiary 
Education Campus (INTEC) Asia; Director, NNL Holdings 
(Private) Limited; Deputy COO, Sierra Construction Road 
Division; Alternative Director for Sierra Construction; Alternative 
Director for Sierra Holdings and Director of Sansun Boutique 
Hotel Limited.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance 
is a system of rules, 
policies and practices 
that dictate how the 
company’s Board of 
Directors manage and 
oversee the operations 
of a company. 

The responsibilities of the Board include 
setting the company’s strategic aims, 
providing the leadership to put them 
into effect, supervising the management 
of the business and reporting to 
shareholders on their stewardship. 

Since governance refers specifically 
to the set of rules, controls, policies, 
and resolutions put in place to dictate 
corporate behaviour, the Board of 
Directors is pivotal in governance, 
and is the primary direct stakeholder 
influencing corporate governance. 
The Board of Directors must ensure 
that the company’s corporate 
governance policies incorporate the 
corporate strategy, risk management, 
accountability, transparency, and ethical 
business practices. The Board’s role is 
to provide entrepreneurial leadership 
of the company within a framework 
of prudent and effective controls, 
which enables risk to be assessed and 
managed. Towards this, the Board of 
Directors must hold regular meetings of 
the Board and Sub Committees.

Further, the Board also ensures that the 
company adheres to guidelines set out 
by regulatory bodies and the company’s 
code of conduct. The purpose of 
corporate governance is to facilitate 
effective, entrepreneurial and prudent 
management that can deliver long term 
success. 

As a responsible corporate citizen, 
Sierra Cables PLC maintains the highest 
standards of corporate governance to 
ensure transparency and accountability 
along with smooth functioning of the 
company. The Board manages corporate 
governance in compliance with rules 
and regulations laid out by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants Sri Lanka, 
Securities & Exchange Commission and 
the Companies Act of 2007. 

At Sierra Cables PLC, we have a strong 
set of principles of governance that 
guides the Board in pursuit of their 
duties whilst paying attention to 
environmental and social stewardship. 
This approach has led to good 
management practices that contribute 
towards making Sierra Cables PLC one 
of the most admired manufacturing 
entities in Sri Lanka. The Board of 
Directors and management continue 
to evolve governance to reflect 
changing needs to create wealth for the 
shareholders and the society.  

Shareholders

External Auditors

Non Executive 
Directors

Executive 
Director

Non Executive 
Independent

Directors

Nominations
Committee

Board Related Party 
Transactions Review 

Committee

Board 
Remuneration 

Committee

Board Audit  
Committee

Internal 
Auditors

Managing 
Director

Top Management

Board 
of Directors
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The Board Balance 
The responsibility of the Board of 
Directors is to operate the Company 
by acting in a manner that reflects 
the best interest of the Company. 
Nine Directors were appointed as the 
Board of Directors. Out of the Nine, 
Eight are Non-Executive Directors. 
Three out of the Eight Non-Executive 
Directors are Independent Directors. 
All Directors are veterans in their 
fields such as engineering, law, 
construction, marketing, finance and 
public administration. Their years of 
experience are the reason for the 
continual success of the Company.

Despite the varying levels of 
shareholding possessed by the 
Directors, equality is a major fact that is 
prevalent at all times within the Board. (It 
is not compromised with the dominance 
of one or group of Directors when 
decision making comes.)

Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer 
The Board is led by a Non-Executive 
Chairman. The Chairman’s leadership 
will take the Company to unattainable 
heights with high strands of efficiency, 
effectiveness and professionalism.

In an ever-changing environment, such 
a leadership is the core in directing and 
controlling the organisation for better 
performance. The CEO on the other 
hand handles a totally different set of 
duties and responsibilities. The CEO will 
contemplate improving the shareholder 
value by formulating strategy, evaluating 
its viability and implementing them to 
reach the desired objectives.

Board Meetings 
Board meetings are scheduled to 
be held every two months. In these 
meetings the Board considers the 
performance of the Company from 
many aspects. The monthly financial 
performance, selling and distribution, 
key projects, investment opportunities, 
key risks faced, appointments, etc. 
are some of the areas thoroughly 
considered. This is also one of the main 
controlling techniques of the Board.

Responsibilities of the Board 
The Board is responsible for :

1. Enhancing shareholder wealth.

2. Planning and guiding the business 
towards meeting the set objectives.

3. Ensuring the interests of all 
stakeholders is considered in 
corporate decisions.

4. Formulating, communicating, and 
monitoring business policies, overall 
strategies and corporate goals to 
ensure sustained growth.

5. Assessing and approving the 
implementation of management and 
internal control systems.

6. Ensuring the compliance with all 
statutory and other obligations 
being met.

Audit Committee 
The audit committee mainly looks at 
legal and financial compliance of the 
Company. Both these areas will cover 
the accounting practices, financial 
control, risk management, etc. In order 
to look into these matters responsibly, 
the Board has appointed three 
Non-Executive Independent Directors. 
They are:

M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman  
Non-Executive Independent Director

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

The committee has met four times during 
the year. The meetings are attended by 
the Managing Director, Deputy Chief 
Executive Officer and  Finance Manager 
by invitation and other Directors and 
Executives when required. The Chairman 
of the committee comes with a vast 
experience. Mr. M.N. Gunasekera is 
also a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Duties and Responsibilities 
Audit
1 Recommend the Board of the 

appointment and removal of 
external auditors and review their 
terms of engagement.

2. Determine with the external 
auditors, the audit plan and 
scope and their authority and 
responsibilities.

3. Oversee and appraise the quality of 
audits conducted and monitor their 
effectiveness.

4. Review external audit reports and 
recommendations and ensure 
appropriate management response 
to recommendations.

5. Monitor the relationship between 
management and the external 
auditors.

6. Review and assess the independence 
of the external auditor. 

Accounting
1. Monitor and review the adequacy of 

the Company’s accounting system 
and internal control environment.

2. Review annual and semi-
annual Financial Statements 
of the Company, and make 
recommendations to the Board.

3. Determine Company specific 
accounting policies within the ambit 
of the accounting standards.

4. Review significant transactions 
which are not a normal part of the 
Company’s business.

Risk Management 
1. Identify and assess areas of 

risks which might impact on the 
Company and research appropriate 
mitigations.

2. Monitor, review and evaluate the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Company’s risk management controls, 
both internally and externally.

3. Evaluate the effectiveness of the 
Company’s business continuity 
plans.

4. Evaluate the adequacy of the 
Company’s insurance covers at least 
annually.

The Audit Committee has recommended 
to the Board of Directors that Messrs 
KPMG, Chartered Accountants to 
appoint as Auditors for the year ending 
31st March 2020 subject to the approval 
of the Shareholders at the next Annual 
General Meeting. 
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Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee 
works to attract and retain, Directors 
and executives for the Company. 
Also through the decisions of the 
Remuneration Committee it is 
expected to obtain the highest level 
of contribution for the achievement of 
goals and objectives of the Company. 
Thereby it expects to create a good 
value for shareholders.

The Sierra Cables PLC’s Remuneration 
Committee consists of three Non-
Executive Independent Directors as 
follows;

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Chairman
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

M.N. Gunasekera
Non-Executive Independent Director

The main responsibilities of the 
Remuneration Committee are;

1. To review and approve the 
Remuneration policy of the Company.

2. To advice on structuring 
Remuneration packages that enable 
the Company to attract, retain and 
motivate high caliber individuals 
with the requisite skills.

3. To recommend to the Board of 
Directors the Remuneration to be 
paid to the Executive Directors, 
and senior executives, their pre-
requisites and allowances.

Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee 
The members of the Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee are;

M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman
Non-Executive Independent Director

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

The main responsibilities of the Related 
Party Transactions Review Committee 
are as follows;

Authorise and review all Related Party 
Transactions to ensure compliance 
with the Listing Rules, compliance with 
stock exchange and legal requirements, 
concerning the respective transactions. 

In the event a Related Party Transaction 
will be ongoing (recurrent transactions), 
the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee has established guidelines 
for the senior management to follow 
in respect of ongoing dealings with the 
Related Parties. 

Thereafter, the Committee on an 
annual basis, would review and assess 
ongoing relationships with the related 
parties to determine whether they are 
in compliance with the Committee’s 
guidelines and that the Related Party 
Transactions remain appropriate.

Name of the Director
Board 

Meetings

Board Audit
 Committee 

 Meetings

Board
  Remuneration

Committee
Meetings

Board 
Related Party 

Transaction 
Review 

Committee 
Meetings

Executive Directors

D. S. Panditha (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer) 8/8

Non-Executive Directors

W. A. P. Perera (Chairman) 8/8

Ms. G. S.M. Irugalbandara 6/8

E. A. D. T. B. Perera 5/8

Ms. S.N. Lokuge 4/8

Non-Executive Independent Directors

Prof. A. K. W. Jayawardane 8/8 4/4 1/1 4/4

Eng. B. W. N. Rupasinghe 6/8 2/4 1/1 2/4

M. N. Gunasekera 8/8 4/4 1/1 4/4

Dates of Meetings

01.04.2019 27.05.2019 10.03.2020 27.05.2019

28.05.2019 09.08.2019 09.08.2019

30.07.2019 13. 1 1 .2019 13. 1 1 .2019

13.08.2019 07.02.2020 07.02.2020

24.09.2019

13. 1 1 .2019

09.01.2020

07.02.2020
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Internal Control 
The Internal Control system 
encompasses the financial, operational, 
risk management and regulatory 
compliance of the Company. 
Maintaining effective control is vital 
as it is the responsibility of the Board. 
All the sectors have different controls 
developed uniquely for themselves. 

Their discipline and commitment 
will ensure correct processes are 

maintained within the Company. 
The effectiveness of these controls 
is reviewed regularly through the 
Management Review meeting and 
Board Meetings. One of the main items 
heavily discussed in every Management 
Review meeting is the Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI). 

It summarises the performance of 
every department of the Company on 
a monthly basis. Even though all these 
controls are in place we cannot reject 

the fact that exceptions can appear in an 
unexpected manner. Therefore, either 
through preventive or corrective actions 
such situations should be managed. 

However, the ultimate expectations 
thus will be to develop and maintain 
accurate processes, information and 
customer satisfaction. Simply this will 
ensure maximisation of shareholder 
wealth and the quality of the Company’s 
performance.

Reference to the 
SEC & ICASL 
Code, CSE Listing 
Rules Compliance Details of Compliance

A. Company
A.1. Director  
(The Board)

A . 1 /7.10.1(a)/ 
7.10.2(a) and 7.10.3 
(c-d)

Complied The Board of Directors currently consist of Eight (08) Directors 
including the Chairman.

The day to day monitoring and operations of the organisation has been 
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) governed by policies, 
procedures and authority by the Board of Directors.

The Board is accountable to the stakeholders of the Company to 
ensure that the business is conducted in an appropriate manner based 
on an approved business plan and the financial and non-financial 
targets of the Company are achieved. The Board’s Terms of Reference 
stipulate the specific duties of the Board and the following are some 
key matters which come under the Board’s review and approval;

I.  Company strategy and business plan

II.  Financial reporting and internal controls

III.  Financial performance

IV.  Dividend policy

V.  Changes to capital structure

VI.  Constitution and performance of the Board Committee

VII.  Regulatory compliance

Company Board meetings A.1.1 Complied Eight (08) Board meetings were held to review financial performance 
and to consider other matters such as strategic and operational plans.

Responsibilities of the 
board

A.1.2 Complied The Board is collectively responsible for formulation, implementation 
and monitoring of business strategies. In order to do so, the Board 
appointed committees are constituted to assist the main Board in 
fulfilling its stewardship function by reviewing systems of internal 
control, internal and external audit, risk management, IT systems and 
financial reporting to Shareholders.

Compliance with laws and 
access to independent  
professional advice

A.1.3 Complied The Board members are permitted to obtain independent professional 
advice from third parties as deemed necessary which includes the 
Company’s external lawyers and auditors at the expense of the Company.

Company Secretaries A.1.4 Complied The Company secretaries possesses the required qualifications and 
expertise, and advises the Board on matters concerning the Companies 
Act and other relevant rules, regulations and regulatory guidelines.

Independent judgment of 
the Directors

A.1.5 Complied All the Board members actively participate in the Board meeting by 
bringing up their own independent judgment.

Dedicating adequate time 
and effort

A.1.6 Complied The Board members dedicate adequate time for the affairs of the 
Company by attending Board meetings, Board appointed sub-
committee meetings and by making decisions via circular resolutions.
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Reference to the 
SEC & ICASL 
Code, CSE Listing 
Rules Compliance Details of Compliance

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

There is a clear demarcation of the responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO. The functions performed by the Chairman 
and the CEO are distinct and separate, ensuring the balance of power and authority within the organisation, so that no person has 
unattended powers of decision-making and implementations.

A.3 Chairman’s Role

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, managing Board meetings and the business undertaken threat. The Chairman 
is responsible for ensuring that all relevant issues of the Company are dealt with on the Board Agenda and that Directors receive all 
appropriate information and documentation in a timely manner, thus facilitating the Directors to contribute at the deliberations.

Role of Chairman A.3.1 Complied The Chairman should ensure Board proceedings are conducted in a 
proper manner.

A.4 Financial Acumen

Financial Acumen A.4 Complied Our Directors with their academic and/or entrepreneurial financial skill, 
business acumen and wide practical wisdom contribute substantial 
value, knowledge and independent judgment to decision making on 
matters concerning finance and investment.

A.5 Board Balance

Presence of Non- 
Executive Directors

A.5.1 / 7.10.1(a) 
/ 7.10.2(a) and 
7.10.3(a)

Complied Seven of the Eight Directors of the Board held office in a Non-Executive 
capacity.

Independence of Non-
Executive Directors

A.5.2 / 5.3 / 5.5 
/ 7.10.2(a-b) and 
7.10.3(a-b)

Complied The Board comprises of three Non- Executive Independent Directors.

Annual Declaration of Non-
Executive Directors

A.5.4 / 7.10.2(b) Complied Each Non-Executive Director submits a signed and dated declaration 
annually of his Independence or Non -Independence against a specified 
criteria as set out in Appendix 7A of Colombo Stock Exchange listing 
rule section 7.10.2(b).

Requirement to appoint 
a ‘Senior Independent 
Director’

A.5.7 / 5.8 Not Applicable This is not relevant to the Company as the Chairman and CEO roles are 
segregated.

Chairman conducting 
meetings with the Non-
Executive Director

A.5.9 Complied The Chairman meets with the Independent Non-Executive Director as 
and when necessary.

Recording of concerns in 
the Board minutes

A.5.10 Complied Where Directors have concerns about the matters of the Company 
which cannot be unanimously resolved, their concerns are recorded in 
the Board minutes.

A.6 Supply Information

Obligation of the 
Management to provide 
appropriate and timely 
information

A.6.1 Complied The Group has a state-of-art management information system to 
process and monitor the performance of the Group. Appropriate and 
timely information is made available to the Board members who make 
further inquiries when necessary.

Adequate time for 
circulation and respective 
Board documents

A.6.2 Complied Board papers, agenda and previous Board minutes to be tabled one 
week prior to Board Meeting.

A.7 Appointment to the Board

Disclosure to ShareholdersA.7.3 Complied -

A.8 Re-election

Re-election of Directors A.8.1 and A.8.2 Complied To comply with the Articles of Association, the Directors who have been 
appointed to the Board during the year, hold office until the next AGM, 
and are required to retire and a new Director to be re-elected by the 
Shareholders.
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Reference to the 
SEC & ICASL 
Code, CSE Listing 
Rules Compliance Details of Compliance

A.9 Appraisal of the Board 
and the subcommittees

A.9.1 / A.9.2 and 
A.9.3

Complied The Board annually appraises itself on its performance in the discharge 
of its key responsibilities. The Board also undertakes an annual self 
evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and the 
Board states on how such performance evaluations have been concluded.

A.10 Disclosure of information in respect of Directors

Directors’ Disclosures A.10.1 / 7.10.3  
(c-d)

Complied The names of the Directors of the Board, their leadership expertise, 
skills and their profiles are disclosed on page 44 of this Annual Report. 
Directors’ interests in contracts are indicated in Note 36.2 of the 
Financial Statements of this Annual Report. Names of the Chairman and 
the members of the Boards Committees are provided on pages 46 to 47.

A.11 Appraisal of Chief Executive

Setting of the annual 
targets and the appraisals 
of the CEO

A.11.1 and A.11.2 Complied The CEOs performance is reviewed annually.

B. Director’s Remuneration
B.1/7.10.5 Remuneration Procedure

Establishment of a 
Remuneration Committee 
and its composition

B.1.1/ B.1.2 /B.1.3 
/7.10.5(a) and 
7.10(b)

Complied The Remuneration Committee comprises of Prof.A.K.W. Jayawardane, 
Mr. M.N. Gunasekera and Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe being Independent 
Non-Executive Directors. Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane is the Chairman of the 
Committee. The details of the Remuneration Committee’s composition, 
policies and responsibilities are set out on page 57 of this Annual Report.

Determination of the 
remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors

B.1.4 Complied The Board as a whole decides the remuneration of the Non-Executive 
Directors. The Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for being a 
Director of the Board and fee participating as a subcommittee member.

Consultation with the 
Chairman and the CEO

B.1.5 Complied Input of the Chairman is obtained as the Chairman of the said 
Subcommittee. External professional advice is sought on a need basis.

B.2 Level and Makeup of Remuneration

Level and makeup of the 
remuneration of Directors 
and comparison of 
remuneration with other 
Companies

B.2.1 / 2.2 and 2.3 Complied The remuneration scheme for Executive Directors is structured to align 
rewards to their individual and Corporate performance targets.

Performance – based 
remuneration

B.2.4 Complied The performance related payments for Executive Directors is structured 
to align with individual Corporate performance targets.

Executive share options B.2.6 Not Applicable

Designing the 
remuneration

B.2.7 Complied Provisions set-out in Schedule E of the Code of Best Practice is 
considered.

Early termination of 
Directors

B.2.8 and B.2.9 Complied

Remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors

B.2.10 Complied Non-Executive Directors’ fee are compared with the market rates.

B.3/7.10.5 (C) DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION

Disclosure of remuneration 
policy and aggregate 
remuneration

 B.3.1 Complied Please refer Remuneration Committee Report. Refer page 57.

C. Relations with Shareholders
C.1 Constructive use of Annual General Meeting

Use of Proxy C.1.1 Complied We ensure that all proxy votes are counted and the quantum of proxies 
lodged on each resolution is conveyed to our Chairman.
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Reference to the 
SEC & ICASL 
Code, CSE Listing 
Rules Compliance Details of Compliance

Separate resolution for 
substantially separate 
issues

C.1.2 Complied Separate resolutions are proposed at an Annual General Meeting on 
each substantial issue

Chairman of Board 
Committee to be present

C.1.4 Complied At an Annual General Meeting (AGM) the respective Chairman of the 
Remuneration, Audit and Related Party Transactions Review Committees 
are present to provide any clarification to Shareholders as necessary.

Adequate notice of Annual 
General Meeting and 
summary of Procedure

C.1.5 Complied The notice and the agenda of the AGM together with the Annual Report 
of the Company containing the relevant documents are sent to the 
Shareholders giving 15 working days’ notice prior to the date of the AGM.

C.2 Communication With Shareholders

Effective communication 
with the Shareholders

C.2.1,C.2.2, C.2.3, 
C.2.4

Complied The Board maintains a two-way communication with all investors providing 
an opportunity to seek nonprice sensitive information throughout the year 
by conducting meetings and discussions and answering queries through 
our Company Secretarial Division and/or Communications Teams.

D. Accountability and Audit
D.1 Financial Reporting 

Board responsibility to 
present the Financial 
Statement

D.1.1 Complied The Board presents a balanced and understandable assessment 
extending to interim and other price sensitive public reports to 
regulators, as well as the information required to be presented by 
statutory requirements complying with regulatory deadlines.

Annual Report of the 
Directors

D.1.4 Complied Declaration by the Directors that the Company has not engaged in any 
activities, which contravenes laws and regulations, declaration of all 
material interests in contracts, equitable treatment of Shareholders 
and going concern with supporting assumptions or qualifications as 
necessary. Please refer to Annual Report of the Board of Directors on 
the affairs of Sierra Cables PLC on pages 62 to 64.

Statement by the Directors 
and the Auditors

D.1.5 Complied Please refer the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 61.

Management Discussion 
and Analysis

D.1.6 Complied Please refer Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 22 to 42.

Declaration by the Board 
as to whether the business 
is a going concern

D.1.5 Complied Please refer to Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the affairs of 
Sierra Cables PLC on pages 62 to 64.

Requirement for an 
Extraordinary General 
Meeting in a situation of 
serious loss of capital

D.1.7 Not Applicable

D.2 Internal Control

Directors to review Internal 
Controls

D.2.1 Complied The Board is responsible for establishing a sound framework of risk 
management and internal controls and monitoring its effectiveness on 
a continuous basis

Requirement to review the 
need for an Internal Audit 
function

D.2.3 Not Applicable The Group already has an internal audit division, and as such this is not 
applicable.

D.3/7.10.6 Audit Committee

Composition of the Audit 
Committee and its duties

D.3.1/
D.3.2/7.10.6(a) and 
7.10.6(b)

Complied The Audit Committee comprises of three (03) Independent 
Non-Executive Directors being Mr. M.N. Gunasekera, Prof. A.K.W. 
Jayawardane and Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe being Independent 
Non-Executive Directors. Mr. M.N. Gunasekera is the Chairman of the 
Committee. The details of the Audit Committee’s composition, policies 
and responsibilities are set out on pages 55 to 56 of this Annual Report.
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Reference to the 
SEC & ICASL 
Code, CSE Listing 
Rules Compliance Details of Compliance

Terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee

D.3.3 Complied Please refer to the Audit Committee Report on pages 55 to 56 of this 
Annual Report.

Disclosure of names of 
the members of the Audit 
Committee

D.3.3/7.10.6 (C) Complied Please refer to the Audit Committee Report on pages 55 to 56 of this 
Annual Report.

D.4/ 9. Related Party Transactions Review Committee

Composition of the 
Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee and its 
duties

D.4.2/9.2 Complied The Related Party Transactions Review Committee comprises of 
three (03) Independent Non-Executive Directors being Mr. M.N. 
Gunasekera, Prof. A.K.W.Jayawardane and Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 
being Independent Non-Executive directors. Mr. M.N.Gunasekera 
is the Chairman of the Committee. The details of the Related 
Party Transactions Review Committee’s composition, policies and 
responsibilities are set out on page 58 of this Annual Report.

Terms of reference of the 
Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee

D.4.3 Complied Please refer the Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report 
on page 58 of this Annual Report.

Disclosure of the Related 
Party Transactions

D.4.3/9.3.2 (a-b) Complied Recurrent & Non-Recurrent Related Party Transactions indicated in 
Note 36 of the Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

D.4.3/9.3.2 (c-d) Complied An affirmative statement by the Directors that there in compliance 
with the rules pertaining to Related Party Transactions. Please refer the 
Related Party Transactions Review Committee Report on page 58 of 
this Annual Report. 

D.5 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We are committed to carrying out all business activities to the highest standards of integrity, ethical values and professionalism, whilst 
following the laws of the country, international laws and compliance as per our Stakeholders’ expectations.

Disclosure on the presence 
of Code of Business 
Conduct and Ethics

D.5.1 Complied

Affirmation of the code of 
conduct and ethics

D.5.4 Complied As per our Chairman’s statements on pages 16 to 17 of this Annual 
Report, we affirm our adherence to good business conduct and ethics.

D.6 Corporate Governance Disclosures

Disclosures of Corporate 
Governance

D.6.1 Complied We aim to achieve greater year-on-year growth and value creation, 
improve stakeholder satisfaction and relationships in our business 
activities, whilst adhering to the highest standards of corporate 
governance as is evident in this Annual Report on pages 45 to 52.

2. Shareholders 

E. Institutional Investors
Shareholder voting E.1.1 Complied We conduct regular and structured dialogues with Shareholders based 

on a mutual understanding of objectives.

F. Other Investors 
F.1 Investing and divesting decision

Investing and divesting 
decision

F.1 Complied Individual Shareholders, investing directly in shares of Companies are 
encouraged to carry out adequate analysis or seek independent advice 
in investing or divesting decision.

F.2 Shareholders Voting

Individual Shareholders’ 
voting

F.2 Complied Individual Shareholders are encouraged to participate in General 
Meetings of companies and exercise their voting rights.
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Risk Management Review

Risk management 
encompasses the 
identification, analysis, 
and response to risk 
that arise during 
the life-cycle of a 
business and is carried 
out keeping the 
best interests of the 
company in mind. 

Effective risk management implies 
taking total control of future outcomes 
in a proactive manner rather than being 
reactive when the risk has occurred. 
Companies that have effective risk 
management policies offer the 
potential to reduce both the possibility 
of a risk occurring and its impact. 
Most organisations will face internal 
and external risks which prove to be 
obstacles to achieve their objectives. 
Therefore, companies increasingly focus 
more on identifying risks and managing 
them before they even affect the 
business. 

Risk management is recognised as 
an essential component of good 
management and governance which 
will allow continual improvement in 
decision-making. Risks can come from 
both internal and external sources. 
External risks are those that are not 
in direct control of the management 
such as political issues, exchange 
rates, interest rates, and so on. Internal 
risks, on the other hand, include non-
compliance or information breaches, 
among several others. The goal of risk 
management is to make sure that the 
company only takes the risks that will 
help it achieve its primary objectives 
while keeping all other risks under 
control. Companies strive to adopt 
a robust risk management plan to 
establish procedures to avoid potential 
threats, minimise their impact should 
they occur and cope with the results. 
This ability to understand and control 
risk enables organisations to be more 
confident in their business decisions. 
Furthermore, strong corporate 

governance principles that focus 
specifically on risk management can 
propel a company ahead to achieve its 
vision. 

Risk Management at Sierra 
Cables 
Sierra Cables maintains a moderate risk 
appetite underscored by an effective 
risk management process and high 
corporate governance standards. In line 
with this, the company has established 
an appropriate risk mitigation strategy 
to protect the company. The Risk 
Management Committee of Sierra 
Cables assesses risks and determines 
possible negative impacts in conjunction 
with the management team to decide 
whether certain risks are acceptable 
or unacceptable. When assessing 
the potential risks for the Company, 
the company earnestly takes into 
consideration all the internal and 
external risks. The Board of Directors 
and the senior management are kept 
up to-date through a detailed risk 
review process. The company follows 
continuous risk management so that 

the most serious risks are assertively 
managed. Also, risk management plans 
provide management at all levels with 
the necessary information to make 
informed decisions about critical issues 
that affect the company’s success 
and sustainability. Once risks are 
identified, the company adopts one of 
the three strategies to manage the risk 
- acceptance, avoidance and mitigation. 
At Sierra Cables risk management 
review is a continuous, forward-looking 
process that requires strong leadership. 
Our effective risk review process 
allows Sierra Cables PLC to manage 
risk and take confident future business 
decisions. 

RISK
MANAGEMENT

PROCESS

Implementation
and

Monitoring

Risk
Mitigation 

Plan

Review and
Update Risk

Plan

Risk
Assessment

Identification
of Risks
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 Risk Impact  Mitigation Process

Market Risk The Financial year under review witnessed 
significant business interruptions due 
to post terror attacks and later due to 
COVID-19 impacts resulting in lost sales and 
impact operating margins and profitability.

 � Completion of the pending projects 
production with less staff taking special 
permission prior to lifting lockdown.

 � Monitoring market trends for key inputs 
at sector level to ensure we receive 
competitive pricing.

Financial Risk Financial markets continue to be fluctuating 
and increase the risk on investing and 
funding activities. Volatile financial 
conditions will lead to potential losses and 
increasing credit risk of the business.

 � Burrowing from fixed interest rate funding 
sources. 

 � Maintain positive relationships with 
financial institutes in order to obtain 
lucrative rates. 

 � Sales representatives to collect debts in 
frequent basis.

 � Monthly meetings with sales 
representatives to review on debt 
collection.

Customer Risk Customer attraction, retention and 
Customer satisfaction is a crucial factor 
hence it ensures the market share of the 
business. 

 � Improve the customer engagement in 
order understand the customer interest 
and their requirements and highly focused 
on improvements to the existing products 
in order to maintain customer satisfaction. 

 � Expanded local market presence 
through expanding the areas of sales 
representatives across the island.

Employee Risk Long-Term growth of the company is directly 
involved with its employee’s commitment 
to the company vision mission and targets. 
If it is failed to attract skilled labour or retain 
and develop people that will be affect to the 
company growth. 

 � Having a transparent mechanism to recruit 
and handle employees’ grievances. 

 � Training need are identified through skill 
gap analysis and cross functional trainings 
to make awareness of other department 
functions.

Inventory & Supply Chain Risk Mainly manufacturing industry is highly 
depend upon the availability of raw 
materials. Poor inventory management 
would increase the risk of obsolete 
inventory. May leads to increase stock 
holding cost.

 � Focus on developing and maintaining 
strong relationship with suppliers through 
long term contracts. 

 � Regular evaluating of stock level.

 � Warehouses are adequately protected in 
order to minimise unnecessary losses.

Information Risk Loss of sensitive information may leads to 
loss of competitive advantage. Real time 
accurate information is greatly impact on 
management decisions.

 � Regular backups of all data bases. 

 � Regular system upgrades and 
implementing the ERP system adding new 
functions.

 � Improving the cyber security to protect 
confidential information.

Risk Management Review Contd.
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Report of the Board Audit Committee

Role of the Audit Committee 
The role of the Audit Committee, further described under 
terms of reference, is to oversee and review the financial 
reporting system of the Company, with a view to safeguarding 
the interest of the shareholders and all other stakeholders.

Composition 
The Audit Committee, consisting of three Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, has been constituted in compliance 
with the ‘Rules on Corporate Governance’ under the Listing 
Rules of the Colombo Stock  Exchange.

The members of the Audit Committee are:

M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 
Non-Executive Independent Director 

The other members participating, by invitation, at the Audit 
Committee meetings are the Managing Director, the Deputy 
Chief Executive Officer and the Finance Manager.

Meetings 
The Audit Committee had Four meetings during the year under 
review.

Name Attendance

M.N. Gunasekera 4/4

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 4/4

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 2/4

Terms of Reference 
As specified in the terms of reference, in relation to its 
purpose, authority, composition, meeting and duties, the Audit 
Committee was established to assist the Board of Directors 
to fulfill their oversight responsibilities, which include the 
integrity of Financial Statements, risk management, business 
ethics, internal control, compliance with legal and regulatory 
requirements, review of Independent External Auditors’ 
performance and the effectiveness of the Internal Audit 
function. 

In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has 
unrestricted access to the Company’s management, books and 
records; and has direct communication with the external and 
internal auditors, by way of periodical meetings.

Financial Reporting 
In accordance with the stipulated requirements of the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards, the Committee reviews the 
following: 

 � Procedures to provide reasonable assurance that all 
transactions are accurately and completely recorded in the 
books of account.

 � Effective of financial reporting system is in place to ensure 
reliability of the information provided to the stakeholders in 
accordance with most appropriate accounting policies. 

 � Process by which compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and other 
regulatory provisions relating to financial reporting and 
disclosures are ensured.

 � Annual report and interim Financial Statements prepared for 
publication, prior to submission to the Board.

Compliance with Rules and Regulations 
The Audit Committee reviewed the reports submitted by the 
Management and the Internal Auditors on compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations. The Committee is satisfied 
that Laws and Regulations are duly complied with and 
statutory payments have been made on a timely basis.

Internal Control, Internal Audit and Risk 
Management 
In its review of effectiveness of internal controls, the 
Committee examined the business processes to ensure that 
reasonable assurance can be provided to the directors that 
assets are safeguarded and that the financial reporting system 
can be relied upon in the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements. The Audit Committee monitors and 
guides the firm of Chartered Accountants engaged in the 
Internal Audit, in its audits, according to the plan of activities 
which covers financial and operational audits, risk assessments 
and IT security reviews. The reports of the Internal Auditors 
have been reviewed, discussed by the Committee, and initiated 
corrective measures.
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Report of the Board Audit Committee Contd.

Independent Auditors 
The Committee is satisfied that the independence and 
objectivity of the Independent External Auditors has not been 
impaired by any event or service that gives rise to a conflict 
of interest. Due consideration has been given to the nature of 
the services provided by the Auditors and the level of audit 
and non-audit fees received by the Auditors from the Group. 
The Committee also reviewed the arrangements made by the 
Auditors to maintain their independence and confirmation 
has been received from the Auditors of their compliance 
with the independence guidance given in the Code of Ethics 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The 
Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of Messrs. 
KPMG, for the financial year ending 31st March 2021.

Conclusion 
In its continuous assessments, the Audit Committee is 
satisfied that the Group’s accounting policies, internal controls, 
including operational controls, provide reasonable assurance 
that the affairs of the Group are managed in accordance 
with policy framework of the Group, set out by the Board of 
Directors and that the Group assets are properly accounted 
and adequately safeguarded. 

Further, the Audit Committee is satisfied that the requirements 
under the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, have 
been met.

(Sgd.)
M.N. Gunasekera

Chairman

Audit Committee
31st August 2020
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Report of the Board Remuneration Committee

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee include 
the provision of policy advice and recommendations to the 
Board of Directors with regard to remuneration of Managing 
Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Executive 
Directors. The recommendations are aimed at being attractive, 
fair and competitive to attract and retain executive staff also 
considering the performance.

The Remuneration Committee appointed for the financial 
year 2019-20 consists of three Non-Executive Independent 
Directors as follows:

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane - Chairman
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe
Non-Executive Independent Director

M.N. Gunasekera
Non-Executive Independent Director

The Committee met once during the year 2019/20 and 
discussed the remuneration applicable to the Managing 
Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer. Having carefully 
looked at the Company performance during the year and the 
salary revisions during the previous years, the Committee 
decided on the salaries of the Managing Director and Deputy 
Chief Executive Officer.

(Sgd.)
Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane

Chairman

Remuneration Committee
31st August 2020
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Report of the Board Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee

Role of the Committee 
The Committee assists the Board in reviewing all related party 
transactions carried out by the Company. The Committee 
also performs the overseeing function on behalf of the Board 
in compliance with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange and with the Code of Best Practices on Related 
Party Transactions issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.

Composition 
The Committee, consisting of three Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, has been constituted in compliance 
with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. The 
Committee Members are:

M.N. Gunasekera - Chairman 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 
Non-Executive Independent Director

The other members participating, by invitation, at Committee 
meetings are the Managing Director, the Deputy Chief 
Executive Officer, and the Finance Manager.

The Committee had Four meetings during the year under 
review.

Name Attendance

M.N. Gunasekera 4/4

Prof. A.K.W. Jayawardane 4/4

Eng. B.W.N. Rupasinghe 2/4

Policies & Procedures 
The above committee was authorised to review all Related 
Party Transactions to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules, 
compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements, 
concerning the respective transactions.

Terms of Referance 
The Related Party Transactions Review Committee has terms 
of reference, dealing with its authority and duties. The Terms of 
Reference covering aspects relating to matters prescribed in 
the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Terms of reference of the Committee, among others, include 
the following: 

In the event a Related Party Transaction will be ongoing 
(Recurrent transactions), The Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee has established guidelines for the senior 
management to follow, in respect of ongoing dealings with 
the Related Parties. Thereafter, the Committee on an regular 
basis, would review and assess ongoing relationships with the 
related parties, to determine whether they are in compliance 
with the Committee’s guidelines and that the Related Party 
Transactions remain appropriate.

Related Party Transactions During the Year 
The Committee reviewed the related party transactions and 
their compliance of Sierra Cables PLC. The activities and 
observations of the Committee are communicated to the 
Board.

Disclosures 
A detailed disclosure of all the related party transactions 
including Recurrent and Non-Recurrent related party 
transactions which are required to be disclosed under section 
9.3.2 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange has 
been made in Note 36 to the Financial Statements on pages 
114 to 115. 

(Sgd.)
M.N. Gunasekera

Chairman 

Related Party Transactions Review Committee
31st August 2020
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Financial Calendar

Financial Year End 31st March 2020

Interim Results for Financial Year 2019/2020

First Quarter 15th August 2019

Second Quarter 14th November 2019

Third Quarter 11th February 2020

Fourth Quarter 03rd September 2020

Audited Financial Statements 03rd September 2020

17th Annual General Meeting 30th September 2020
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in  
Relation to Financial Reporting

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
The Statement sets out the responsibility of the Directors, 
in	relation	to	the	Financial	Statements	of	Sierra	Cables	PLC.	
The responsibilities of the External Auditors in relation to the 
Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with the 
provisions	of	the	Companies	Act	No.	7	of	2007	and	other	
statuses which are applicable to the preparation of Financial 
Statements are set out in the ‘Auditors’ Report are given on 
pages	65	to	67.

The Financial Statements comprise of:

A Statement of Financial Position, which presents a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its 
subsidiaries	as	at	the	end	of	the	financial	year;	and	a	Statement	
of Comprehensive Income, which presents a true and fair view 
of	the	profit	and	loss	of	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	for	the	
financial	year,	which	comply	with	the	requirements	of	the	Act.

The Directors are required to ensure that, in preparing these 
financial	statements:

 y The appropriate Accounting Policies have been selected 
and applied in consistent manner and material departures, if 
any,	have	been	disclosed	and	explained;

 y Requirements	in	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards,	
Companies	Act	No.07	of	2007	and	listing	rules	of	the	
Colombo	Stock	Exchange,	have	been	followed;

 y Judgements and estimates have been made which are 
reasonable	and	prudent.

The Directors are also required to ensure that the Company has 
adequate resources to contain basis in preparing the Financial 
Statements.

Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that the 
Company	maintains	sufficient	accounting	records	to	disclose,	
with	reasonable	accuracy,	the	financial	position	of	the	Company	
and of the Group, and to ensure that the Financial Statements 
presented	comply	with	the	requirements	of	the	Act.	

The	Directors	are	also	responsible	for	taking	reasonable	steps	
to safeguard the assets of the Company and of the Group and in 
this regard to give proper consideration to the establishment of 
appropriate internal control systems with a view to preventing 
and	detecting	fraud	and	other	irregularities.

In terms of Sections 150 (1) and 151 of the Companies Act 
No.	07	of	2007,	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company	are	
responsible	for	ensuring	that	the	Company	keep	proper	books	
of account of all the transactions, prepare Financial Statements 
that	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	financial	position	the	
Company	as	at	end	of	each	financial	year	and	to	provide	
the	auditors	with	every	opportunity	to	undertake	whatever	
inspections they may consider to be appropriate to enable 
them	to	give	their	independent	audit	opinion	of	the	financial	
performance	of	the	Company	for	each	financial	year	and	place	
them	before	a	general	meeting.	

The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their 
responsibilities	as	set	out	in	this	statement.

By	Order	of	the	Board

(Sgd.)

P.R. Secretarial Services (Private) Limited
Secretaries

31st August 2020
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs  
of Sierra Cables PLC

The	Directors	of	Sierra	Cables	PLC	(the	Company)	have	the	
pleasure in submitting their Report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company and the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year 
ended	31st	March	2020.	

Principal Activities 
The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, 
marketing	and	distribution	of	power	cables.	The	two	
subsidiaries,	Sierra	Industries	(Private)	Limited	and	Sierra	
Cables	East	Africa	Limited	are	engaged	in	the	manufacturing	of	
uPVC	pipes	and	fittings	and	manufacture	and	sale	of	wires	and	
cables,	respectively.	The	two	associate	Companies	and	the	Joint	
Venture,	Tea	Leaf	Resort	(Private)	Limited,	T	&	G	Lanka	(Private)	
Limited	and	Cables	PTE	Limited	are	diversified	into	leisure	
sector	and	manufacturing	of	cables,	respectively.	

Review of Operations 
A review of the Company’s business and its performance during 
the	financial	year	is	contained	in	the	Chairman’s	message	on	
pages 16 to 17 and the Managing Director’s  report on pages 
18 to 20 of the Annual Report, together with the Financial 
Statements	which	reflects	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Company.

Financial Statements 
The	completed	financial	statements	of	the	Group	has	been	duly	
certified	by	the	person	responsible	for	the	preparation	of	the	
financial	statements	of	the	Company	have	been	signed	by	two	
Directors on behalf of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
confirm	the	Company	is	in	compliance	with	the	requirements	of	
the	Companies	Act	No.	07	of	2007.	Details	are	given	on	pages	
68	to	122.

Auditors Report 
The Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements is given in 
pages	65	to	67.

Financial Results 
The	Group	made	Profit	After	Taxation	of	Rs.	229	Mn	during	the	
year	compared	to	the	Rs.	12.3	Mn	in	financial	year	2018/19.	The	
detailed	results	are	given	in	the	Income	Statement	on	page	68.	

Dividends 
No dividends were made by the Company during the year under 
review.

Significant Accounting Policies 
The	significant	accounting	policies	adopted	in	the	preparation	
of	the	financial	statements	are	given	in	pages	77	to	86	changes	
in accounting policies made during the accounting period is 
described	under	Note	3	to	the	Financial	Statements.	

Property, Plant and Equipment 
An analysis of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the 
Company is disclosed in Note 13 of the Financial Statements on 
pages	92	to	95.

Stated Capital 
The stated Capital of the Company as at 31st March 2020 was 
Rs.	894,565,898.

Reserves 
The Group retained earnings and other reserves as at 31st 
March	2020	amounted	to	Rs.	1,117,937,088.

Donations 
No donations were made by the Company during the year under 
review.

Capital Commitments 
There were no material capital commitment as at the reporting 
period	as	disclosed	in	the	Note	33.

Provision for the Taxation 
Provision for taxation of the Company is disclosed in Note 9 of 
the	financial	statements.

Statutory Payments 
The	Directors,	to	the	best	of	their	knowledge	and	belief,	are	
satisfied	that	all	statutory	payments	due	to	relevant	authorities	
have	been	made	by	the	Company.

Contingent Liabilities 
There were no material contingent liabilities as at the reporting 
date which require adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial 
Statements.	

Post Balance Sheet Events 
Post balance sheet events of the Company are  disclosed in 
Note	34	of	the	financial	statements.

Risk Management and Internal Control 
The	details	of	the	significant	risks	identified	by	the	Company	
and strategies and actions adopted in managing them are set 
out	in	pages	53	to	54.	

Going Concern 
The Directors having made an assessment of the Company’s 
operating	conditions,	financial	position,	risks	and	future	
prospects have a reasonable expectation that the Company 
has adequate resources to continue its operations as a going 
concern	in	the	foreseeable	future.
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Directors who held office during the Year 
The	Directors	of	the	Company	during	the	year	were	as	follows.

W.	A.	P.	Perera -  Non- Executive Director

D.	S.	Panditha -  Executive Non-Independent 
Director

Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara -  Non- Executive Director

E.	A.	D.	T.	B.	Perera -  Non- Executive Director

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane -  Non- Executive Independent 
Director

B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe -  Non- Executive Independent 
Director

M.	N.	Gunasekera	 –  Non- Executive Independent 
Director

Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge	 -  Non- Executive Director

F.	A.	W.	Irugalbandara 
(Alternate	Director	to	Mr.	W.	A.	P.	Perera)

Ms.	E.	A.	D.	T.	A.	Perera	 
(Alternate	Director	to	Mr.	E.	A.	D.	T.	B.	Perera)

Appointments during the year 
Nil

Resignations during the year 
Mr.	D.	N.	N.	Lokuge	(Alternate	Director	to	Mr.	D.	S.	Panditha)	-		
Resigned	w.e.f.	05.09.2019

Appointments after the conclusion of the year 
Nil

Resignations after the conclusion of the year 
Nil

Directors who held office as at the end of the 
Accounting period 

W.	A.	P.	Perera

D.	S.	Panditha

Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara

E.	A.	D.	T.	B.	Perera

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane

B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe

M.	N.	Gunasekera

Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge

F.	A.	W.	Irugalbandara	 
(Alternate	Director	to	Mr.	W.	A.	P.	Perera)

Ms.	E.	A.	D.	T.	A.	Perera	 
(Alternate	Director	to	Mr.	E.	A.	D.	T.	B.	Perera)

Directors retiring (at the Annual General 
Meeting) 
1.	 To	re-elect	Mr.	W.	A.	P.	Perera,	who	retires	by	rotation	in	

terms of Articles 91 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company	as	a	Director	of	the	Company.

2.	 To	re-elect	Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara,	who	retires	by	
rotation in terms of Articles 91 of the Articles of Association 
of	the	Company	as	a	Director	of	the	Company.	

3.	 To	re-elect	Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge,	who	retires	by	rotation	in	terms	
of Articles 91 of the Articles of Association of the Company 
as	a	Director	of	the	Company.

Corporate Governance 
The	Board	of	Directors	confirm	that	the	Company	is	compliant	
with	section	7.10	of	the	Listing	Rules	of	the	Colombo	Stock	
Exchange.

An Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee and Nominations Committee 
function as board sub committees with Directors who possess 
the	requisite	qualifications	and	experience.	The	composition	of	
the	said	committees	is	as	follows;

Audit Committee 

M.	N.	Gunasekera	 -  Chairman 

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane	 -  Member 

Eng.	B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe	 -  Member

Remuneration Committee 

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane	 -  Chairman 

Eng.	B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe	 -  Member

M.	N.	Gunasekera	 -  Member

Related Party Transactions Review Committee 

M.	N.	Gunasekera	 -  Chairman 

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane	 -  Member 

Eng.	B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe	 -  Member

Nominations committee 

W.	A.	P.	Perera	 -  Chairman 

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane -  Member

M.	N.	Gunasekera -  Member

Directors’ Interest Register 
The Company maintains an Interest Register in terms of 
the	Companies	Act	No.	7	of	2007.	The	Directors	have	made	
declarations and disclosed their interests to the Board and those 
interests are recorded in the interests register as provided for in 
Section	192(2)	of	the	Companies	Act	No.	7	of	2007.

Directors’ Remuneration and Other Benefits of 
Directors 
Directors’ remuneration in respect of the Company for the 
financial	year	2019/20	is	given	in	Note	7	to	the	Financial	
Statements	on	page	87.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs  
of Sierra Cables PLC Contd.

Directors’ Shareholding 

As at 31st Mar 
20

As at 31st Mar 
19

D.	S.	Panditha  17,601,297  17,601,297 

W.	A.	P.	Perera  3,920,510  3,920,510 

Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara	  1,709,800  1,709,800 

Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge  100,000  100,000 

E.	A.	D.	T.	B.	Perera  10  10 

Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane	 -  -   

B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe	 -  -   

M.	N.	Gunasekera	 -  -   

F.	A.	W.	Irugalbandara	(Alternate	Director)  200,010  200,010 

D.	N.	N.	Lokuge	(Alternate	Director) -  100,010 

Directors’ Interest In Contracts 
None of the Directors had a direct or indirect interest in any contracts or proposed contracts with the Company other than as 
disclosed	in	Note	36.2	on	page	116	of	the	Financial	Statements.	

Annual General Meeting 
The	notice	of	the	Annual	General	Meeting	is	on	page	128.

Auditors 
The	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2020	have	been	audited	by	Messrs	KPMG,	(Chartered	Accountants)	who	
offer	themselves	for	reappointment.	As	far	as	the	Directors	are	aware,	the	Auditors	do	not	have	any	relationship	(other	than	that	of	
an	Auditor)	with	the	Company	other	than	those	disclosed	above.	The	Auditors	also	do	not	have	any	interest	in	the	Company.

The	Auditors	Messrs	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants	were	paid	1,300,000	(2018/19	-	Rs.	1,200,000)		as	Audit	fees	by	the	Company.

A resolution relating to their reappointment and authorising the Directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 
Annual	General	Meeting.	

By	Order	of	the	Board

(Sgd.)	 (Sgd.)	 (Sgd.)
W. A. P. Perera D. S. Panditha P.R. Secretarial Service (Private) Limited
Chairman/Director		 Director/Chief	Executive	Officer	 Secretaries

31st August 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Sierra Cables PLC
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We	have	audited	the	financial	statements	of	Sierra	Cables	PLC	
(“the	Company”)	and	the	consolidated	financial	statements	of	
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise 
the	statement	of	financial	position	as	at	31	March	2020,	and	
the	income	statement,	statement	of	profit	or	loss	and	other	
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement	of	cash	flows	for	the	year	then	ended,	and	notes	to	
the	financial	statements,	including	a	summary	of	significant	
accounting policies and other explanatory information set out in 
pages	68	to	122	of	the	Annual	Report.

In	our	opinion,	the	accompanying	financial	statements	of	the	
Company	and	the	Group	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	financial	
position of the Company and the Group as at March 31, 2020, 
and	of	their	financial	performance	and	cash	flows	for	the	year	
then	ended	in	accordance	with	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We	conducted	our	audit	in	accordance	with	Sri	Lanka	Auditing	
Standards	(SLAuSs).	Our	responsibilities	under	those	standards	
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements	section	of	our	report.	We	
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of	Ethics	issued	by	CA	Sri	Lanka	(Code	of	Ethics)	and	we	have	
fulfilled	our	other	ethical	responsibilities	in	accordance	with	
the	Code	of	Ethics.	We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	
obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	our	
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key	audit	matters	are	those	matters	that,	in	our	professional	
judgment,	were	of	most	significance	in	our	audit	of	the	
Company	financial	statements	and	the	consolidated	financial	
statements	of	the	current	period.	These	matters	were	
addressed	in	the	context	of	our	audit	of	the	Company	financial	
statements	and	the	consolidated	financial	statements	as	
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide	a	separate	opinion	on	these	matters.	

Carrying value of Inventories

Risk Description Our Responses

The	Company	and	the	Group	recorded	Rs.	1.417	Bn	
and	Rs.	1.253	Bn	respectively	as	Inventories	as	at	
31st	March	2020.

The	Group	and	the	Company	has	significant	amount	
of inventory and judgment is exercised with regard to 
categorisation	of	inventories	as	obsolete	and	/	or	slow	
moving	to	be	considered	for	write	off;	estimates	are	
then involved in arriving at the amount to be written off, 
against cost in respect of slow moving and obsolete 
inventories to arrive valuation based on lower of cost and 
net	realisable	value.		Further,	COVID	19	outbreak	resulted	
in interruption in business activities and resulted in loss 
of	income	for	some	of	the	individuals	/	industries	which	
would adversely affect the ability to sell its inventories 
with a reasonable margin which would potential impact on 
the	net	realizable	value	adjustments.

Given the level of judgements and estimates involved, this 
is	considered	to	be	a	key	audit	matter.

Refer	note	20	to	the	financial	statements	and	the	
accounting	policies	in	note	3.8	to	the	Financial	Statements.

Our	audit	procedures	included;	

 y Testing	key	controls	over	inventory	valuation	and	controls	designed	to	
identify	slow	moving	and	obsolete	inventories.

 y Comparison of inventory levels, by product group, to sales data to 
corroborate whether slow moving and obsolete inventories had been 
appropriately	identified	and	challenge	the	categorisation	as	obsolete	
or	slow	moving.

 y On	sample	basis,	physically	verify	the	inventories	and	we	challenged	
the inventory provisioning in line with our observations of potentially 
obsolete	inventory.

 y Performing	roll	backward	to	ensure	the	movements	between	the	
physical	verification	and	inventories	as	at	reporting	date	are	accurate.

 y On	sample	basis,	assessing	the	realisations	of	inventories	after	the	
period end, in particular of clearance categories, and compare these 
to the expected recoveries with the cost to identify any instances of 
NRV	is	lower	than	cost.	Reperforming	the	inventory	aging	reports	to	
ensure	the	accuracy	of	the	age	classification	of	inventories.

 y Verifying	the	amount	written	off	in	the	ledger	to	ensure	the	financial	
statements	are	in	line	with	the	Company	accounting	policies.

 y Assessing whether the accounting policies had been consistently 
applied and the adequacy of the disclosures in respect of the 
judgement	and	estimation	made	in	respect	of	inventory		write	off.
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Impairment of trade receivables

Risk Description Our Responses

The	Company	and	the	Group	recorded	Rs.	1.284	Bn	and	Rs.	
1.537	Bn	respectively	as	trade	receivable	net	of	impairment	
provision	as	at	31st	March	2020.

The determination of impairment provision using the 
expected	credit	loss	model	is	subject	to	a	number	of	key	
parameters and assumptions, estimates of probability 
of default, loss given default, macroeconomic forecasts, 
exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments for 
forward	looking	information	and	other	adjustment	factors.	
In particular, the determination of the impairment provision 
is heavily dependent on the external macro environment 
and	the	Group’s	internal	credit	risk	management	strategy.	
Management judgement is involved in the selection of those 
parameters	and	the	application	of	assumptions.		Further	
recoverability of trade receivables remains one of the most 
significant	judgment	made	by	the	management	particularly	
in	light	of	the	uncertain	economic	outlook	in	Sri	Lanka	as	at	
the reporting date due to the potential impact of the Covid-19 
outbreak.

We	identified	the	impairment	of	trade	receivables	as	a	
key	audit	matter	because	of	the	inherent	uncertainty	and	
management judgement involved and the materiality of the 
reported amounts for trade receivables (and impairment 
provision	thereof).	

Refer	note	22.1	to	the	financial	statements	and	the	accounting	
policies	in	note	3.10.5	–to	the	Financial	Statements.

Our	audit	procedures	included;	

 y Understanding and assessing the design, implementation 
and	operating	effectiveness	of	key	internal	controls	over	the	
approval, recording and monitoring of trade receivables and the 
measurement	of	provisions	for	impairment.

 y Assessing the reliability of the expected credit loss model 
used	by	management	pursuant	to	the	COVID	19	outbreak	in	
determining impairment provisions, including assessing the 
appropriateness	of	the	key	parameters	and	assumptions	in	
the	expected	credit	loss	model,	including	the	identification	of		
probability of default, loss given default, exposure at default, 
discount	rate,	adjustments	for	forward-looking	information	
and other management adjustments and assessing the 
reasonableness	of	key	management	judgement;

 y Evaluating	the	model	methodology	and	key	assumptions	by	
testing	the	completeness	and	accuracy	of	key	inputs	into	models	
and	assessed	the	appropriateness	of	other	assumptions.	We	
substantially	tested	the	completeness	and	accuracy	of	key	inputs	
into	models	and	assessed	the	appropriateness	of	assumptions.

 y Recalculating the amount of impairment for samples of trade 
receivables to verify the calculation accuracy of the impairment 
provision.

 y We involved our IT specialists to assess the logic and compilation 
of	the	age	report	of	trade	receivables.

 y Evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment of trade 
receivables meet the disclosure requirements of the prevailing 
accounting	standards.

Company’s equity accounted investees

Risk Description Our Responses

At	31	March	2020,	the	Company	recorded	Rs.	31.6	Mn	as	
Investment	in	equity	accounted	investees.	

The	identification	of	impairment	events	and	the	determination	
of	the	impairment	charge	require	the	application	of	significant	
judgment	by	management.	Accordingly,	the	Company	
performed an impairment assessment on the cash generating 
units (“CGUs”) relating to the equity accounted investees, 
which	had	an	indication	of	impairment.		The	Company	
estimated the recoverable amounts of the CGUs based on 
its	value	in	use	(“VIU”)	and	where	it	is	difficult	to	plot	cash	
flows,	the	Company	has	used	adjusted	net	asset	value	as	a	
reasonable	estimation	of	the	fair	value.	Estimating	the	VIU	
involves	discounting	the	estimated	future	cash	inflows	and	
outflows	expected	to	be	derived	from	the	CGUs	to	its	present	
value	using	an	appropriate	discount	rate.	When	determining	
the	cash	inflows	and	outflows	the	Company	had	to	also	
estimate	long	term	growth	rates.

We	identified	this	as	an	area	of	audit	focus	as	the	VIU	
determined	using	discounted	cash	flows	and	adjusted	
net	asset	values	are	complex	and	involves	significant	
management judgement and estimates which could be 
subject	to	management	bias.

Our	audit	procedures	included:

 y Assessing	cash	flow	forecast	prepared	by	the	management	
against	our	own	expectations	based	on	our	knowledge	of	the	
Company	and	experience	of	the	industry	in	which	it	operates.

 y Testing the mathematical accuracy of the underlying calculations 
in	the	discounted	cash	flow	valuation	models.

 y With the assistance of our own internal business valuation 
specialists,	challenging	the	reasonableness	of	the	key	
assumptions	in	the	valuation	models.

 y Assessing	the	adequacy	of	disclosures	in	the	financial	
statements.
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Other Information 

Management	is	responsible	for	the	other	information.	The	other	
information comprises the information included in the annual report, 
but	does	not	include	the	financial	statements	and	our	auditor’s	
report	thereon.

Our	opinion	on	the	financial	statements	does	not	cover	the	
other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion	thereon.

In	connection	with	our	audit	of	the	financial	statements,	our	
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with	the	financial	statements	or	our	knowledge	obtained	in	the	
audit	or	otherwise	appears	to	be	materially	misstated.	If,	based	on	
the	work	we	have	performed,	we	conclude	that	there	is	a	material	
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that	fact.	We	have	nothing	to	report	in	this	regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	of	financial	
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standards,	and	for	such	internal	control	as	
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of	financial	statements	that	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	
whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.

In	preparing	the	financial	statements,	management	is	responsible	
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic	alternative	but	to	do	so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s	financial	reporting	process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements
Our	objectives	are	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	
the	financial	statements	as	a	whole	are	free	from	material	
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s	report	that	includes	our	opinion.	Reasonable	assurance	
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted	in	accordance	with	SLAuSs	will	always	detect	a	material	
misstatement	when	it	exists.	Misstatements	can	arise	from	fraud	or	
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they	could	reasonably	be	expected	to	influence	the	economic	
decisions	of	users	taken	on	the	basis	of	these	financial	statements.

As	part	of	an	audit	in	accordance	with	SLAuSs,	we	exercise	
professional	judgement	and	maintain	professional	skepticism	
throughout	the	audit.	We	also:

 y Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	
financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	design	
and	perform	audit	procedures	responsive	to	those	risks,	and	
obtain	audit	evidence	that	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	
provide	a	basis	for	our	opinion.	The	risk	of	not	detecting	a	
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal	control.

 y Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of the Company and the Group’s internal 
control.

 y Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures	made	by	management.

 y Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 
to	events	or	conditions	that	may	cast	significant	doubt	on	the	
Group’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern.	If	we	conclude	
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the	financial	statements	or,	if	such	disclosures	are	inadequate,	
to	modify	our	opinion.	Our	conclusions	are	based	on	the	audit	
evidence	obtained	up	to	the	date	of	our	auditor’s	report.	
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease	to	continue	as	a	going	concern.

 y Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial	statements,	including	the	disclosures,	and	whether	the	
financial	statements	represent	the	underlying	transactions	and	
events	in	a	manner	that	achieves	fair	presentation.

 y Obtain	sufficient	appropriate	audit	evidence	regarding	the	
financial	information	of	the	entities	or	business	activities	within	
the	Group	to	express	an	opinion	on	the	consolidated	financial	
statements.	We	are	responsible	for	the	direction,	supervision	
and	performance	of	the	group	audit.	We	remain	solely	
responsible	for	our	audit	opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant	audit	findings,	including	any	significant	deficiencies	in	
internal	control	that	we	identify	during	our	audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with ethical requirements in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related	safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance	in	the	audit	of	the	financial	statements	of	the	current	
period	and	are	therefore	the	key	audit	matters.	We	describe	
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest	benefits	of	such	communication.	

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As	required	by	section	163	(2)	of	the	Companies	Act	No.	07	of	2007,	
we have obtained all the information and explanations that were 
required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, 
proper	accounting	records	have	been	kept	by	the	Company.

CA	Sri	Lanka	membership	number	of	the	engagement	partner	
responsible	for	signing	this	independent	auditor’s	report	is	1224.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo,	Sri	Lanka	

August 31, 2020
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Income Statement

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue 5  5,563,252,957  4,699,657,203  4,927,034,259  4,116,589,871 

Cost of Sales  (4,616,571,793)  (4,119,702,666)  (4,073,555,891)  (3,612,786,340)

Gross Profit  946,681,164  579,954,537  853,478,368  503,803,531 

Other	Income 6 28,579,217  45,864,872 34,340,092  59,500,301 

Gain on disposal of Subsidiaries  -    11,983,488  -    7,087,007 

Selling and Distribution Expenses  (296,574,720)  (143,203,465)  (274,347,016)  (155,208,098)

Administrative Expenses  (162,170,189)  (162,600,108)  (121,554,873)  (119,627,474)

Other	Operating	Expenses  (43,396,881)  (29,758,661)  (77,292,214)  -   

Impairment of Subsidiaries  (56,833,561)  (67,357,178)

Profit from Operations 7 473,118,591  302,240,663 357,790,797  228,198,089 

Finance Income 8.1 1,728,275 7,120,625 1,093,167 6,580,869

Finance Costs 8.2 (218,876,206) (281,847,918)  (177,731,251) (224,716,912)

Net Finance Costs 8  (217,147,931)  (274,727,293)  (176,638,084)  (218,136,043)

Share	of	Profit	of	Equity	-	 
   Accounted Investees, (Net of Tax) 18 8,328,570  (27,016,523)  -    -   

Profit Before Taxation 264,299,230  496,847  181,152,713  10,062,046 

Income	Tax	Reversal	/	(Expense) 9  (35,540,544)  11,899,322  (30,615,278)  17,880,565 

Profit from Continuing Operations 228,758,686  12,396,169  150,537,435  27,942,611 

Discontinued Operation

Profit	from	Discontinued	Operations 12  -    -    -    -   

Profit for the Year 228,758,686  12,396,169  150,537,435  27,942,611 

Profit	Attributable	to	:

Owners	of	the	Company 229,621,599  13,774,341  150,537,435  27,942,611 

Non - Controlling Interests  (862,913)  (1,378,172)  -    -   

Profit  for the Year 228,758,686  12,396,169  150,537,435  27,942,611 

Basic Earnings Per Share 10  0.43  0.03  0.28 0.05

Figures	in		brackets	indicate	deductions.

The Financial Statement are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the 
Group	set	out	on	pages	76	to	122.
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Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit for the Year 228,758,686  12,396,169  150,537,435  27,942,611 

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Actuarial	Gain/(Loss)	on	Defined	Benefit	Obligation  (20,443)  2,070,095  (20,443)  2,070,095 

Deferred	Tax	Impact	on	Actuarial	Gain/(Loss)  5,724  (579,627)  5,724  (579,627)

Equity	Investments	at	FVOCI	-	Net	Change	in	Fair	Value  (4,860,746)  (5,489,552)  (4,860,746)  (5,489,552)

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign	Operations	-	Foreign	Currency	Translation	Difference  1,161,115  11,086,230  -    -   

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of  Tax (3,714,350)  7,087,146  (4,875,465)  (3,999,084)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 225,044,336  19,483,315  145,661,970  23,943,527 

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to :

Owners	of	the	Company 225,849,194  20,294,680  145,661,970  23,943,527 

Non - Controlling Interests (404,858)  (811,365)  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 225,044,336  19,483,315  145,661,970  23,943,527 

Figures	in		brackets	indicate	deductions.

The Financial Statement are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the 
Group	set	out	on	pages	76	to	122.
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Statement of Financial Position

Group Company

As at 31st March Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property,	Plant	&	Equipment	 13  1,464,116,282  1,440,230,560  1,055,022,875  997,261,458 

Intangible Assets 14  4,563,257  6,674,853  4,563,257  6,674,853 

Right-of-Use Assets 15  3,695,474 -  3,695,474 -

Investment Property 16  -    4,500,000  -    4,500,000 

Investments in Subsidiaries 17  -    -    89,876,892  146,710,453 

Equity-Accounted Investees 18 17,474,607  9,146,039  31,610,163  31,610,163 

Other	Non-Current	Assets 19  20,402,447  25,148,489  20,402,447  25,148,489 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,510,252,067  1,485,699,941  1,205,171,108  1,211,905,416 

Current Assets

Inventories 20  1,417,054,711  1,577,039,703  1,263,392,936  1,213,338,960 

Trade	and	Other	Receivables 21  1,818,596,395  2,051,643,984  1,456,243,117  1,534,036,747 

Income Tax Recoverable  1,681,791 12,206,470  -    7,476,596 

Amounts due from Related Companies 22  109,133,981  106,462,323  385,612,714  357,943,039 

Loan	Receivable	 22.1  -    -    119,616,300  119,616,300 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 23  41,471,530  71,790,022  20,063,915  66,681,058 

Total Current Assets 3,387,938,408  3,819,142,501 3,244,928,982  3,299,092,700 

Assets	Classified	as	Held	for	Sale 12  -    -    -    -   

Total Assets 4,898,190,475  5,304,842,442  4,450,100,090  4,510,998,116 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 

Stated Capital 24.1  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

Revaluation Reserve 24.2 538,687,705  541,782,183 509,638,435  512,732,913 

Fair Value Reserve 24.3  8,912,507  13,773,252  8,912,507  13,773,252 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 24.4  12,621,670  11,518,612  -    -   

Retained Earnings 557,715,206  325,013,848 551,261,028  397,643,834 

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 
of the Company 2,012,502,986  1,786,653,793 1,964,377,868  1,818,715,897 

Non-Controlling Interest 17 9,478,637  10,283,494  -    -   

Total Equity 2,021,981,623  1,796,937,287 1,964,377,868  1,818,715,897 

Non-Current Liabilities

Retirement	Benefit	Obligations 25  54,057,974  45,355,016  53,063,399  44,703,029 

Deferred	Tax	Liabilities 26 207,704,606  227,907,376  167,504,991  185,267,702 

Long	Term	Loans 27  113,244,086  61,585,178  75,000,000  4,749,998 

Long	Term	Lease	Liability 28  1,478,290  -    1,478,290  -   

Total Non-Current Liabilities 376,484,956  334,847,570  297,046,680  234,720,729 
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Group Company

As at 31st March Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current Liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables 29  1,435,904,330  1,685,703,610  1,304,657,419  1,353,219,974 

Current	Portion	of	Long	Term	Loans 27  210,561,719  183,039,240  179,749,998  147,622,000 

Current	Portion	of	Lease	Liability 28  2,223,230  -    2,223,230  -   

Amounts due to Related Companies 30  52,777  2,037,218  30,666  14,828 

Import	Demand	Loans 31  650,751,568  1,026,225,271  586,857,627  817,779,757 

Income Tax Payable 13,807,189  -    13,807,189  -   

Bank	Overdraft	 23  186,423,083  276,052,246  101,349,413  138,924,931 

Total Current Liabilities 2,499,723,896  3,173,057,585  2,188,675,542  2,457,561,490 

Total Liabilities 2,876,208,852  3,507,905,155 2,485,722,222  2,692,282,219 

Total Equity and Liabilities 4,898,190,475  5,304,842,442  4,450,100,090  4,510,998,116 

Net Assets Value per Share 3.74 3.32 3.65 3.38

Figures	in	brackets	indicate	deductions.

The Financial Statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of 
the	Group	set	out	on	pages	76	to	122.

It	is	certified	that	the	Financial	Statements	have	been	prepared	in	compliance	with	the	requirements	of	the	Companies	Act	No.	07	
of	2007.

(Sgd.)
R. D. S. Malinga
Finance Manager

The	Board	of	Directors	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	presentation	of	the	Financial	Statements.
Approved	and	signed	for	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors.

(Sgd.)	 	 	 	 		 	 (Sgd.)																				
W.A.P. Perera     D.S. Panditha
Chairman      Managing Director

31st August 2020
Colombo 
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Statement of Changes in Equity

 Attributable to Owners of the Company  

For the year ended  
31st March

 Stated
 Capital 

 Revaluation
 Reserve 

 Foreign
 Currency

 Translation
 Reserve 

 Fair Value
 Reserve 

 Retained
 Earnings 

 Total  Non-
Controlling 

 Interest

 Total 
 Equity

Group  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April 2018  894,565,898  541,782,183  999,189  19,262,804  366,236,257  1,822,846,331  8,393,965  1,831,240,296 

Opening Balance Adjustments

Impact of Adjusting IFRS-09  -    -    -    -    (50,550,600)  (50,550,600)  (3,115,704)  (53,666,304)

Adjusted Balance as at 01st April 
2018  894,565,898  541,782,183  999,189  19,262,804 315,685,657   1,772,295,731 5,278,261  1,777,573,992 

Profit/(Loss)	for	the	Year  -    -    -    -    13,774,341  13,774,341  (1,378,172)  12,396,169 

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity	Investment	at	FVOCI	-	 
Net Change in Fair Value  -    -    -    (5,489,552)  -    (5,489,552)  -    (5,489,552)

Actuarial Gain on Retirement 
Benefit	Obligation,	Net	of	Tax  -    -    -    -    1,490,468  1,490,468  -    1,490,468 

Net exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations  -    -    10,769,329  -    -    10,769,329  566,807  11,336,136 

Equity Accounted Investees - 
Foreign Currency Translation 
Difference  (249,906)  (249,906)  (249,906)

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the Year  -    -    10,519,423  (5,489,552)  15,264,809  20,294,680  (811,365)  19,483,315 

Changes in Non-Controlling 
Interest

Disposal of NCI  -    (120,020)  (120,020)

Other  -    -    -    -    (5,936,618)  (5,936,618)  5,936,618  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2019  894,565,898  541,782,183  11,518,612  13,773,252  325,013,848  1,786,653,793  10,283,494  1,796,937,287 

Balance as at 1st April 2019  894,565,898  541,782,183  11,518,612  13,773,252  325,013,848  1,786,653,793  10,283,494  1,796,937,287 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 229,621,599 229,621,599  (862,913) 228,758,686

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity	Investment	at	FVOCI	-	 
Net Change in Fair Value  -    -    -    (4,860,745)  -    (4,860,745)  -    (4,860,745)

Actuarial Gain on Retirement 
Benefit	Obligation,	Net	of	Tax  -    -    -    -    (14,719)  (14,719)  -    (14,719)

Net exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations  -    -    1,103,058  -    -    1,103,058  58,056  1,161,114 

Revaluation reversal of 
Investment Property  -    (3,094,478)  -    -    3,094,478 -  -   -

Total Comprehensive Income  
for the Year  -   (3,094,478)  1,103,058  (4,860,745) 232,701,358 225,849,192 (804,857) 225,044,336

Balance as at 31st March 2020  894,565,898 538,687,705  12,621,670  8,912,507 557,715,206 2,012,502,986 9,478,637 2,021,981,623

Figures	in	brackets	indicate	deductions.

The Financial Statement are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the 
Group	set	out	on	pages	76	to	122.
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 Stated 
Capital

 Revaluation
 Reserve

 Fair Value 
Reserve

 Retained 
Earnings

 Total 

Company  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance as at 1st April 2018  894,565,898  512,732,913  19,262,804  388,302,660  1,814,864,275 

Impact of Adjusting IFRS-09  (20,091,905)  (20,091,905)

Adjusted Balance as at 1st April 2018  894,565,898  512,732,913  19,262,804  368,210,755  1,794,772,370 

Profit		for	the	Year  -    -    -    27,942,611  27,942,611 

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity	Investment	at	FVOCI	-	Net	Change	 
in Fair Value  -    -    (5,489,552)  -    (5,489,552)

Actuarial	Gain	on	Retirement	Benefit	
Obligation,	Net	of	Tax  -    -    -    1,490,468  1,490,468 

Total	Comprehensive	Income	for	the	Year  -    -    (5,489,552)  29,433,079  23,943,527 

Balance as at 31st March 2019  894,565,898  512,732,913  13,773,252  397,643,834  1,818,715,897 

Balance as at 1st April 2019  894,565,898  512,732,913  13,773,252  397,643,834  1,818,715,897 

Profit for the Year  -    -    -    150,537,435  150,537,435 

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity	Investment	at	FVOCI	-	Net	Change	 
in Fair Value  -    -    (4,860,745)  -    (4,860,745)

Actuarial	Loss	on	Retirement	Benefit	
Obligation,	Net	of	Tax  -    -    -    (14,719)  (14,719)

Revaluation reversal of Investment Property  -    (3,094,478)  -   3,094,478 -

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  -    (3,094,478)  (4,860,745)  153,617,194 145,661,971

Balance as at 31st March 2020  894,565,898  509,638,435  8,912,507 551,261,028  1,964,377,868 

Figures	in	brackets	indicate	deductions.

The Financial Statement are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the 
Group	set	out	on	pages	76	to	122.
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Statement of Cash Flow

GROUP COMPANY

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit	Before	tax	from	continuing	operations 264,299,230  496,847  181,152,713  10,062,046 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation  125,032,099  120,674,376  81,159,192  81,793,132 

Amortisation of Intangible Asset  2,111,594  2,225,904  2,111,594  2,225,904 

Provision for Impairment of Inventories 115,648,820 - 115,648,820 - 

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables 80,948,505  (61,809,729) 72,809,615  (30,718,985)

Provision for Impairment of Related Party Receivables 2,150,996 - 46,399,057 -

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  (34,500)  (40,000)  (34,500)  (40,000)

Share	of	Profit	of	Equity-Accounted	Investees,	(Net	of	Tax)  (8,328,570)  27,016,523  -    -   

Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries  -    -    56,833,561  67,357,178 

Write-Back	of	Creditors	No	Longer	Payable  (95,700)  (4,440,595)  -    -   

Loss	on	Disposal	of	Investment	Property 2,500,000  -   2,500,000  -   

Gain on Disposal of Investment in Subsidiary  -    (11,983,488)  -    (7,087,007)

Written off of Inventory -  23,128,185 -  23,128,185

Right of Use Asset - Depreciation  1,589,891  -    1,589,891  -   

Provision	for	Employee	Benefit	Obligation  10,040,220  8,855,763  9,697,632  8,524,166 

Interest Expenses  161,961,310  144,628,861 124,405,317  123,110,586 

Interest Income  (1,130,041)  (6,735,471)  (494,934)  (6,195,715)

Dividend Income  (598,233)  (385,154)  (598,233)  (767,175)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 756,095,621  241,632,022 693,279,726  271,392,315 

(Increase)/Decrease	in	Inventories 44,336,172  (455,761,324)  (165,702,796)  (343,427,492)

(Increase)/Decrease	in	Trade	and	Other	Receivables 152,099,083  (351,659,071)  4,984,015  22,145,679 

(Increase)/Decrease	in	Dues	from	Related	Parties  (4,822,654)  (2,706,497)  (74,068,733)  (105,731,476)

Increase/(Decrease)	in	Trade	and	Other	Payables	  (249,703,580)  684,917,822  (48,562,550)  475,400,086 

Increase/(Decrease)	in	Dues	to	Related	Parties  (1,984,441)  (1,027,598)  15,838  (29,085)

Cash Generated from Operations 696,020,201  115,395,354  409,945,500  319,750,027 

Interest Expense Paid  (161,382,155)  (144,628,861)  (123,926,162)  (123,110,586)

Income Tax Paid  (31,405,724)  (21,558,548)  (27,088,479)  (21,409,128)

Retirement	Benefits	Paid  (1,357,705)  (2,935,520)  (1,357,705)  (2,884,270)

Net Cash Flows Generated from Operating Activities 501,874,617  (53,727,575) 257,573,155  172,346,043 
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GROUP COMPANY

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Income Received  1,130,041  6,735,471  494,934  6,195,715 

Dividend	Received	from	FVOCI	Investment  483,528  259,377  483,528  259,377 

Dividend Received from Equity - Accounted Associate  -    382,021  -    382,021 

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment  (144,677,198)  (33,671,893)  (138,920,608)  (18,898,993)

Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  34,500  40,000  34,500  40,000 

Proceeds from Disposal of Investment Property  2,000,000  -    2,000,000  -   

Proceeds from Disposal of Subsidiary  -    158,000,000  -    158,000,000 

Amount Advanced to Related Party  -    -  -    (42,791,581)

Net	Cash	Outflow	Associated	with	Assets	Classified	 
as Held for Sale  -    (7,547,200)  -    (7,547,200)

Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities  (141,029,128)  124,197,776  (135,907,646)  95,639,339 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceed from Interest-Bearing Borrowings  2,733,229,712  2,969,644,710  2,654,150,403  2,653,222,378 

Repayment of Interest-Bearing Borrowings  (3,031,198,708)  (3,341,876,402)  (2,782,694,536)  (3,127,602,652)

Repayment	of	Lease	Liability  (2,163,000)  -    (2,163,000)  -   

Net Cash Flows From/(Used In) Financing Activities  (300,131,996)  (372,231,692)  (131,707,134)  (474,380,274)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 60,713,493  (301,761,491)  (9,041,624)  (206,394,892)

Effect of Movement in Exchange Rates  (1,402,821)  19,301,419  -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  (204,262,224)  78,197,848  (72,243,873)  134,151,019 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year  (144,951,553)  (204,262,224)  (81,285,499)  (72,243,873)

Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash	in	Hand	and	at	Bank  41,471,530  71,790,022  20,063,915  66,681,058 

Bank	Overdraft  (186,423,083)  (276,052,246)  (101,349,413)  (138,924,931)

 (144,951,553)  (204,262,224)  (81,285,499)  (72,243,873)

The Financial Statement are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form a part of these Financial Statements of the 
Group	set	out	on	pages	76	to	122.
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Accounting Policies

1.  Reporting Entity 
1.1  Domicile and Legal Form

Sierra	Cables	PLC	(the	Company)	is	a	public	limited	liability	
Company	incorporated	and	domiciled	in	Sri	Lanka	and	listed	on	the	
Colombo	Stock	Exchange.	The	registered	office	of	the	Company	
is	located	at	112,	Havelock	Road,	Colombo	05	and	principal	place	
of	business	is	located	at	39/1A,	Galwarusawa	Road,	Korathota,	
Kaduwela.	

The consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as at 
and for the year ended 31st March 2020 comprise the Financial 
Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred 
as the “Group” individually as Group entities) and the Group’s 
interest	in	equity	accounted	investees.

The ultimate parent Company of the Company is Sierra Holding 
(Private)	Limited,	a	company	domiciled	in	Sri	Lanka.

1.2  Principal activities and nature of operations

The principal activity of the Company is manufacture and sale 
of	wires	and	cables.	The	principal	activities	of	the	Company’s	
subsidiaries	are	as	follows:

Sierra	Industries	(Private)	Limited	–	Manufacturing	all	types	of	
pipes	and	fittings	and	manufacturing	any	type	of	construction	
materials	required	for	infrastructure	development.

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited	–	Manufacture	of	power	
transmission	cables.

2.  Basis of Preparation 
2.1  Statement of Compliance

The consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and the 
separate Financial Statements of the Company, which comprise 
the	statement	of	profit	or	loss	and	other	comprehensive	income,	
statement	of	financial	position,	statement	of	changes	in	equity,	
statement	of	cash	flows,	and	notes	to	the	Financial	Statements	
have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	
Standards	(SLFRSs/LKASs)	promulgated	by	the	Institute	of	
Chartered	Accountants	of	Sri	Lanka	(ICASL)	and	comply	with	the	
requirement	of	Companies	Act	No.	07	of	2007.	

This	is	the	first	set	of	the	Group’s	Financial	Statements	in	which	
SLFRS	16	Leases	have	been	applied.	Changes	to	the	significant	
accounting	policies	are	described	in	the	Note	3.1.

2.2  Approval of financial statements by Directors

The Financial Statements of the Group and the Company for the 
year ended 31st March 2020 were approved and authorised for 
issue	by	the	Board	of	Directors	on	31st	August	2020.

2.3  Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of the Group and the Company have 
been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following 
material	items	in	the	statement	of	financial	position.	

 y Fair	value	through	other	comprehensive	income	financial	
assets	are	measured	at	fair	value;	

 y Defined	benefit	obligations	is	carried	at	the	present	value	of	
the	defined	benefit	obligations.	

 y Land	and	buildings	are	measured	at	cost	at	the	time	of	
acquisition and subsequently at revalued amounts, which are 
the	fair	values	at	the	date	of	revaluation.	

 y Recognition and measurement of provisions and 
contingencies;	key	assumptions	about	the	likelihood	and	
magnitude	of	an	outflow	of	resources.	

2.4  Going concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group’s ability 
to	continue	as	a	going	concern,	and	being	satisfied	that	it	has	
the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future 
confirm	that	they	do	not	intend	either	to	liquidate	or	to	cease	
operations	of	any	business	unit	of	the	Group.	The	Financial	
Statements	are	prepared	on	the	going	concern	basis.

2.5  Reporting date

The Financial Statements of all Companies in the group are 
prepared	for	a	common	financial	year,	which	ends	on	31st	March	
except	for	Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited,	T	&	G	Lanka	(Private)	
Limited	and	Cables	PTE	Ltd	whose	financial	year	ends	on	31st	
December	and	30th	June	respectively.

2.6  Functional and Presentation Currency

The	Financial	Statements	are	presented	in	Sri	Lankan	Rupees,	
which	is	the	Group’s	functional	currency.	All	financial	information	
presented	in	Sri	Lankan	Rupees	has	been	rounded	to	the	nearest	
rupee,	unless	stated	otherwise.

2.7  Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Sri 
Lanka	Accounting	Standards	requires	management	to	make	
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities,	income	and	expenses.	Actual	results	may	differ	from	
these	estimates.	

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis.	Revisions	to	accounting	estimates	are	recognised	in	the	
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected.	

Information about critical estimates and judgments in applying 
accounting	policies	that	have	the	most	significant	effect	on	the	
amounts recognised in the Financial Statements is provided in the 
following	notes.

Judgements

 y Equity accounted investees – whether the Group has 
significant	influence	over	an	investee.

 y Consolidation – whether the Group has de facto control over an 
investee.

Assumptions

 y Measurement	of	defined	benefit	obligation:	key	actuarial	
assumptions
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 y Recognition	of	deferred	tax	assets:	availability	of	future	taxable	
profit	against	which	deductible	temporary	differences	and	tax	
losses carried forward can be utilised

2.8  Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid	to	transfer	a	liability	in	an	orderly	transaction	between	market	
participants	at	the	measurement	date.	When	measuring	fair	value	
of	an	asset	or	liability,	the	Group	uses	observable	market	data	as	
far	as	possible.	Fair	values	are	categorised	into	different	levels	in	
a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques	as	follows:

Level	1	 :	 quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	
identical assets or liabilities

Level	2	 :	 inputs	other	than	quoted	prices	included	in	Level	1	that	
are observable for the asset or liability either directly 
(i.e.	as	prices)	or	indirectly	(i.e.	derived	from	prices)	

Level	3	 :	 inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	that	are	not	based	on	
observable	market	data	(unobservable	inputs)	If	inputs	
used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in 
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest 
level	input	that	is	significant	to	the	entire	measurement.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and disclosure 
purposes	based	on	the	following	methods.	Where	applicable	
further information about the assumptions made in determining 
fair	value	is	disclosed	in	the	notes	specific	to	that	asset	or	liability.	

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction	to	sell	the	asset	or	transfer	the	liability	takes	place	
either:

 y In	the	principal	market	for	the	asset	or	liability	
Or

 y In	the	absence	of	a	principal	market,	in	the	most	advantageous	
market	for	the	asset	or	liability.	The	principal	or	the	most	
advantageous	market	must	be	accessible	by	the	Group.	

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions	that	market	participants	would	use	when	pricing	
the	asset	or	liability,	assuming	that	market	participants	act	in	
their	economic	best	interest.	A	fair	value	measurement	of	a	non-
financial	asset	takes	into	account	a	market	participant’s	ability	to	
generate	economic	benefits	by	using	the	asset	in	its	highest	and	
best	use	or	by	selling	it	to	another	market	participant	that	would	
use	the	asset	in	its	highest	and	best	use.	

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the	circumstances	and	for	which	sufficient	data	are	available	to	
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs

3.  Significant accounting policies 
The accounting policies adopted by the Group are consistent  
with	those	used	in	the	previous	year.	Other	than	the	adoption	of	
SLFRS	16.

3.1  Changes in Significant accounting policies

The	Group	applied	SLFRS	16	from	1st	April	2019.	A	number	of	other	
new standards are also effective from 1st April 2019, but they do 
not	have	material	effect	on	the	Group	financial	statements.

3.1.1  SLFRS 16 -  Leases 

The	Group	has	applied	SLFRS	16,	which	is	effective	for	the	annual	
reporting	periods	beginning	on	or	after	April	1,	2019	for	the	first	
time.	

The	Group	adopted	SLFRS	16	using	the	modified	retrospective	
approach (option b), Under which no cumulative effect of initial 
application is recognized in retained earnings as at 1st April 2019 
and therefore the comparative information has not been restated 
and	continues	to	be	reported	under	LKAS	17	Leases	and	IFRIC	4	
Determining	whether	an	arrangement	contains	a	lease.

Accordingly,	the	comparative	information	presented	for	2019/2020	
is	not	restated.	i.e.	it	is	presented,	as	previously	reported,	under	
LKAS	17	and	related	interpretations.	The	details	of	the	changes	in	
accounting	policies	are	disclosed	below.	Additionally,	the	disclosure	
requirements	in	SLFRS	16	have	not	generally	been	applied	to	
comparative	information.

Definition of a lease 

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an 
arrangement was or contained a lease under IFRIC 4 Determining 
whether	an	Arrangement	contains	a	Lease.	The	Group	now	
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the 
definition	of	a	lease.	

On	transition	to	SLFRS	16,	the	Group	elected	to	apply	the	practical	
expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions 
are	leases.	The	Group	applied	SLFRS	16	only	to	contracts	that	were	
previously	identified	as	leases.	Contracts	that	were	not	identified	
as	leases	under	LKAS	17	and	IFRIC	4	were	not	reassessed	for	
whether	there	is	a	lease	under	SLFRS	16.	Therefore,	the	definition	
of	a	lease	under	SLFRS	16	was	applied	only	to	contracts	entered	or	
changed	on	or	after	1st	April	2019.

As a lessee 

The	Group	previously	classified	leases	as	operating	or	finance	
leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred 
significantly	all	of	the	risks	and	rewards	incidental	to	ownership	
of	the	underlying	asset	to	the	Group.	Under	SLFRS	16,	the	Group	
recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the leases – 
i.e.	these	leases	are	on-balance	sheet.
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Accounting Policies Contd.

At	commencement	or	on	modification	of	a	contract	that	contains	
a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the 
contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-
alone	price.

However, for leases of property the Group has elected not to 
separate	non-lease	components	as	a	single	lease	component.

3.1.1.1 SLFRS 16

a) Leases classified as operating leases under LKAS 17 

Previously,	the	Group	classified	property	leases	as	operating	leases	
under	LKAS	17.	On	transition,	lease	liabilities	were	measured	at	the	
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the 
Group’s	incremental	borrowing	rate	as	at	1st	April	2019.	Right-of-
use	assets	are	measured	at:	

 y an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of 
any	prepaid	or	accrued	lease	payments.	The	Group	applied	this	
approach	to	all	the	leases.	

The Group has tested its right-of-use assets for impairment on 
the date of transition and has concluded that there is no indication 
that	right-of-use	assets	are	impaired.	The	Group	used	the	following	
practical	expedients	when	applying	SLFRS	16	to	leases	previously	
classified	as	operating	leases	under	LKAS	17.	

 y Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with 
similar	characteristics.

 y Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use 
asset at the date of initial application 

 y Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract 
contains	options	to	extend	or	terminate	the	lease.	

 y did not recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases 
for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of 
initial	application.

 y did not recognize right-of -use assets and liabilities for leases 
of	low	value	assets.

b) Leases previously classified as finance leases 

For	leases	that	were	classified	as	finance	leases	under	LKAS	17,	
the carrying amount of the right-of use asset and the lease liability 
as at 1st April 2019 are determined at the carrying amount of the 
lease	asset	and	lease	liability	under	LKAS	17	immediately	before	
that	date.

c) Impact on financial statements 

On	transition	to	SLFRS	16,	the	Group	recognised	additional	
right-of-use	assets	and	additional	lease	liabilities.	The	impact	on	
translation	is	summarised	below.

Description Group
1st April 2019

Rs.

Company
1st April 2019

  Rs.

Right-of-Use Asset 5,285,365 5,285,365

Lease	Liabilities 5,285,365 5,285,365

When	measuring	lease	liabilities	for	leases	that	were	classified	as	
operating leases, the Group discounted lease payments using its 
incremental	borrowing	rate	at	1st	April	2019.	The	weighted	average	
rate	applied	is	14.23%.

3.2  Basis of consolidation 
3.2.1  Business combination 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method as at the acquisition date when control is transferred to the 
Group.	Control	is	the	power	to	govern	the	financial	and	operating	
policies	of	an	entity	so	as	to	obtain	benefits	from	its	activities.	In	
assessing	control,	the	Group	takes	into	consideration	potential	
voting	rights	that	are	currently	exercisable.

The	Group	measures	goodwill	at	the	acquisition	date	as:	

 y The	fair	value	of	the	consideration	transferred;	plus	

 y The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the 
acquire;	plus	

 y If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value 
of	the	pre-existing	equity	interest	in	the	acquire;	less	

 y The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the 
identifiable	assets	acquired	and	liabilities	assumed.	

 y When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is 
recognised	immediately	in	profit	or	loss.

3.2.2  Non-controlling interests 

NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the 
acquiree’s	identifiable	net	assets	at	the	date	of	acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result 
in	a	loss	of	control	are	accounted	for	as	equity	transactions.	
Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a 
proportionate	amount	of	the	net	assets	of	the	subsidiary.	

No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is 
recognised	in	profit	or	loss.	

3.2.3  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries	are	entities	controlled	by	the	Group.	The	Group	
‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or has right to, variable 
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to 
affect	those	returns	through	its	power	over	the	entity.	The	Financial	
Statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated 
Financial Statements from the date that control commences until 
the	date	that	control	ceases.

3.2.4  Loss of control 

When the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises 
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interests	and	other	components	of	equity.	Any	resulting	gain	or	
loss	is	recognised	in	profit	or	loss.	If	the	Group	retains	any	interest	
in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair 
value	at	the	date	that	control	is	lost.	Subsequently,	it	is	accounted	
for as equity-accounted investee or as an fair value through other 
comprehensive	income	financial	asset	depending	on	the	level	of	
influence	retained.
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3.2.5  Interest in equity-accounted investees

The Group’s interest in equity-accounted investees comprise 
interest	in	associates	and	a	joint	venture.	

Associates	are	those	entities	in	which	the	Group	has	significant	
influence,	but	not	control	or	joint	control	over	the	financial	and	
operating	policies.	A	joint	venture	is	an	arrangement	in	which	the	
Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net 
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and 
obligations	for	its	liabilities.

Interests in associates and joint venture are accounted for using 
the	equity	method.	They	are	initially	recognised	at	cost,	which	
includes	transaction	costs.	Subsequent	to	initial	recognition,	the	
consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of the 
profit	or	loss	and	OCI	of	equity-accounted	investees,	until	the	date	
on	which	significant	influence	or	joint	control	ceases.

3.2.6  Intra-group transactions

Pricing policies of all intra-group sales are identical to those 
adopted	for	normal	trading	transactions,	which	are	at	market	
prices.

3.2.7  Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income 
and expenses arising from intra group transactions, are eliminated 
in	preparing	the	consolidated	Financial	Statements.	Unrealised	
gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees 
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s 
interest	in	the	investee.	Unrealised	losses	are	eliminated	in	the	
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence	of	impairment.

3.3  Foreign currency
3.3.1  Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective 
functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the 
dates	of	the	transactions.	

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at the reporting date are re-translated to the functional currency 
at	the	exchange	rate	at	the	reporting	date.	Non-monetary	assets	
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured 
at fair value are translated into the functional currency at the 
exchange	rate	when	the	fair	value	was	determined.	Non-monetary	
items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical 
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction.	Foreign	currency	differences	are	generally	recognised	
in	profit	or	loss	and	presented	within	finance	cost.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation 
of the following items are recognised in other comprehensive 
income.

 y An	investment	in	equity	securities	designated	as	at	FVOCI.
 y A	financial	liability	designated	as	a	hedge	of	the	net	investment	

in a foreign operation to the extent that the hedge is effective, 
and 

 y Qualifying	cash	flow	hedges	to	the	extent	the	hedges	are	
effective.	

3.3.2  Foreign operations

The	results	and	financial	position	of	overseas	operations	that	
have functional currency different from the Group’s presentation 
currency are translated into the Group’s presentation currency as 
follows:	

Assets and liabilities, including goodwill and fair value adjustments 
arising on acquisition, are translated at the rates of exchange ruling 
as	at	the	Reporting	date.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate 
for	the	period.

The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation 
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the foreign currency translation reserve (Translation Reserve), 
which is a separate component of equity, except to the extent that 
the	translation	difference	is	allocated	to	the	NCI.	

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that the control is 
lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to 
that	foreign	operation	is	reclassified	to	profit	or	loss	as	part	of	
the	gain	or	loss	on	disposal.	If	the	Group	disposes	of	only	part	of	
its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while 
retaining control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative 
amount	of	the	translation	reserve	is	reattributed	to	NCI.	

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation 
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and 
liabilities	of	the	foreign	operation.

3.4  Property, Plant and Equipment 
3.4.1  Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded 
at	cost.	Where	items	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	are	
subsequently	revalued,	the	entire	class	of	such	assets	is	revalued.	
Revaluations	are	made	with	sufficient	regularity	to	ensure	that	their	
carrying amounts do not differ materially from their fair values at 
the	reporting	date.

Subsequent to the initial recognition of the asset at cost, the 
revalued property, plant and equipment are carried at revalued 
amounts less accumulated depreciation thereon and accumulated 
impairment	losses.	The	Group	applies	revaluation	model	to	land,	
building and cost model to the remaining assets under property, 
plant and equipment which are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses, if 
any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprise its 
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
asset	to	working	condition	for	its	intended	use.	The	cost	of	self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, any 
other	costs	directly	attributable	to	bringing	the	asset	to	the	working	
condition	for	its	intended	use	and	capitalised	borrowing	costs.	
This also includes cost of dismantling and removing the items and 
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restoring	in	the	site	on	which	they	are	located.	When	parts	of	an	
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, 
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property,	plant	and	equipment.	

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds 
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in 
profit	or	loss.

3.4.2  Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is 
probable	that	the	future	economic	benefits	embodied	within	the	
part	will	flow	to	the	Company	and	its	cost	can	be	measured	reliably.	
The	carrying	amount	of	the	replaced	part	is	derecognised.	

The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment	are	recognised	in	profit	or	loss	as	incurred.	

3.4.3  De-recognition 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised	on	disposal	or	when	no	future	economic	benefits	are	
expected	from	its	use	or	disposal.	Gains	or	losses	on	derecognition	
are	recognised	within	other	income	in	profit	or	loss.	

3.4.4  Depreciation 

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a 
straight-line	basis	in	profit	or	loss	over	the	estimated	useful	lives	of	
each	component.	Leased	assets	are	depreciated	over	the	shorter	
of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably 
certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease	term.	Land	is	not	depreciated.	Items	of	property,	plant	and	
equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed 
and are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, 
from	the	date	that	the	asset	is	completed	and	ready	for	use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative  years of 
significant	items	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	are	as	follows:

Asset Category Useful Life
 (Years)

Depreciation
 Rate

(%)

Building 20-25 4-5

Plant and Machinery 10-20 5-10

Factory Equipment 5 20

Furniture Fittings 5 20

Motor Vehicles 5 20

Offices	and	Computer	Equipment 5 20

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use where 
as depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that 
the	asset	is	classified	as	held	for	sale	and	the	date	that	the	asset	is	
derecognised.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed 
at	each	financial	year	end	and	adjusted	if	appropriate.

3.4.5  Revaluation policy

The	Group’s	land	and	buildings	are	revalued	with	sufficient	
regularity	once	in	five	years.	The	revaluation	surplus	is	accounted	in	
the	revaluation	reserve.

3.5  Intangible Assets and Goodwill
3.5.1  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that economic 
benefits	are	attributable	to	the	assets	will	flow	to	the	Group	and	
cost of the assets can be measured reliably and carried at cost less 
accumulated	amortisation	and	accumulated	impairment	losses.

3.5.1.1  Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented 
with	intangible	assets.	For	the	measurement	of	goodwill	at	initial	
recognition,	see	Note	3.2.1.

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill	is	measured	at	cost	less	accumulated	impairment	losses.	
In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount 
of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment, 
and any impairment loss is allocated to the carrying amount of the 
equity	accounted	investee	as	a	whole.

3.5.1.2  Computer software

All computer software cost incurred, which are not an integral part 
of	the	related	hardware,	which	can	be	clearly	identified,	reliably	
measured and its probable that they will lead to future economic 
benefits,	are	included	in	the	Statement	of	Financial	Position	under	
the	category	of	intangible	assets.	

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the 
future	economic	benefits	embodied	in	the	specific	asset	to	which	
it	relates.	All	other	expenditure	is	recognised	in	profit	or	loss	as	
incurred.

Amortisation

Intangible	assets	are	amortised	on	a	straight-line	basis	in	profit	or	
loss over their estimated useful lives from the date that they are 
available	for	use.	The	estimated	useful	lives	for	the	current	and	
comparative	years	are	as	follows:

Asset Category Useful Life 
(Years)

Depreciation Rate
 (%)

Computer Software 05 20

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed	at	each	reporting	date	and	adjusted	if	appropriate.

3.6 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or 
contains,	a	lease.	That	is,	if	the	contract	conveys	the	right	to	control	
the	use	of	an	identified	asset	for	a	period	of	time	in	exchange	for	
consideration.
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3.6.1 Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach 
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value	assets.	The	Group	recognises	lease	liabilities	to	make	lease	
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the 
underlying	assets.

3.6.1.1  Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement 
date	of	the	lease	(i.e.,	the	date	the	underlying	asset	is	available	
for	use).	Right-of-use	assets	are	measured	at	cost,	less	any	
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for 
any	re-measurement	of	lease	liabilities.	The	cost	of	right-of-use	
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement	date	less	any	lease	incentives	received.	Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 
of	the	lease	term	and	the	estimated	useful	lives	of	the	assets.	The	
Group’s Right-of-use assets are included in Note 28 to the Financial 
Statements.

3.6.1.2  Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises 
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments 
to	be	made	over	the	lease	term.	The	lease	payments	include	fixed	
payments	(including	in-substance	fixed	payments)	less	any	lease	
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an 
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value	guarantees.	The	lease	payments	also	include	the	exercise	
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the 
lease	term	reflects	the	Group	exercising	the	option	to	terminate.	
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate 
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce 
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that 
triggers	the	payment	occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group 
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement 
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable.	After	the	commencement	date,	the	amount	of	lease	
liabilities	is	increased	to	reflect	the	accretion	of	interest	and	reduced	
for	the	lease	payments	made.	In	addition,	the	carrying	amount	of	
lease	liabilities	is	remeasured	if	there	is	a	modification,	a	change	
in	the	lease	term,	a	change	in	the	lease	payments	(e.g.,	changes	to	
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used 
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment 
of	an	option	to	purchase	the	underlying	asset.	The	Group’s	lease	
liabilities	are	included	in	Note	28	to	the	Financial	Statements.

3.6.1.3  Short-Term leases and leases of low value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to 
its	short-term	leases	(i.e.,	those	leases	that	have	a	lease	term	of	12	
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain 
a	purchase	option).	It	also	applies	the	low	value	assets	recognition	
exemption	to	leases	that	are	considered	to	be	low-value.	Lease	
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised	as	expense	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	lease	term.

3.7  Investment property

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental 
income or for capital appreciation or both but not for sale in the 
ordinary course of business, used in the production or supply of 
goods	or	services	for	administrative	purposes.

Investment property is recognised, if it is probable that future 
economic	benefits	that	are	associated	with	the	investment	
property,	will	flow	to	the	Group	and	cost	of	the	investment	property	
can	be	reliably	measured.

An	investment	property	is	measured	initially	at	its	cost.	The	cost	
of a purchased investment property comprises of its purchase 
price and directly attributable expenditure, the cost of the self-
constructed investment property is its cost at the date of when the 
construction	or	development	is	completed.	The	Group	applies	the	
cost	model	for	investment	properties	in	accordance	with	LKAS	40	
–	“Investment	property.”

3.8  Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value.	The	cost	of	inventories	includes	expenditure	incurred	in	
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs, and 
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location 
and	condition.	In	the	case	of	manufactured	inventories	and	work	
in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production 
overheads	based	on	normal	operating	capacity.	Net	realisable	value	
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary	to	make	the	sales.	

The costs incurred in bringing inventories to its present location 
and	condition,	are	accounted	for	as	follows:

Raw materials

 y At actual cost, on Weighted Average basis

Finished goods and work-in-progress

• At actual cost, on Weighted Average for work in progress and 
finished goods
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3.9  Impairment of non-financial assets

The	carrying	amounts	of	the	Group’s	non-financial	assets,	other	
than inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether	there	is	any	indication	of	impairment.	If	any	such	indication	
exists,	then	the	asset’s	recoverable	amount	is	estimated.	An	
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an assets or 
cash	generating	unit	(CGU)	exceeds	its	recoverable	amount.	

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its 
value	in	use	and	its	fair	value	less	costs	to	sell.	In	assessing	value	
in	use,	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	are	discounted	to	their	
present	value	using	a	pre-tax	discount	rate	that	reflects	current	
market	assessments	of	the	time	value	of	money	and	the	risks	
specific	to	the	asset	or	CGU.	For	impairment	testing,	assets	are	
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash	inflows	from	continuing	use	that	are	largely	independent	of	
the	cash	inflows	of	other	assets	or	CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive	income.	Impairment	losses	recognised	in	respect	
of	CGUs	are	allocated	first	to	reduce	the	carrying	amount	of	any	
goodwill allocated to CGU (if any) and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on pro rata 
basis.	An	impairment	loss	in	respect	of	goodwill	is	not	reversed.	
For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation,	if	no	impairment	loss	had	been	recognised.			

3.10  Financial instruments 
3.10.1  Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised 
when	they	are	originated.	All	other	financial	assets	and	financial	
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party 
to	the	contractual	provisions	of	the	instrument.

A	financial	asset	(unless	it	is	a	trade	receivable	without	a	significant	
financing	component)	or	financial	liability	is	initially	measured	at	
fair	value	plus,	for	an	item	not	at	FVTPL,	transaction	costs	that	are	
directly	attributable	to	its	acquisition	or	issue.	A	trade	receivable	
without	a	significant	financing	component	is	initially	measured	at	
the	transaction	price.

3.10.2  Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial	assets	on	initial	recognition,	a	financial	asset	is	classified	
as	measured	at:	amortised	cost;	FVOCI	-	debt	investment;	FVOCI-
equity	investment;	or	FVTPL.

Financial	assets	are	not	reclassified	subsequent	to	their	initial	
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for 
managing	financial	assets	in	which	case	all	affected	financial	
assets	are	reclassified	on	the	first	day	of	the	first	reporting	period	
following	the	change	in	the	business	model.

A	financial	asset	is	measured	at	amortised	cost	if	it	meets	both	of	
the	following	conditions	and	is	not	designed	as	at	FVTPL:

 y it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
assets	to	collect	contractual	cash	flows;	and

 y its	contractual	terms	give	rise	on	specified	dates	to	cash	
flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	principal	and	interest	on	the	
principal	amount	outstanding.

A	debt	investment	is	measured	at	FVOCI	if	it	meets	both	of	the	
following	conditions	and	is	not	designated	as	at	FVTPL:

 y it is held within  a  business  model whose  objective  is achieved 
by	both	collecting		contractual		cash	flows		and	selling	financial	
assets;	and

 y its	contractual	terms	give	rise	on	specified	dates	to	cash	
flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	principal	and	interest	on	the	
principal	amount	outstanding.

On	initial	recognition	of	an	equity	investment	that	is	not	held	for	
trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent 
changes	in	the	investment’s	fair	value	in	OCI.	This	election	is	made	
on	an	investment-by		investment	basis.

All	financial	assets	not	classified	as	measured	at	amortised	cost	or	
FVOCI	as	described	above	are	measured	at	FVTPL.	This	includes	
all	derivative	financial	assets.	On	initial	recognition,	the	Group	may	
irrevocably	designate	a	financial	asset	that	otherwise	meets	the	
requirements	to	be	measured	at	amortised	cost	or	at	FVOCI	as	at	
FVTPL	if	doing	so	eliminates	or	significantly	reduces	an	accounting	
mismatch	that	would	otherwise	arise.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

The	Group	makes	an	assessment	of	the	objective	of	the	business	
model	in	which	a	financial	asset	is	held	at	a	portfolio	levels	because	
this	best	reflects	the	way	the	business	is	managed	and	information	
is	provided	to	management.	The	information	considered	includes:

 y the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the 
operation	of	those	policies	in	practice.	These	include	whether	
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual 
interest	income,	maintaining	a	particular	interest	rate	profile,	
matching	the	duration	of	the	financial	assets	to	the	duration	
of	any	related	liabilities	or	expected	cash	outflows	or	realising	
cash	flows	through	the	sale	of	the	assets;

 y how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported 
to	the	Group’s	management;

 y the	risks	that	affect	the	performance	of	the	business	model	
(and	the	financial	assets	held	within	that	business	model)	and	
how	those	risks	are	managed;

 y how	managers	of	the	business	are	compensated	-	e.g.	whether	
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed 
or	the	contractual	cash	flows	collected;	and

 y the	frequency,	volume	and	timing	of	sales	of	financial	assets	
in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations 
about	future	sales	activity.

Transfers	of	financial	assets	to	third	parties	in	transactions	that	
do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this 
purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the 
assets.	Financial	assets	that	are	held	for	trading	or	are	managed	
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are 
measured	at	FVTPL.
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Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows 
are solely payments of principal and interest

For	the	purposes	of	this	assessment,	‘principal’	is	defined	as	the	fair	
value	of	the	financial	asset	on	initial	recognition.	‘Interest’	is	defined	
as	consideration	for	the	time	value	of	money	and	for	the	credit	risk	
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular 
period	of	time	and	for	other	basic	lending	risks	and	costs	(e.g.	
liquidity	risk	and	administrative	costs),	as	well	as	a	profit	margin.

In	assessing	whether	the	contractual	cash	flows	are	solely	
payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the 
contractual	terms	of	the	instrument.	This	includes	assessing	
whether	the	financial	asset	contains	a	contractual	term	that	could	
change	the	timing	or	amount	of	contractual	cash	flows	such	that	
it	would	not	meet	this	condition.	In	making	this	assessment,	the	
Group	considers:

 y contingent events that would change the amount or timing of 
cash	flows;

 y terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including 
variable-rate	features;

 y prepayment	and	extension	features;	and
 y terms	that	limit	the	Group’s	claim	to	cash	flows	from	specified	
assets	(e.g.	non-recourse	features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments 
of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount 
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and  
interest  on the  principal amount  outstanding, which may include 
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of 
the	contract.	Additionally,	for	a	financial	asset	acquired	at	a	
discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that 
permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially 
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) 
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional 
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent 
with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is 
insignificant	at	initial	recognition.

Financial assets-Subsequent measurement and gains and 
losses

Financial assets 
at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at 
fair	value.	Net	gains	and	losses,	including	any	
interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
profit	or	loss.

Financial assets 
at amortised 
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.	The	amortised	cost	is	reduced	by	
impairment	losses.	Interest	income,	foreign	
exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised	in	profit	or	loss.	Any	gain	or	loss	on	
derecognition	is	recognised	in	profit	or	loss.

Debt 
investments at 
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at 
fair	value.	Interest	income	calculated	using	the	
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains 
and	losses	and	impairment	are	recognised	in	profit	
or	loss.	Other	net	gains	and	losses	are	recognised	
in	OCI.	On	derecognition.	Gains	and	losses	
accumulated	in	OCI	are	reclassified	to	profit	or	loss.

Equity 
investments at 
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value.	Dividends	are	recognised	as	income	in	profit	
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a 
recovery	of	part	of	the	cost	of	the	investment.	
Other	net	gains	and	losses	are	recognised	in	OCI	
and	are	never	reclassified	to	profit	or	loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement 
and gains and losses

Financial	liabilities	are	classified	as	measured	at	amortised	cost	or	
FVTPL.	A	financial	liability	is	classified	as	at	FVTPL	if	it	is	classified	
as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such 
on	initial	recognition.		Financial	liabilities	at	FVTPL	are	measured	
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest 
expense,	are	recognised	in	profit	or	loss.	Other	financial	liabilities	
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest	method.	Interest	expense	and	foreign	exchange	gains	
and	losses	are	recognised	in	profit	or	loss.	Any	gain	or	loss	on	
derecognition	is	also	recognised	in	profit	or	loss.

3.10.3  Derecogition

3.10.3.1  Financial assets

The	Group	derecognises	a	financial	asset	when	the	contractual	
rights	to	the	cash	flows	from	the	financial	asset	expire,	or	it	transfers	
the	rights	to	receive	the	contractual	cash	flows	in	a	transaction	in	
which	substantially	all	of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	of	the	
financial	asset	are	transferred	or	in	which	the	Group	neither	transfers	
nor	retains	substantially	all	of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	and	
it	does	not	retain	control	of	the	financial	asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets 
recognised	in	its	statement	of	financial	position,	but	retains	either	
all	or	substantially	all	of	the	risks	and	rewards	of	the	transferred	
assets.	In	these	cases,	the	transferred	assets	are	not	derecognised.

3.10.3.2  Financial liabilities

The	Group	derecognises	a	financial	liability	when	its	contractual	
obligations	are	discharged	or	cancelled,	or	expire.	The	Group	also	
derecognises	a	financial	liability	when	its	terms	are	modified	and	
the	cash	flows	of	the	modified	liability	are	substantially	different,	in	
which	case	a	new	financial	liability	based	on	the	modified	terms	is	
recognised	at	fair	value.

On	derecognition	of	a	financial	liability,	the	difference	between	
the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid 
(including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is 
recognised	in	profit	or	loss.

3.10.4  Offsetting

Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	offset	and	the	net	
amount	presented	in	the	statement	of	financial	position	when,	and	
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set 
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis 
or	to	realise	the	asset	and	settle	the	liability	simultaneously.

3.10.5  Impairment 

The	Group	recognises	loss	allowances	for	ECLs	on:
-	 financial	assets	measured	at	amortised	cost;	
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The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime 
ECL,	except	for	following,	which	are	measured	at	12	months	ECLs;

 y debt	securities	and	that	are	determined	to	have	low	credit	risk	
at the reporting date

 y other	debt	securities	and	bank	charges	for	which	credit	risk	
(i.e	the	risk	of	default	occurring	over	the	expected	life	of	the	
financial	instrument)	has	not	increased	significantly	since	initial	
recognition.	

Loss	allowances	for	trade	receivables	and	contract	assets	are	
always	measured	at	an	amount	equal	to	lifetime	ECLs.	

When	determining	whether	the	credit	risk	of	a	financial	asset	has	
increased	significantly	since	initial	recognition	and	when	estimating	
ECL,	the	Group	considers	reasonable	and	supportable	information	
that	is	relevant	and	available	without	undue	cost	or	effort.	This	
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, 
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit 
assessment	and	including	forward-looking	information.

The	Group	assumes	that	the	credit	risk	on	a	financial	asset	has	
increased	significantly	if	it	is	more	than	30	days	past	due.

The	Group	considers	a	financial	asset	to	be	in	default	when:

 y The	borrower	is	unlikely	to	pay	its	credit	obligations	to	the	
Company in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such 
as	realising	security	(if	any	is	held).

 y The	financial	asset	is	more	than	90	days	past	due.

Lifetime	ECLs	are	the	ECLs	that	result	from	all	possible	default	
events	over	the	expected	life	of	a	financial	instrument.	

12-month	ECLs	are	the	portion	of	ECLs	that	result	from	default	
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting 
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is 
less	than	12	months).	

The	maximum	period	considered	when	estimating	ECLs	is	the	
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to 
credit	risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECL	are	a	probability-weighted	estimate	of	credit	losses.	Credit	
losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls 
(i.e.	the	difference	between	the	cash	flows	due	to	the	entity	in	
accordance	with	the	contract	and	the	cash	flows	that	Group	
expects	to	receive.)

ECL	are	discounted	at	the	effective	interest	rate	of	the	financial	
asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At	each	reporting	date,	the	Group	assesses	whether	financial	
assets	carried	at	amortised	cost	are	credit-impaired.	A	financial	
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a 
detrimental	impact	on	the	estimated	future	cash	flows	of	the	
financial	asset	have	occurred.

Evidence	that	a	financial	asset	is	credit-impaired	includes	the	
following	observable	data:	

 y Significant	financial	difficulty	of	the	borrower	or	issuer;
 y A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 
days	past	due;

 y The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms 
that the Group would not consider otherwise

 y It	is	probable	that	the	borrower	will	enter	bankruptcy	or	other	
financial	reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of 
financial position

Loss	allowances	for	financial	assets	measured	at	amortised	cost	
are	deducted	from	the	gross	carrying	amount	of	the	assets.

For	debt	securities	at	FVOCI,	the	loss	allowance	is	charged	to	profit	
or	loss	and	is	recognised	in	OCI.

Write-offs

The	gross	carrying	amount	of	a	financial	asset	is	written	off	(either	
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of 
recovery.	

3.10.6  Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call 
deposits with maturities of three months or less from the 
acquisition	date	that	are	subject	to	an	insignificant	risk	of	changes	
in their fair value and are used by the Group in the management of 
its	short-term	commitments.	

3.11  Stated capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary 
shares	are	recognised	as	a	deduction	from	equity.	Income	tax	
relating to transaction costs of an equity transactions is accounted 
for	in	accordance	with	LKAS	12.

3.12  Defined benefit plan

A	defined	benefit	plan	is	a	post-employment	benefit	plan	other	
than	a	defined	contribution	plan.	The	Group’s	net	obligation	in	
respect	of	defined	benefit	plans	is	calculated	by	estimating	the	
amount	of	future	benefit	that	employees	have	earned	in	return	
for	their	service	in	the	current	and	prior	periods;	that	benefit	is	
discounted	to	determine	its	present	value.	

The	retirement	benefit	obligation	of	the	Group	is	based	on		the	
actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) methods 
as	recommended	by	Sri	Lanka	Accounting	Standard	(LKAS	19)	
Employee	Benefits.	The	calculation	is	performed	by	Independent	
Actuary	using	the	projected	unit	credit	method.	

The assumptions based on which the results of the actuarial 
valuation	was	determined,	are	included	in	Note	25.2	to	the	Financial	
Statements.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from 
the	defined	benefits	plans	immediately	in	the	other	comprehensive	
income.	The	liability	is	disclosed	under	Non-current	liabilities	in	the	
Statement	of	Financial	Position	and	not	externally	funded.
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However,	as	per	the	Payment	of	Gratuity	Act	No.	12	of	1983	the	
liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of 
continued	service.

Defined Contribution Plans – Employees’ Provident Fund and 
Employee Trust Fund
All employees who are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund 
Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions are 
covered by relevant contributions funds in line with the relevant 
statutes.	Employer’s	contributions	to	the	defined	contribution	plans	
are	recognised	as	an	expense	in	profit	or	loss	when	incurred.

3.13  Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event the Group 
has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably,	and	it	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	economic	benefit	will	
be	required	to	settle	the	obligation.

3.14  Revenue from contracts with customers

The	Group’s	generates	revenue	through	sales.

A.  Performance obligation and revenue recognition policies

Revenue	is	measured	based	on	the	consideration	specified	in	a	
contract	with	a	customer.	The	Group	recognises	revenue	when	it	
transfers	control	over	good	to	a	customer.

The following table provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contract with 
customers,	including	significant	payment	terms,	and	the	related	revenue	recognition	policies.

Type of products Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance 
obligations including significant payment terms

Revenue recognition under SLFRS 15  

Electric Wires, 
Cables and PVC 
Pipe	&	Fittings

Customers obtain control of goods when the goods are 
delivered	to	and	have	been	accepted	at	their	premises.	
Invoices	are	at	the	point	in	time.	Invoices	are	usually	
payable	within	30-60	days.	

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered 
and have been accepted by customers at their 
premises.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic	benefits	will	flow	to	the	Company	and	the	revenue	and	
associated	costs	incurred	can	be	reliably	measured.	Revenue	
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable	net	of	trade	discounts	and	sales	taxes.

3.15  Operating Expenses

All expenses incurred in day to day operations of the business 
and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of 
efficiency	has	been	charged	to	the	statement	of	comprehensive	
income	in	arriving	at	the	profit	for	the	year.	Provision	has	also	been	
made	for	impairment	of	financial	assets,	slow	moving	inventories,	all	
known	liabilities	and	depreciation	on	property,	plant	and	equipment.

3.16  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction 
or	production	of	assets	that	necessarily	takes	a	substantial	period	
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 
part	of	the	cost	of	the	respective	assets.	All	other	borrowing	costs	
are	expensed	in	the	period	they	occur.	Borrowing	costs	consist	of	
interest and other costs that Group incurs in connection with the 
borrowing	of	funds.

3.17  Net Finance Income/(Expenses) 

The	Group’s	finance	income	and	finance	costs	include:
-	 interest	income;
-	 interest	expense;
-	 dividend	income;
-	 the	foreign	currency	gain	or	loss	on	financial	assets	and	
financial	liabilities;

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective 
interest	method.

The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 
life	of	the	financial	instrument	to:

 y the	gross	carrying	amount	of	the	financial	asset;	or	

 y the	amortised	cost	of	the	financial	liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest 
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when 
the asset is not credit – impaired) or to the amortised cost of the 
liability.	However,	for	financial	assets	that	have	become	credit-
impaired subsequent to the initial recognition, interest income is 
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised 
cost	of	the	financial	asset.	If	the	asset	is	no	longer	credit-impaired,	
then	the	calculation	of	interest	income	to	the	gross	basis.

3.18  Income tax

Income	tax	expense	comprises	current	and	deferred	tax.	It	is	
recognised	in	profit	or	loss	except	to	the	extent	that	it	relates	to	
items	recognised	directly	in	equity	or	in	OCI.

3.18.1  Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on 
the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the 
tax	payable	or	receivable	in	respect	of	previous	years.	The	amount	
of tax payable and receivable is the best estimate of the tax 
amount	expected	to	be	paid	or	received	that	reflects	uncertainty	
related	to	income	taxes,	if	any.	It	is	measured	using	tax	rates	
enacted	or	substantially	enacted	at	the	reporting	date.
 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are 
met.



86 Sierra Cables PLC | Annual Report 2019/20

Accounting Policies Contd.

3.18.2  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences 
between	the	carrying	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities	for	financial	
reporting	purposes	and	the	amounts	used	for	taxation	purposes.	
Deferred	tax	is	not	recognised	for;

 y temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and 
that	affects	neither	accounting	nor	taxable	profit	or	loss;

 y temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the 
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not 
reverse	in	the	foreseeable	future;	and

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that	future	taxable	profit	will	be	available	against	which	can	be	
used.	Future	taxable	profits	are	determined	based	on	the	relevant	
taxable	temporary	differences.	If	the	amount	of	taxable	temporary	
difference	is	insufficient	to	recognise	the	deferred	tax	asset	in	
full,	then	future	taxable	profits,	adjusted	for	reversals	of	existing	
temporary differences, are considered, based on the business 
plans.	Deferred	tax	assets	are	reviewed	at	each	reporting	date	
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related	tax	benefit	will	realised;	such	deductions	are	reversed	when	
the	probability	of	future	taxable	profits	improves.		

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting 
date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future	taxable	profits	will	be	available	against	which	they	can	be	
used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be 
applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates 
enacted	or	substantially	enacted	at	the	reporting	date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria 
are	met.

3.19  Related party transactions

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which 
one	party	has	the	ability	to	control	or	exercise	significant	influence	
over	the	financial	and	operating	policies/decisions	of	the	other,	
irrespective	of	whether	a	price	is	being	charged	or	not.

The relevant details are disclosed in the respective notes to the 
Financial	Statements.

3.20  The statement of cash flows

Interest	received	and	dividends	received	are	classified	as	investing	
cash	flows,	while	dividend	paid	and	interest	paid,	is	classified	as	
financing	cash	flows	for	the	purpose	of	presentation	of	statement	
of	cash	flows	which	has	been	prepared	using	the	‘Indirect	Method’.

3.21  Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic	Earning	Per	Share	is	calculated	by	dividing	the	profit	or	
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
number	of	shares	outstanding	at	the	reporting	date.

3.22  Events occurring after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are those events favourable and 
unfavourable that occur between the end of the reporting period 
and the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for 
issue.

The materiality of the events occurring after the reporting period 
is considered and appropriate adjustments to or disclosures are 
made	in	the	Financial	Statements,	where	necessary.

3.23  Assets held for sale

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily 
through	sale	rather	than	through	continuing	use	are	classified	as	
held	for	sale.	Immediately	before	classification	as	held	for	sale	the	
assets are re measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting 
policies.	Thereafter	the	assets	are	measured	at	the	lower	of	their	
carrying	amount	and	fair	value	less	costs	to	sell.	Impairment	
losses	on	initial	classification	and	subsequent	gains	and	losses	
on	re-measurement	are	recognised	in	profit	or	loss.	Gains	are	not	
recognised	in	excess	of	any	cumulative	impairment	loss.	

Once	classified	as	held	for	sale,	property	plant	and	equipment	are	
no	longer	amortised	or	depreciated.

4.  New Accounting Standards Issued But Not 
Effective as at Reporting Date 
The	institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	Sri	Lanka	has	issued	
a	number	of	New	Accounting	Standards	(SLFRSs/LKASs)	and	
amendments to standards which are effective for the annual 
periods beginning after 1st January 2019 and earlier applications is 
permitted.	

The following amended standards and the interpretations are not 
expected	to	have	a	significant	impact	on	the	Group’s	consolidated	
Financial	Statements.	

• Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in 
SLFRS Standards 

• Definition of a Business (Amendments to SLFRS 3)

• Definition of Material (Amendments to LKAS 1 and LKAS 8)
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5.  Revenue 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Local	Sales 5,326,750,673  4,435,798,879 4,690,531,975  3,852,731,546 

Export Sales  236,502,284  263,858,324  236,502,284  263,858,325 

 5,563,252,957  4,699,657,203  4,927,034,259  4,116,589,871 

6.  Other Income 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  34,500  40,000  34,500  40,000 

Written	Back	of	Creditors	No	Longer	Payable 95,700  4,440,595  -    -   

Dividend Income - Equited Accounted Investee -  - -  382,021 

Scrap Sales 17,479,941  38,783,987  17,438,514  38,783,987 

Income on Solar Power Generation  10,969,076  2,600,290  10,969,076  2,600,290 

Income for Service Provided  -    -    5,898,002  17,694,003 

28,579,217  45,864,872 34,340,092  59,500,301 

7.  Profit from Operations 
Profit	from	Operations	is	stated	after	charging/(Crediting)	all	the	expenses/(Income)	including	following;

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors' Fees and Emoluments 31,357,883  22,900,000 28,200,000  22,900,000 

Auditors' Remuneration - Audit  2,022,189  1,842,943  1,300,000  1,200,000 

 - Audit Related Services 300,000  95,012 300,000  95,012 

Depreciation and Amortisation 128,733,587  122,900,280 84,860,678  84,019,036 

Provision for Impairment of Inventories 115,648,820  23,128,185 115,648,820  23,128,185 

Provision/Reversal	for	Impairment	of	Trade	Receivables 80,948,506  (61,809,729) 72,809,615  (30,718,985)

Provision for Impairment of Related Party Receivables  2,150,996  2,500,000 46,399,057  2,500,000

Loss	on	Disposal	of	Investment	Property 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 -

Research and Development Expenses 40,896,881 11,032,813 40,896,881 11,032,813

Personnel Costs  -    -    -    -   

 - Salaries, Wages and Related Costs 209,380,645  196,784,684  195,752,822  183,205,272 

 - Defined	Contribution	Plan	Cost  22,524,252  21,444,572  22,524,252  21,444,572 

 - Defined	Benefit	Plan	Cost	(Note	25)  10,040,220  8,855,763  9,697,632  8,524,166 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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8.  Net Finance Costs 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

8.1  Finance Income

Interest Income  1,130,042  6,735,471  494,934  6,195,715 

Dividend Income 598,233  385,154 598,233  385,154 

1,728,275  7,120,625 1,093,167  6,580,869 

8.2  Finance Costs

Interest on -  Overdraft	 24,339,860 20,395,505 13,254,828 12,520,376

																							-	Lease 579,155 - 579,155 -

																							-	Import	Demand	Loans 104,908,594 103,233,711 85,163,300 96,776,217

																							-	Bank	Loans 32,133,701 20,999,645 25,508,034 13,813,993

Exchange	Loss  56,914,896  137,219,057  53,225,934  101,606,326 

218,876,206  281,847,918 177,731,251  224,716,912 

Net Finance Costs  217,147,931  274,727,293 176,638,084  218,136,043 

9.  Income Tax Expense 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Income	Tax	on	Profit	for	the	Year	(Note	9.1)  55,737,591  23,173,866  48,372,265  23,022,442 

Deferred	Tax	Reversal	(Note	25.2)  (20,197,047)  (35,073,188)  (17,756,987)  (40,903,007)

35,540,544  (11,899,322)  30,615,278  (17,880,565)

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

9.1  Reconciliation Between Accounting Profit  
and Tax Expense

Profit Before Tax  264,299,230 496,847  181,152,713  10,062,046 

Share	of	Profit	of	Equity-Accounted	Investees (8,328,570) 27,016,522 - -

Consolidation Adjustment (101,662,444) (71,871,637) - -

154,308,216 (44,358,268)  181,152,713  10,062,046 

Aggregate Disallowed Income  (1,120,240)  (14,589,653)  (494,934)  (14,049,897)

Aggregate Disallowable Expenses 332,780,516  237,750,976 272,306,997  163,459,529 

Aggregate Allowable expenses  (319,183,600)  (99,909,280)  (262,901,928)  (83,444,387)

Tax Exempted Income -  (52,006,244) -  -   

Aggregate	Tax	Losses	from	Business 50,907,144  49,139,762 -  -   

Taxable	Profit 217,692,036  76,027,293 190,062,848  76,027,291 

Income	from	Other	Sources 1,120,240  6,735,471 494,934  6,195,715 

Total Statutory Income 218,812,276  82,762,764 190,557,782  82,223,006 

Tax	Loss	Claimed	(Note	9.2) -  -    -    -   

Taxable Income 218,812,276  82,762,764 190,557,782  82,223,006 

Income Tax

For	the	Nine	Months	Ended	31st	December	2019	@	28% 46,015,783  23,169,482 39,960,365  23,022,442 

For	the	Three	Months	Ended	31st	March	2020	@	18% 9,347,025 - 8,077,575 -

For	the	Three	Months	Ended	31st	March	2020	@	24% 41,511 - 3,993 -

For	the	Three	Months	Ended	31st	March	2020	@	14% 330,332 - 330,332 -

For	the	Year	Ended	31st	March	2020	@	30% 2,940  4,384 - -

55,737,591  23,173,866 48,372,265  23,022,442 

9.2  Accumulated Tax Losses

Balance as at 1st April  255,253,573  2,997,849  -    -   

Adjustments -  169,036,922  -    -   

Tax Loss for the Year 50,907,144  49,139,762  -    -   

Tax	Loss	Claimed -  -    -    -   

Exchange Difference  1,161,115  34,079,040 - -

Balance as at 31st March 307,321,832  255,253,573  -    -   
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Sierra Cables PLC

In	terms	of	Section	52	of	Inland	Revenue	Act	No.	24	of	2017,	Income	tax	has	been	computed	at	28%	for	the	nine	months	period,	
from	April	2019	to	December	2019	and	at	18%	for	the	three	months	period,	from	January	2020	to	March	2020	(2018/19	–	28%).

For	the	export	income,	income	tax	has	been	computed	at	28%	for	the	nine	months	period,	from	April	2019	to	December	2019	and	
at	14%	for	the	three	months	period,	from	January	2020	to	March	2020	(2018/19	–	28%).

For	the	other	income,	income	tax	has	been	computed	at	28%	for	the	nine	months	period,	from	April	2019	to	December	2019	and	at	
24%	for	the	three	months	period,	from	January	2020	to	March	2020	(2018/19	–	28%).

Although	the	tax	rate	of	18%	and	14%	are	not	substantively	enacted	as	at	reporting	date,	the	difference	between	the	income	tax	
liability	using	proposed	rates	of	18%	and	14%	and	the	existing	rate	of	28%	amount	to	Rs.	4.8	Mn	is	not	material	to	the	financial	
statements	of	the	Company.

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited

Income	tax	has	been	computed	at	28%	for	the	nine	months	period,	from	April	2019	to	December	2019	and	at	18%	for	the	three	
months	period,	from	January	2020	to	March	2020	(2018/19	–	Exempt).

For	the	export	income,	income	tax	has	been	computed	at	28%	for	the	nine	months	period,	from	April	2019	to	December	2019	and	
at	14%	for	the	three	months	period,	from	January	2020	to	March	2020	(2018/19	–	Exempt).

For	the	other	income,	income	tax	has	been	computed	at	28%	for	the	nine	months	period,	from	April	2019	to	December	2019	and	at	
24%	for	the	three	months	period,	from	January	2020	to	March	2020	(2018/19	–	28%).

Although	the	tax	rate	of	18%	and	14%	are	not	substantively	enacted	as	at	reporting	date,	the	difference	between	the	income	tax	
liability	using	proposed	rates	of	18%	and	14%	and	the	existing	rate	of	28%	amount	to	Rs.	0.7	Mn	is	not	material	to	the	financial	
statements	of	the	Company.

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Based	on	the	preveiling	legislation	on	income	tax	effective	in	Kingdom	of	Kenya,	profit	from	operation	together	with	other	profits	
and	income	taxable	at	rate	of	30%.

10.  Basic Earnings per Share 
Basic	Earnings	Per	Share	is	calculated	based	on	the	Profit	after	taxation	attributable	to	the	Ordinary	Shareholders	divided	by	the	
Weighted	Average	Number	of	Ordinary	Shares	outstanding	during	the	year.

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Profits	Attributable	to	Ordinary	Shareholders	(Rs.)	 229,621,599  13,774,341  150,537,435  27,942,611 

Weighted	Average	Number	of	Ordinary	Shares	  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430 

Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 	0.43	 0.03 	0.28	 0.05

10.1 Diluted Earnings per Share

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares as at 31st March 2020 and there have been no transactions involving ordinary 
shares	or	potential	ordinary	shares	as	at	the	reporting	date	which	would	required	restatement	of	EPS.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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11.  Dividend per Share 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Average	Number	of	Ordinary	Shares  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430  537,512,430 

Dividend	per	Share	(Rs.)  -   -  -   -

12.  Discontinued Operations 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Plant	&	Machinery	  18,000,000  18,000,000  18,000,000  18,000,000 

Impairment	for	the	Year  (18,000,000)  (18,000,000)  (18,000,000)  (18,000,000)

 -    -    -    -   

The	Company	has	classified	part	of	its	Plant	and	Machinery	as	Non	Current	Asset	Held	for	Sale	in	2016/17,	following	the	decision	
taken	by	the	Board	of	The	Directors	to	dispose	the	same.	Effort	to	sell	the	Plant	and	Machinery	commence	from	previous	financial	
years and Directors are of the opinion that they still commit to the initial decision to sell the assets and actively involved in the same 
as	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period.	In	the	year	2017/18	due	to	the	existent	of	material	uncertainty	over	recoverability	of	such	assets	
the	management	decided	to	provide	provision	for	impairment.	
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13.  Property, Plant and Equipment 

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
 and 

Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital Work
 in Progress

 Total 
2020

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  366,869,401  527,658,577  967,872,815  34,141,631  6,491,472  102,132,258  34,443,540  9,460,910  2,049,070,602 

Additions  19,495,500  4,647,987  431,619  -    41,085  1,520,234  1,738,005  116,802,769  144,677,199 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    113,000,000  -    (113,000,000)  -   

Disposals  -    -    -   (139,750)  -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -    184,391  4,923,032  27,450  18,665  -    -    -    5,153,540 

Balance as at 31st March   386,364,901  532,490,955  973,227,466 34,029,331  6,551,222  216,652,492  36,181,545  13,263,679  2,198,761,591 

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    122,908,680  356,861,259  28,555,991  5,429,631  68,239,237  26,845,243  -    608,840,042 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    25,946,149  78,710,336  4,050,340  450,780  13,045,217  2,829,278  -    125,032,100 

Disposal  -    -    -   (139,750)  -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -    16,476  870,860  17,860  7,722  -    -    -    912,917 

Balance as at 31st March  -    148,871,305  436,442,455 32,484,441  5,888,133  81,284,454  29,674,521  -    734,645,309

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2019  366,869,401  404,749,897  611,011,556  5,585,640  1,061,841  33,893,021  7,598,297  9,460,910  1,440,230,560 

Balance as at 31st March 2020  386,364,901  383,619,650  536,785,011  1,544,890  663,089  135,368,038  6,507,024  13,263,679  1,464,116,282 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 35 to the  
Financial	Statements.

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
and Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital 
Work in 

Progress

 Total 
2019

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  357,201,401  526,388,245  930,537,529  33,619,661  5,802,857  86,465,036  31,155,598  9,121,710  1,980,292,035 

Additions  9,668,000  -    3,450,812  590,000  668,717  15,667,222  3,287,942  339,200  33,671,893 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -    (257,143)  (82,192)  -    -    -   (339,335)

Revaluation	during	the	Year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -   1,270,332 33,884,474 189,113 102,090  -    -    -   35,446,009

Balance as at 31st March  366,869,401 527,658,577 967,872,815 34,141,631 6,491,472  102,132,258  34,443,540  9,460,910 2,049,070,602

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    97,010,153  278,153,837  24,743,369  4,942,384  56,704,940  24,109,365  -    485,664,049 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    25,844,351  76,048,876  3,970,571 540,403  11,534,297  2,735,878  -   120,674,376

Disposal  -    -    -    (257,143) (82,192)  -    -    -   (339,335)

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -   54,176 2,658,546 99,194 29,036  -    -    -   2,840,952

Balance as at 31st March  -   122,908,680 356,861,259 28,555,991 5,429,631  68,239,237  26,845,243  -   608,840,042

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2018  357,201,401  429,378,092  652,383,692  8,876,292  860,473  29,760,096  7,046,233  9,121,710 1,494,627,990

Balance as at 31st March 2019  366,869,401  404,749,897  611,011,556  5,585,640  1,061,841  33,893,021  7,598,297  9,460,910  1,440,230,560 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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13.  Property, Plant and Equipment 

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
 and 

Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital Work
 in Progress

 Total 
2020

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  366,869,401  527,658,577  967,872,815  34,141,631  6,491,472  102,132,258  34,443,540  9,460,910  2,049,070,602 

Additions  19,495,500  4,647,987  431,619  -    41,085  1,520,234  1,738,005  116,802,769  144,677,199 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    113,000,000  -    (113,000,000)  -   

Disposals  -    -    -   (139,750)  -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -    184,391  4,923,032  27,450  18,665  -    -    -    5,153,540 

Balance as at 31st March   386,364,901  532,490,955  973,227,466 34,029,331  6,551,222  216,652,492  36,181,545  13,263,679  2,198,761,591 

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    122,908,680  356,861,259  28,555,991  5,429,631  68,239,237  26,845,243  -    608,840,042 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    25,946,149  78,710,336  4,050,340  450,780  13,045,217  2,829,278  -    125,032,100 

Disposal  -    -    -   (139,750)  -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -    16,476  870,860  17,860  7,722  -    -    -    912,917 

Balance as at 31st March  -    148,871,305  436,442,455 32,484,441  5,888,133  81,284,454  29,674,521  -    734,645,309

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2019  366,869,401  404,749,897  611,011,556  5,585,640  1,061,841  33,893,021  7,598,297  9,460,910  1,440,230,560 

Balance as at 31st March 2020  386,364,901  383,619,650  536,785,011  1,544,890  663,089  135,368,038  6,507,024  13,263,679  1,464,116,282 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 35 to the  
Financial	Statements.

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
and Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital 
Work in 

Progress

 Total 
2019

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Group 

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  357,201,401  526,388,245  930,537,529  33,619,661  5,802,857  86,465,036  31,155,598  9,121,710  1,980,292,035 

Additions  9,668,000  -    3,450,812  590,000  668,717  15,667,222  3,287,942  339,200  33,671,893 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -    (257,143)  (82,192)  -    -    -   (339,335)

Revaluation	during	the	Year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -   1,270,332 33,884,474 189,113 102,090  -    -    -   35,446,009

Balance as at 31st March  366,869,401 527,658,577 967,872,815 34,141,631 6,491,472  102,132,258  34,443,540  9,460,910 2,049,070,602

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    97,010,153  278,153,837  24,743,369  4,942,384  56,704,940  24,109,365  -    485,664,049 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    25,844,351  76,048,876  3,970,571 540,403  11,534,297  2,735,878  -   120,674,376

Disposal  -    -    -    (257,143) (82,192)  -    -    -   (339,335)

Effect of Movements in Exchange Rates  -   54,176 2,658,546 99,194 29,036  -    -    -   2,840,952

Balance as at 31st March  -   122,908,680 356,861,259 28,555,991 5,429,631  68,239,237  26,845,243  -   608,840,042

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2018  357,201,401  429,378,092  652,383,692  8,876,292  860,473  29,760,096  7,046,233  9,121,710 1,494,627,990

Balance as at 31st March 2019  366,869,401  404,749,897  611,011,556  5,585,640  1,061,841  33,893,021  7,598,297  9,460,910  1,440,230,560 



94 Sierra Cables PLC | Annual Report 2019/20

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
and Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital 
Work in 

Progress

 Total 
2020

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  289,897,400  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,369,304  5,108,176  88,111,308  31,459,367  11,135,263  1,473,521,608 

Additions  19,495,500  -    -    -    41,085  843,250  1,738,005  116,802,768  138,920,609 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    113,000,000  -    (113,000,000)  -   

Disposals  -    -    -   (139,750)    -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Balance as at 31st March   309,392,900  451,209,609  570,231,181 26,229,554  5,149,261  201,954,558  33,197,372  14,938,031  1,612,302,467

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April   -    109,109,716  258,985,783  21,893,656  4,580,202  57,632,315  24,058,478  -    476,260,150 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    22,562,044  41,137,580  3,747,308  237,761  10,689,997  2,784,503  -    81,159,192 

Disposal  -    -    -   (139,750)    -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Balance as at 31st March   -    131,671,760  300,123,363 25,501,214  4,817,963  68,322,312  26,842,981  -    557,279,592

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March  2019  289,897,400  342,099,893  311,245,398  4,475,648  527,974  30,478,993  7,400,889  11,135,263  997,261,458 

Balance as at 31st March  2020  309,392,900  319,537,849  270,107,818  728,340  331,298  133,632,246  6,354,391  14,938,031  1,055,022,875 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 35 to the  
Financial	Statements.

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery 

 Motor 
Vehicle

 Furniture
and Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer

Equipment

 Capital
Work in 

Progress 

 Total 
2019

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  280,229,400  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,626,447  4,971,547  82,644,086  28,171,425  10,796,063  1,454,879,758 

Additions  9,668,000  -    -    -    136,629  5,467,222  3,287,942  339,200  18,898,993 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -   (257,143)  -    -    -    -   (257,143)

Revaluation  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  289,897,400  451,209,609  570,231,181 26,369,304  5,108,176  88,111,308  31,459,367  11,135,263 1,473,521,608

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    86,545,774  217,791,144  18,376,460  4,289,961  46,301,598  21,419,224  -    394,724,161 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    22,563,942  41,194,639  3,774,339  290,241  11,330,717  2,639,254  -    81,793,132 

Disposal  -    -    -    (257,143)  -    -    -    -    (257,143)

Balance as at 31st March   -    109,109,716  258,985,783 21,893,656  4,580,202  57,632,315  24,058,478  -    476,260,150 

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2018  280,229,400  364,663,835  352,440,037  8,249,987  681,586  36,342,488  6,752,201  10,796,063 1,060,155,597

Balance as at 31st March 2019  289,897,400  342,099,893  311,245,398  4,475,648  527,974  30,478,993  7,400,889  11,135,263  997,261,458 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Furniture
and Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer 

Equipment

 Capital 
Work in 

Progress

 Total 
2020

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  289,897,400  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,369,304  5,108,176  88,111,308  31,459,367  11,135,263  1,473,521,608 

Additions  19,495,500  -    -    -    41,085  843,250  1,738,005  116,802,768  138,920,609 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    113,000,000  -    (113,000,000)  -   

Disposals  -    -    -   (139,750)    -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Balance as at 31st March   309,392,900  451,209,609  570,231,181 26,229,554  5,149,261  201,954,558  33,197,372  14,938,031  1,612,302,467

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April   -    109,109,716  258,985,783  21,893,656  4,580,202  57,632,315  24,058,478  -    476,260,150 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    22,562,044  41,137,580  3,747,308  237,761  10,689,997  2,784,503  -    81,159,192 

Disposal  -    -    -   (139,750)    -    -    -    -   (139,750)

Balance as at 31st March   -    131,671,760  300,123,363 25,501,214  4,817,963  68,322,312  26,842,981  -    557,279,592

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March  2019  289,897,400  342,099,893  311,245,398  4,475,648  527,974  30,478,993  7,400,889  11,135,263  997,261,458 

Balance as at 31st March  2020  309,392,900  319,537,849  270,107,818  728,340  331,298  133,632,246  6,354,391  14,938,031  1,055,022,875 

Assets pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 35 to the  
Financial	Statements.

As at 31st March Land  Buildings  Plant and 
Machinery 

 Motor 
Vehicle

 Furniture
and Fittings 

 Factory 
Equipment

 Office & 
Computer

Equipment

 Capital
Work in 

Progress 

 Total 
2019

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Company

Cost/Valuation 

Balance as at 1st April  280,229,400  451,209,609  570,231,181  26,626,447  4,971,547  82,644,086  28,171,425  10,796,063  1,454,879,758 

Additions  9,668,000  -    -    -    136,629  5,467,222  3,287,942  339,200  18,898,993 

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -   (257,143)  -    -    -    -   (257,143)

Revaluation  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  289,897,400  451,209,609  570,231,181 26,369,304  5,108,176  88,111,308  31,459,367  11,135,263 1,473,521,608

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    86,545,774  217,791,144  18,376,460  4,289,961  46,301,598  21,419,224  -    394,724,161 

Charge	for	the	Year  -    22,563,942  41,194,639  3,774,339  290,241  11,330,717  2,639,254  -    81,793,132 

Disposal  -    -    -    (257,143)  -    -    -    -    (257,143)

Balance as at 31st March   -    109,109,716  258,985,783 21,893,656  4,580,202  57,632,315  24,058,478  -    476,260,150 

Net Book Value 

Balance as at 31st March 2018  280,229,400  364,663,835  352,440,037  8,249,987  681,586  36,342,488  6,752,201  10,796,063 1,060,155,597

Balance as at 31st March 2019  289,897,400  342,099,893  311,245,398  4,475,648  527,974  30,478,993  7,400,889  11,135,263  997,261,458 
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13.1  Fully-Depreciated Assets

The	initial	cost	of	fully-depreciated	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	which	are	still	in	use	as	at	Reporting	Date	are	as	follows:

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Machinery  4,385,693  3,896,617  4,385,693  3,896,617 

Motor Vehicles  8,289,769  8,058,073  7,729,305  7,497,609 

Furniture and Fittings  4,547,548  3,852,402  4,333,855  3,638,709 

Factory Equipment  52,856,016  39,370,636  42,749,531  29,354,151 

Office	&	Computer	Equipment  20,081,557  18,099,020  19,272,039  17,630,795 

 90,160,583  73,276,748  78,470,423  62,017,881 

13.2  Details	of	Property	Plant	and	Equipment	of	the	Group	Stated	at	Valuation	are	Indicated	below:	

Property Location Method 
of 
Valuation

Effective Date  
of Valuation

No. of
Buildings

Valuer Land 
Extent  
(Acres)

Carrying Value 
of Revalued

 Assets as at 
31st March 2020

 if Carried at 
Historical Cost

Rs.

Carrying Value 
of Revalued

 Assets as at 
31st March

2020

Rs.

Land,	buildings	at	Sierra	Cables	

PLC	Galwarusa	Road,	Korathota	

(within	the	limits	of	Kaduwela	

Municipal Council)

Market	

Approach 31st March 2018 4

Mr.	S.	Sivaskantha	
Partner, Independent 
Valuer, Arthur 
Perera	&	Company.	
(Incorporated 
Valuers) 7.9611 51,810,221 609,435,249

51,810,221 609,435,249

Land,	building	at	Sierra	Industries	
(Pvt)	Ltd	Galwarusa	Road,	
Korathota	(within	the	limits	of	
Kaduwela	Municipal	Council)

Market	

Approach 31st March 2018 1

Mr.	D.	Prathapasinghe	
Bsc.	Est.	Mgt	&	Val.	
Chartered Surveyor, 
Independent Valuer 2.749 85,498,974  133,143,811

85,498,974  133,143,811

13.3  The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the Financial Statements, had the assets been 
carried	at	Cost	less	Accumulated	Depreciation	is	as	follows;

As at 
31st March 2020

Rs.

As at 
31st March 2019

Rs.

At Cost 137,309,195  145,303,485 

At Valuation 742,579,060  753,748,881 

 Carrying Value of
 Revalued Assets as 
at 31st March 2020 

if carried at 
Historical Cost

Rs. 

 Carrying Value of
 Revalued Assets as
 at 31st March 2020

Rs 

Sierra Cables PLC

Land	  12,667,057 289,897,400

Building 39,143,164 319,537,849

Total 51,810,221 609,435,249

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited

Land	  46,317,298  76,972,000 

Building  39,181,676 56,171,811

Total 85,498,974 133,143,811

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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The	above	land	and	buildings	have	been	valued	by	qualified	valuers,	who	hold	recognised	and	relevant	professional	qualifications	
and	have	recent	experience	in	the	location	and	category	of	the	revalued	properties	on	the	basis	of	current	market	value	method	of	
valuation.

Land	and	buildings	are	considered	under	level	03	of	the	fair	value	hierarchy.	The	table	below	sets	out	information	about	significant
unobservable	inputs	used	in	measuring	fair	vale	of	Land	and	Buildings.

14.  Intangible Assets 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost 

Balance as at 1st April  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443 

Additions  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443  23,275,443 

Amortisation

Balance as at 1st April  16,600,590  14,374,686  16,600,590  14,374,686 

Charge for the year  2,111,596  2,225,904  2,111,596  2,225,904 

Balance as at 31st March  18,712,186  16,600,590  18,712,186  16,600,590 

Carrying Value as at 31st March  4,563,257  6,674,853  4,563,257  6,674,853 

Intangible	assets	represents	the	cost	of	Computer	Software	acquired	by	the	Company.	The	initial	cost	of	fully-amotised	intangible	
assets	which	are	still	in	use	as	at	Reporting	Date	was	Rs.	11,089,392/-.	(2018/19-	10,523,568/-).

15.  Right-Of-Use Assets 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

15.1  Gross carrying amount

At Cost

As at beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Adjustment on Initial Application of IFRS 16 (Note 3)  5,285,365  -    5,285,365  -   

Adjusted balance as at 1st April 2019  5,285,365  -    5,285,365  -   

Additions and transfers during the year  -    -    -    -   

Disposals during the year  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  5,285,365  -    5,285,365  -   

15.2  Accumulated Depreciation

As at beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Charge	for	the	Year  (1,589,891)  -    (1,589,891)  -   

Disposals during the year  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March,  (1,589,891)  -    (1,589,891)  -   

15.3  Net Book Value

Right-Of-Use	Assets  3,695,474  -    3,695,474  -   
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16.  Investment Property 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost

Balance as at 1st April  4,500,000  4,500,000  4,500,000  4,500,000 

Additions during the year  -    -    -    -   

Disposals during the year  (4,500,000)  -    (4,500,000)  -   

Balance as at 31st March  -    4,500,000  -    4,500,000 

Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April  -    -    -    -   

Charge	for	the	Year	  -    -    -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March  -    -    -    -   

Carrying Value as at 31st March  -    4,500,000  -    4,500,000 

The	Investment	Property	was	a	Land	situated	in	Peralanda	Road	Ragama,	which	had	extent	of	15	Perches.	During	the	financial	year	
there	is	no	income	generated	from	this	property	and	also	no	directly	attributable	expenses.	This	land	was	disposed	during	the	year	
for	a	proceed	of	Rs.	2,000,000/-.

16.1  Fair value of Investment Property

The	investment	property	is	measured	initially	at	its	cost.	After	the	initial	recognition,	the	investment	property	is	measured	using	the	
cost	model	in	accordance	with	LKAS	16’s	requirements	for	the	aforesaid	model	LKAS	40.79	(e)	requires	the	Company	to	disclose	
the	fair	value	of	investment	property	since	the	Company’s	policy	for	subsequent	measurement	is	“Cost	model”.	The	management	is	
of	the	view	that	the	carrying	amount	of	the	land	is	approximate	to	its	fair	value.

17.  Investments in Subsidiaries 

Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Rs. Rs.

Sierra	Industries	(Private)	Limited	(Note	No	17.3)  265,216,310  265,216,310 

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited	(Note	17.1)  182,735,166  182,735,166 

 447,951,476  447,951,476 

Provision	for	Impairment	of	Subsidiaries	(Note	17.2)  (358,074,584)  (301,241,023)

 89,876,892  146,710,453 

17.1  Sierra Cables East Africa Limited

Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  182,735,166  62,242,700 

Investment	made	During	the	Year  -    120,492,466 

Balance as at 31st March  182,735,166  182,735,166 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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17.2  Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries

Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  301,241,023  233,883,845 

Provision	During	the	Year  71,981,822  67,357,178 

Provision	Reversal	During	the	Year  (15,148,261)  -   

Balance as at 31st March  358,074,584  301,241,023 

17.2.1  Provision for Impairment of Subsidiaries

The	Company	has	made	a	provision	for	impairment	of	Rs.	358,074,584/-	on	the	investment	in	subsidiaries	as	at	31st	March	2020	
due	to	adverse	business	environment	in	which	the	subsidiary	companies	are	operated.	This	has	resulted	by	continuous	operating	
losses	and	negative	operating	cash	flows	in	subsidiary	companies	and	net	assets	attributable	to	the	parent	company	has	been	
considered	as	the	recoverable	amount	for	the	calculation	of	provision	for	impairment	as	at	the	each	reporting	date.	The	breakup	of	
the	impairment	provision	is	as	follows;

Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Rs. Rs.

Sierra	Industries(Private)	Limited  175,339,418  190,487,679 

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited  182,735,166  110,753,344 

 358,074,584  301,241,023 

17.3  Investment Information of  Subsidiaries

As at 31st March 2020 Sierra Industries 
(Private) Limited

Sierra Cables
 East Africa

 Limited

Rs. Rs.

Number of shares  42,036,052  11,400 

Holding 90.72% 95%

Cost of the Investment  265,216,310  182,735,166 

17.4  Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) in Subsidiary

Sierra Industries 
(Private) Limited

Sierra Cables 
East Africa Limited

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NCI Percentage (%) 9.28% 9.28% 5% 5%

Total Assets  689,873,240  970,906,509  259,144,737  364,012,597 

Total	Liabilities  (605,521,981)  (902,829,404)  (226,127,940)  (284,693,819)

Net Assets 84,351,258  68,077,105  33,016,797  79,318,778 

Carrying Amount of NCI 7,827,797  6,317,555  1,650,840  3,965,939 

Profit/(Loss)	for	the	period 16,274,153  38,362,295 (47,463,093)  (98,763,854)

Other	Comprehensive	Income -  -   1,161,115  11,136,136 

Total	Other	Comprehensive	expenses	for	the	period 16,274,153  38,362,295 (46,301,978)  (87,427,718)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) allocated to NCI 1,510,241  3,560,021  (2,315,099)  (4,371,386)

Cash	Flows	Generated/(used	in)	from	Operating	Activities  167,530,990  (157,635,484)  76,517,861  (125,856,182)

Cash	Flows	Generated/(used	in)	from	Investing	Activities  (4,730,808)  (13,729,567)  (426,460)  (421,382)

Cash	Flows	Generated/(used	in)	from	Financing	Activities  (144,551,572)  130,520,314  (26,549,969)  93,334,692 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  18,248,610  (40,844,737)  49,541,431  (32,942,872)
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18.  Equity - Accounted investees 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest in Joint Venture  -  79,688  28,310,163  28,310,163 

Interest in Associates 17,474,607  9,066,351  3,300,000  3,300,000 

17,474,607  9,146,039  31,610,163  31,610,163 

18.1  Joint Venture

Cables	PTE	Limited	is	a	joint	venture	in	which	the	company	has	joint	control	and	a	30%	ownership	interest.	The	company	is	
principally	engaged	in	the	manufacturing	of	industrial	and	commercial	cable	products.

The	company	classified	its	interest	in	Cables	PTE	Limited	as	a	joint	venture.	Cables	PTE	Limited	has	a	financial	reporting	period	
ended	30th	June	as	per	their	reporting	requirements.

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost of the Investment  28,310,163  28,310,163  28,310,163  28,310,163 

Share	of	Profit/(Loss)	for	the	Year	(Net	of	Tax)  (79,688)  (27,980,569)  -    -   

Accumulated	Share	of	Profit/(Loss)  (28,230,475)  -   

Exchange	Gain/(Loss)	  -    (249,906)  -    -   

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31 March -  79,688  28,310,163  28,310,163 

18.1.1  Summarised Financial information of Joint Venture

 As at 31st March Cables PTE Limited

2020 2019

Percentage Ownership Interest 30% 30%

Revenue 343,125,373 173,422,456

Profit/(Loss)	for	the	Year (53,527,364) (34,728,127)

Non- Current Assets  613,007,070  198,815,721

Current Assets  254,607,429  143,857,060 

Non-	Current	Liabilities  472,573,374  130,305,799 

Current	Liabilities  346,823,874  191,503,856 

Elimination of the Share Advance  101,472,000  20,597,500 

Net	Assets	(100%)  (53,254,750)  265,626 

Group	Share	of	Net	Assets	(30%)  (15,976,425)  79,688 

Carrying Amount of Interest in Joint Venture  -    79,688 

18.2  Associates

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Tea	Leaf	Resort	Holdings	(Private)	Limited	(Note	18.2.2)  -    -    2,500,000  2,500,000 

T	&	G	Lanka	(Private)	Limited	(Note	18.2.2) 17,474,607  9,066,351  3,300,000  3,300,000 

17,474,607  9,066,351  5,800,000  5,800,000 

Provision	for	Impairment	of	Associate	(Note	18.2.1)  -    -    (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

17,474,607  9,066,351  3,300,000  3,300,000 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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18.2.1  Provision for Impairment of Equity Accounted Investees

Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Rs. Rs.

Tea	Leaf	Resort	Holdings	(Private)	Limited  (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

 (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)

18.2.2  Net Assets Value of Associates

 As at 31st March Tea Leaf Resort Holdings  
(Private) Limited

T & G Lanka  
(Private) Limited 

Group 2020
Rs.

2019
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2019
Rs.

Cost of the Investment  2,500,000  2,500,000  3,300,000  3,300,000 

Share	of	Profit	for	the	Year	(Net	of	Tax)  -    -   8,408,257  964,046 

Accumulated	Share	of	Profit/(Loss)  (2,500,000)  (2,500,000) 5,766,350  5,184,326 

Dividend Received -  (382,021)

Net Asset Value of Associate as at 31 March  -    -   17,474,607  9,066,351 

18.2.3  Summarised Financial Information of Associates

 As at 31st March Tea Leaf Resort Holdings  
(Private) Limited

T & G Lanka  
(Private) Limited 

Group 2020
Rs.

2019
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2019
Rs.

Percentage	Ownership	Interest 49.9% 49.9% 28% 28%

Revenue - - 139,070,280 82,993,951

Profit/(Loss)	for	the	Year (28,214) (87,750) 33,185,031 7,191,764

Non-Current Assets  -    -    12,651,715  7,767,643 

Current Assets  2,399,039  2,459,978  94,296,773  80,422,715 

Non-Current	Liabilities  -    -    10,028,612  -   

Current	Liabilities  7,128,602  7,161,327  34,510,564  55,810,534 

Net	Assets	(100%) (4,729,563)    (4,701,349)  62,409,312  32,379,824 

Group Share of Net Assets  -    -    17,474,607  9,066,351 

Carrying Amount of Interest In Joint Venture  -    -    17,474,607  9,066,351 
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19.  Other Assets - Non-current 
19.1  Equity Securities - At FVOCI

The	group	designated	the	investment	shown	below	as	equity	securities	at	FVOCI	because	these	equity	securities	represent	
investment	that	the	Group	intends	to	hold	for	the	long	term	for	strategic	purposes.

Group/Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

No. of Ordinary 
Shares/Units

Fair
 Value

Rs.

No. of Ordinary 
Shares/Units

Fair 
Value

Rs.

National	Development	Bank	PLC  23,882  1,580,988  22,941  2,161,042 

Richard	Pieris	Exports		PLC  10,359  1,968,210  10,359  2,196,108 

ACL	Cables	PLC  1,520  47,272  1,520  49,096 

DFCC	Bank	PLC  10,000  606,000  10,000  700,000 

Chevron	Lubricants	PLC  3,678  196,773  3,678  230,243 

Kelani	Cables	PLC  200  10,400  200  13,480 

NDB Aviva Growth Fund Investment in Units  2,199,836  15,992,804  2,199,836  19,798,520 

Total Other Financial Assets  20,402,447  25,148,489 

No strategic investments were disposed of during 2019, and there were no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity 
relating	to	these	investments.

Colombo	Stock	Exchange	closed	its	operations	on	20th	March	2020	due	to	COVID-19	outbreak.	Hence,	closing	market	prices	as	at	
20th	March	2020	were	considered	as	the	year	end	market	prices	in	calculating	the	fair	values.
 
20.  Inventories 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Raw Materials  515,789,913  560,067,141  413,276,382  296,760,337 

Work	in	Progress  210,717,041  220,968,019  196,796,313  220,378,415 

Finished Goods  673,348,961  801,582,693  634,001,514  725,894,042 

Packing	Materials  4,379,570  29,736,080  4,379,570  3,500,465 

Engineering Items  14,939,157  21,283,890  14,939,157  21,283,890 

  1,419,174,642  1,633,637,823  1,263,392,936  1,267,817,149 

Provision	for	obsolete	Inventories	(Note	20.1)  (2,119,931)  (56,598,120)  -    (54,478,189)

 1,417,054,711  1,577,039,703  1,263,392,936  1,213,338,960 

20.1  Provision for Obsolete Inventories

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  56,598,120  56,598,120  54,478,189  54,478,189 

Provision	During	the	Year 115,648,620    -   115,648,620   -   

Provision Written off  (170,127,009)  -    (170,127,009)  -   

Balance as at 31st March  2,119,931  56,598,120 -  54,478,189 

Inventories pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 35 to the Financial 
Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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21.  Trade and Other Receivables 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade Receivable                                          1,783,016,443  1,986,860,232  1,483,009,531  1,526,680,266 

Less:	Provision	for	Impairment	(Note	21.1)  (245,391,816)  (164,443,310)  (198,850,740)  (126,041,125)

 1,537,624,627  1,822,416,922  1,284,158,791  1,400,639,141 

VAT Receivable  208,603,335  177,207,358  132,951,021  117,322,274 

NBT Receivable  5,597,601 -  2,885,136 -

Deposits, Prepayments and Advances  85,015,214  65,852,177  77,083,227  56,910,389 

Other	Receivables  22,590,675 27,002,584  -    -   

 321,806,825 270,062,119  212,919,384  174,232,663 

Less:	Provision	for	Impairment	(Note	21.2)  (40,835,057)  (40,835,057)  (40,835,057)  (40,835,057)

280,971,768 229,227,061 172,084,327  133,397,606 

Total Trade and Other Receivables 1,818,596,395 2,051,643,983 1,456,243,117  1,534,036,747 

Trade receivables pledged as security against the long term and short term borrowings have been disclosed in Note 35 to the 
Financial	Statements..

21.1  Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  164,443,310  172,586,735  126,041,125  136,668,205 

Impact	of	Adopting	SLFRS	9	-	“Financial	Instruments” - 53,666,304 - 20,091,905

Charge/(Reversal)	for	the	Period  80,948,506  (61,809,729)  72,809,615  (30,718,985)

Balance as at 31st March   245,391,816  164,443,310  198,850,740  126,041,125 

21.2  Provision for Impairment of Other Receivables

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  40,835,057  40,835,057  40,835,057  40,835,057 

Provision made durig the year -  -   -  -   

Payments  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March   40,835,057  40,835,057  40,835,057  40,835,057 

21.3  Re-classification 

To	facilitate	comparison	and	where	relevant,	group	balances	pertaining	to	the	previous	year	have	been	re-classified	as	follows:

Group

As at 31st March Previously
 Reported

Change Re-classified

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current Assets

Other	Receivables 31,731,324 (4,728,741) 27,002,584

Income Tax Receivable 7,477,729 4,728,741 12,206,470
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22.  Amounts Due from Related Companies 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Trading

Sierra	Industries		(Private)	Limited  -    -    166,243,382  119,972,128 

Tea	Leaf	Holding	(Private)	Limited  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000  2,500,000

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited  -    -    33,895,332  3,147,710 

Cables	PTE	Limited  32,853,526  1,340,478  32,853,526  1,340,478 

Provision for Non Trading Receivables  (4,128,860)  (2,500,000)  (38,024,192)  (2,500,000)

 31,224,666  1,340,478 197,468,048  124,460,316

Trading 

Sierra	Electrical	Engineering	(Private)	Limited  616,785  616,785  616,785  616,785 

Sierra	Global	Network  157,950  -    157,950  -   

Sierra	Technology	Holdings	(Private)	Limited  7,542,499  7,792,499  7,542,499  7,792,499 

Sierra	Readymix	(Private)	Limited  38,233  -    38,233  -   

Sierra	Construction	Limited 61,468,522  88,860,498 61,468,522  88,860,498 

Sierra	Development	(Private)	Limited  615,221  -    615,221  -   

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited  -    -    120,588,080  128,360,878 

Sierra	Maldives	(Private)	Limited	(C-0493/2013)  -    4,408,393  -    4,408,393 

Sintech	Engineering	(Private)	Limited  460,489  1,489,863  460,489  1,489,863 

Sierra	System	Engineering	(Private)	Limited  7,531,752  1,953,807  7,531,752  1,953,807 

 78,431,451  105,121,845  199,019,531  233,482,723 

Provision for related party trade receivable  (522,136) -  (10,874,865) -

Total  109,133,981  106,462,323  385,612,714  357,943,039 

22.1 Loans Due from Related Company

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sierra	Industries	(Private)	Limited - - 119,616,300 119,616,300

- - 119,616,300 119,616,300

Loans	due	from	related	parties	are	unsecured	and	receivable	on	demand.	Subsequent	to	the	year	end	Sierra	Industries	(Private)	
Limited	has	applied	for	a	mortgaged	loan	from	bank	to	settle	the	liability.	The	Directors	resolved	to	recover	the	loan	form	Sierra	
Industries	(Private)	Limited	in	the	ensuing	financial	year.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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23.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Favourable Balances

Cash	in	Hand	and	at	Bank  41,471,530  71,790,022  20,063,915  66,681,058 

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement of  
Financial Position  41,471,530  71,790,022  20,063,915  66,681,058 

Unfavourable Balances

Bank	Overdraft	Repayable	on	Demand	and	Used	for	 
Cash Management Purpose  (186,423,083)  (276,052,246)  (101,349,413)  (138,924,931)

Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of  
Statement of Cash Flows  (144,951,553)  (204,262,224)  (81,285,498)  (72,243,873)

24.  Capital and Reserves 
24.1 Share Capital

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

537,512,430	Ordinary	Shares  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

 894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 
 
All	ordinary	shares	rank	equally	with	regard	to	the	Company’s	residual	assets.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time are entitled to one vote per share at general 
meetings.

24.2  Revaluation Reserve
The	revaluation	reserve	relates	to	the	revaluation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment.

24.3 Fair Value Reserves

The	fair	value	reserve	comprises:	

-				The	cumulative	net	change	in	the	fair	value	of	equity	securities	designated	at	FVOCI.

24.4 Foreign Currency Transaction Reserve

The transaction reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the Financial Statements of foreign 
operations.
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25.  Retirement Benefit Obligations 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  45,355,016  41,504,868  44,703,029  41,133,228 

Current Service Cost  4,917,332  4,495,894  4,917,333  4,205,177 

Interest Cost  5,122,888  4,359,869  4,780,299  4,318,989 

Actuarial	(Gain)/Loss  20,443  (2,070,095)  20,443  (2,070,095)

Benefits	Paid	by	the	Plan  (1,357,705)  (2,935,520)  (1,357,705)  (2,884,270)

Balance as at 31st March  54,057,974  45,355,016  53,063,399  44,703,029 

25.1  The	total	amount	charged	to	Statement	of	Comprehensive	Income		in	respect	of	Retirement	Benefit	Obligations	
made	up	as	follows;

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current Service Cost  4,917,332  4,495,894  4,917,333  4,205,177 

Interest Cost  5,122,888  4,359,869  4,780,299  4,318,989 

Recognised in Income Statement  10,040,220  8,855,763  9,697,632  8,524,166 

Actuarial	(Gain)/Loss  20,443  (2,070,095)  20,443  (2,070,095)

Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  20,443  (2,070,095)  20,443  (2,070,095)

25.2  LKAS	19	requires	the	use	of	actuarial	techniques	to	make	a	reliable	estimate	of	the	amount	of	retirement	benefits	that	
employees	have	earned	in	return	for	their	service	in	the	current	and	prior	periods	and	discount	that	benefit	using	projected	unit	
credit	method	in	order	to	determine	the	present	value	of	the	retirement	benefit	obligation	and	the	current	service	cost.	This	
requires	an	entity	to	determine	how	much	benefit	is	attributable	to	the	current	and	prior	periods	and	to	make	estimates	about	
demographic	variables	and	financial	variables	that	will	influence	the	cost	of	the	benefit.

An	Actuarial	Valuation	of	the	Retirement	Benefit	Obligation	of	the	Company	was	carried	out	as	at	31st	March	2020,	by	Messrs	M.	
Poopalanathan,	a	firm	of	Professional	Actuaries.	The	valuation	was	carried	out	as	per	the	“Projected	Unit	Credit”	(PUC)	method.	

The	following	key	assumptions	were	made	in	arriving	at	the	above	figure.

Group/Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Expected Annual Average Salary Increment 10% 10%

Discount Rate 10% 11%

Retirement Age 	55	Years	 	55	Years	

Mortality A	1967/70	Mortality	Table	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Actuaries,	London

Staff Turnover Rate 20%	for	age	up	to	49	and	thereafter	zero.	

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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25.3  Sensitivity Analysis - Salary Escalation Rate/Discount Rate

The	calculation	of	the	Retirement	Benefit	Obligations		is	sensitive	to	the	assumptions	set	out	above.	The	following	table	
summarises	how	the	impact	on	the	defined	benefit		obligation	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period	would	have	increased	(decreased)	
as	a	result	of	a	change	in	the	respective	assumptions	by	one	percent.

Group Company

Defined Benefit Obligation

One Percentage
 Point Increase

One Percentage
 Point Decrease

One Percentage
 Point Increase

One Percentage
 Point Decrease

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Effect on the Discounting Rate  (1,914,082) 2,065,198  (1,858,616) 2,005,894

Effect on the Salary Escalation Rate 1,808,149  (1,707,698) 1,749,398  (1,651,740)

26.  Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  227,907,376  262,871,834  185,267,702  225,591,082 

(Reversal)/Provision		(Note	26.3)  (20,202,770)  (34,493,561)  (17,762,711)  (40,323,380)

Effect of movement in Exchange Rates  -    (470,897)  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March 207,704,606  227,907,376  167,504,991  185,267,702 

The	effective	tax	rate	which	were	applied	by	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	are	as	follows.

2020
%

2019
%

Sierra	Cables	PLC 28 28

Sierra	Industries	(Private)	Limited 28 28

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited 30 30

26.1  The	Deferred	Tax	Liability	is	attributable	to	the	followings

As at 31st March 2020 2019

 Temporary 
Difference 

 Tax Effect  Temporary
 Difference 

 Tax Effect

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Company

On	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment  491,904,679  137,733,310  516,147,410  144,521,275 

On	Retirement	Benefit	Obligations  (53,063,398)  (14,857,751)  (44,703,028)  (12,516,848)

On	Inventory	Provision - - (54,478,189) (15,253,893)

On	Trade	Receivable	Provision  (129,578,303)  (36,281,925)  (44,264,963)  (12,394,189)

On	Revaluation	of	Land	&	Buildings  288,969,133  80,911,357  288,969,133  80,911,357 

 598,232,111  167,504,991  661,670,364  185,267,702 
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As at 31st March 2020 2019

 Temporary 
Difference 

 Tax Effect  Temporary
 Difference 

 Tax Effect

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group

On	Property,	Plant	and	Equipment 585,114,210 163,831,979  617,728,850  172,964,078 

On	Retirement	Benefit	Obligations  (54,057,972)  (15,136,232)  (45,355,016)  (12,699,404)

On	Revaluation	of	Land	&	Buildings  340,324,232  95,290,785  340,324,232  95,290,785 

On	Other	Provisions	-	Inventory - -  (54,478,189)  (15,253,893)

                                            - Debtor  (129,578,303)  (36,281,925)  (44,264,963)  (12,394,190)

741,802,167 207,704,607  813,954,914  227,907,376 

26.2  Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred	tax	assets	have	not	been	recognise	in	respect	of	the	following	items,	because	it	is	not	probable	that	future	taxable	profit	
will	be	available	against	which	the	Group	can	use	the	benefit	therefore.

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Tax	Losses 307,321,832 255,253,573 - -

Inventory Provision 2,119,931 2,119,931 - -

26.3  Deferred Tax Liability - (Reversal)/Provision

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Provision/(Reversal) for the year

Income Statement  (20,197,046)  (35,073,188)  (17,756,987)  (40,903,006)

Other	Comprehensive	Income (5,724)  579,627  (5,724)  579,627 

 (20,202,770)  (34,493,561)  (17,762,711)  (40,323,380)

27.  Long Term Loans 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 Balance as at 1st April  244,624,418  327,079,757  152,371,998  214,613,998 

	Loans	Obtained	  405,000,000  280,000,000  405,000,000  280,000,000 

 Repayments  (327,495,291)  (377,574,978)  (302,622,000)  (342,242,000)

 Exchange gain  1,676,678  15,119,639  -    -   

 Balance as at 31st March  323,805,805  244,624,418  254,749,998  152,371,998 

 Current Portion of Long Term Loans  210,561,719  183,039,240  179,749,998  147,622,000 

 Non-Current Portion of Long Term Loans  113,244,086  61,585,178  75,000,000  4,749,998 

 323,805,805  244,624,418  254,749,998  152,371,998 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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28  Lease Liability 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

As at beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Adjustment on Initial Application of IFRS 16 (Note 3)  5,285,365  -    5,285,365  -   

Adjusted balance as at 1st April 2019  5,285,365  -    5,285,365  -   

New contracts liabilities during the year  -    -    -    -   

Interest	Charge	for	the	Year  579,155  -    579,155  -   

Lease	Rental	Payments	for	the	Year  (2,163,000)  -    (2,163,000)  -   

Balance as at 31st March  3,701,520  -    3,701,520  -   

28.1  Maturity analysis of discounted contractual  
lease payments are as follows;

Less	than	one	year  2,223,230  -    2,223,230  -   

Between	one	and	five	years  1,478,290  -    1,478,290  -   

More	than	five	years  -    -   

 3,701,520  -    3,701,520  -   

28.2  Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Interest expense on lease liabilities  579,155  -    579,155  -   

Expense relating to leases of Short-term leases (Included in 
Administrative Expenses) 2,107,200  -   2,107,200  -   

 2,686,355  -    2,686,355  -   

Operatin Leases Under LKAS 17  

Lease	Expenses - 3,443,700 - 3,443,700

 2,686,355 3,443,700  2,686,355 3,443,700

28.3  Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation	expense	of	Right-Of-Use	assets  1,589,891  -    1,589,891  -   

 1,589,891  -    1,589,891  -   

28.4  Information on the Company’s variable lease  
payments, including the magnitude in relation to  
fixed payments:

Fixed rent  2,163,000  -    2,163,000  -   

Variable rent with minimum payment  -    -    -    -   

 2,163,000  -    2,163,000  -   

29.  Trade and Other Payables  

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade Creditors 1,267,798,509  1,344,520,708 1,259,226,181  1,314,675,978 

Other	Payables 168,105,821  337,070,481 45,431,238  34,431,575 

Taxes Payable  -    4,112,421  -    4,112,421 

1,435,904,330  1,685,703,610 1,304,657,419  1,353,219,974 
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30.  Amounts due to  Related  Companies 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sierra	Industries	(Private)	Limited  -    -    30,666  -   

Sierra	Development	(Private)	Limited  -    14,828  -    14,828 

Mayleen	Kenya	Limited  52,777  2,022,390 - -

 52,777  2,037,218  30,666  14,828 

31.  Import Demand Loans 

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  1,026,225,271  1,300,881,985  817,779,757  1,229,918,031 

Loans	Obtained  2,328,229,714  2,689,644,710  2,249,150,406  2,373,222,378 

Repayments  (2,703,703,417)  (2,964,301,424)  (2,480,072,536) (2,785,360,652)

Balance as at 31st March  650,751,568  1,026,225,271  586,857,627  817,779,757 

32.  Contingent Liabilities 
The following contingent liabilities exist as at the reporting date on account of the corporate guarantees given by the Company  
as	at	31st	March	2020.

Guarantees Provided on behalf of the Subsidiary

32.1  Sierra Cables East Africa Limited USD 990,000 (Rs. 152,757,000)

This	Corporate	guarantees	has	been	provided	to	Commercial	Bank	of	Ceylon	PLC	on	behalf	of	the	subsidiary	company	for	One	
off	Letter	of	Credit	and	Term	Loan	facility,	where	repayment	terms	are	60	monthly	installments	with	one	year	grace	period.	This	
guarantee	was	granted	beyond	the	regular	cause	of	business.

32.2  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited Rs. 250,000,000 

This	Corporate	guarantees	has	been	provided	to	Commercial	Bank	of	Ceylon	PLC	on	behalf	of	the	subsidiary	company	for	One	off	
Letter	of	Credit,	Overdraft	and	Import	Demand	Loan	facility.

32.3  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited USD 361,187  

This Advance Payment guarantees has been provided to China Machinery Engineering corporation on behalf of the subsidiary 
company	for	supply	&	Delivery	of	PVC	pipes,fittings	and	special	components.

32.4  Sierra Industries (Private) Limited USD 504,507  

This Performance Bond has been provided to China Machinery Engineering corporation on behalf of the subsidiary company  
for	supply	&	Delivery	of	PVC	pipes,fittings	and	special	components.

There are no material contingent liabilities outstanding as at the reporting date other than as disclosed above which require 
adjustments	to	or	disclosures	in	the	Financial	Statements.

33.  Commitments 
There	were	no	material	Capital	Commitments	as	at	the	reporting	date.

There	is	no	any	material	issues	pertaining	to	employees	and	industrial	relations	of	the	entity	for	the	financial	year	ended	
31st	March	2020.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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34.  Events Occurring After the Reporting  Period 
There is no any circumstances have arisen since the Reporting date, which would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the 
Financial	Statements.	

35.  Assets Pledged as Security  and Repayment Terms 
The following assets have been pledged as securities against the long term and short term borrowings that have been disclosed  
in	Notes	26,	and	29	to	the	Financial	Statement	respectively.

 Sierra Cables PLC

Name of 
the Bank

Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

(1) A	primary	Bond	No.	3627	for	Rs.	550	Mn	
dated	13/01/2012	executed	over	the	land	and	
buildings, Plant and Machinery and equipment 
owned	by	the	company	at	No.	39/1,	Galwarusa	
Road,	Korathota,	Kaduwela.

Primary	Mortgage	Bond	no.	FCC/11/139	for	
Rs.	490	Mn	dated	13/01/2012	executed	over	
stocks	&	book	debts

Overdraft	facility	 
for	Rs.	40	Mn

AWPLR+1.5%	p.a On	demand

(2) Lien	over	documents	of	title	over	goods	
imported	or	locally	purchased.

Letter	of	Credit	
Facility	for	Rs.	500	Mn

Sight/Usance	-	 
0.25%	per	quarter

Repayable over  
180 days

(3) A	primary	Bond	No.	3627	for	Rs.	550	Mn	
dated	13/01/2012	executed	over	the	land	and	
buildings, Plant and Machinery and equipment 
owned	by	the	company	at	No.	39/1,	Galwarusa	
Road,	Korathota,	Kaduwela.

Import	Demand	Loan	
Facility	for	Rs.	1.5	Bn

AWPLR+1.5%	p.a Repayable over  
180 days

Primary	Mortgage	Bond	No.	FCC/11/139	for	
Rs.	490	Mn	dated	13/01/2012	executed	over	
stocks	&	book	debts

(4) Individual drafts drawn by the suppliers and 
acceptance by the customer to be lodged with 
the	bank

Usance Release 
Facility	for	Rs.	1.5	Bn	
(Sub	Limit	of	facility	
No.	03)

Repayable over  
180 days

(5) Single	letter	of	Indemnity	for	Rs.	250	Mn	dated	
29/12/2015	signed	by	the	company

Letter	Of	Guarantee	
Facility	for	Rs.	250	Mn

Commission  
1.25	%	P.a

(6) General Terms and conditions relating to term 
Loans	for	Rs.	57	Mn	dated	01/12/2015	signed	
by the company

Term	Loan	Facility	 
for	Rs.	57	Mn

AWPLR+1.5%	p.a 33 equal monthly 
installments

(7) General Terms and conditions relating to term 
Loans	for	Rs.	300	Mn	signed	by	the	Company

Term	Loan	Facility	 
for	Rs.	300	Mn

AWPLR+2%	p.a 12 equal monthly  
installments

Bank of Ceylon

(1) Overdraft	Agreement Overdraft	Facility	 
for	Rs.	25	Mn

AWPLR+2%	p.a On	Demand

(2) Relative bills of Exchange, Shipping 
Documents, underlying goods under the 
Bank’s	Constructive	control.

Letter	of	Credit	 
for	Rs.	400	Mn.

Commission	0.25%	
for the 01st quarter 
for	Sight	LCs

Commission	0.375%	
for the 01st quarter 
for	Term	LCs

Thereafter	0.15%	for	
each additional month

Self liquidating

(3) Accepted	Usance	Drafts. Acceptance facility 
for	Rs.	400	Mn

(Sub	Limit	of	facility	
No.	02)

Commission  
0.15	%	Per	Month

Repayable over  
180 days
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Name of 
the Bank

Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

(4) Hypothecation	over	stocks. Hypothecation	Loan	
for	Rs.	400	Mn

(Sub	Limit	of	facility	
No.	02)

AWPLR+2%	p.a Repayable over  
07 months

(5) Relative bills of exchange,shipping 
documents,underlying	goods,	under	Bank’s	
constructive control

Shipping Guarantee 
Facility	for	Rs.	100	Mn

(Sub	Limit	of	facility	
No.	02)

Commission	0.3%	per	
invoice for sea freight,

0.25%	per	invoice	 
for air freight

Self liquidating

(6) ISDA Agreement Forward Exchange 
Contract Facility for 
USD 2 Mn

N/A N/A

Cargills Bank Limited

(1) N/A Overdraft	Facility	 
for	Rs.	25	Mn

AWPLR+2.5%	p.a Out	of	business	cash	
flows/On	Demand

(2) N/A Acceptance for 
Rs.150	Mn	(Sub	Limit	
of	Facility	No.	01)

Bank's	standard	
commission rates  
will be applied

Repayable over  
180 days

(3) N/A Import	Loan	Facility	
for	Rs.	150	Mn	(Sub	
Limit	of	Facility	No.	01)

AWPLR+2.5%	p.a Repayable over  
120 days

(4) N/A Letter	of	Credit	
Facility	for	Rs.	150	Mn	
(Sub	Limit	of	Facility	
No.	01)

Bank	standard	
commission rates  
will be applied

180 Days

(5) N/A Shipping Guarantee 
Facility	for	Rs.	50	Mn	
(Sub	Limit	of	Facility	
No.	01)

Bank	standard	
commission rates  
will be applied

-

DFCC Bank

(1) Overdraft	Facility	 
for	Rs.	20	Mn

AWPR+2%	p.a On	Demand

(2) A	primary	Bond	No.	281	for	Rs.	120	Mn	dated	
30.06.2016	and	02.09.2016	executed	over	
the	stocks	owned	by	the	company	at	No.	39/1,	
Galwarusa	Road,	Korathota,	Kaduwela.

Import	line	for	Rs.	250	
Mn Within which,

i) Letter	of	Credit	
Facility	for	Rs.	250Mn	
(Sub limit of under 
Facility	No.	02)

Commission	0.25%	
per quarter

With	Company’s	fund/	
Proceed of Import 
Demand	Loan

ii) Acceptance Facility 
for	Rs.	250	Mn	(Sub	
limit of under facility 
No.	02)

Commission	0.375%	
per quarter

With	Company’s	fund/	
Proceed of Import 
Demand	Loan

iii) Shipping Guarantee 
facility	for	Rs.	250	Mn

0.3%	for	First	Month 
Rs.	2,500	p.m.	
thereafter

Endorsement of Copy 
Document, Airway 
Bills (Sub limit of 
under	facility	No.	02)

0.3%	for	First	Month 
Rs.	2,500	p.m.	
thereafter

iv) Import	Loans	facility	
for	Rs.	250	Mn	(Sub	
limit of under facility 
No.	02)

Commission for 
Documents 
-	DP-	0.3% 
DA-0.35% 
AWPR	+1.5%	p.a

Repayable over  
180 days
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Name of 
the Bank

Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

v) Guarantee facility 
for	Rs.	250	Mn	(Sub	
limit of under facility 
No.	02)

Value < 10Mn -  
1.5%	p.a	

Value => 10Mn -  
1.25%	p.a

(3) A primary mortgage over movable assets 
(Solar PV system and Inverter) installed 
at	No.	39/1A,	Galwarusa	Road,	Korathota,	
Kaduwela

Loan	Facility	for	 
Rs.	100	Mn

AWPR		1.75	%	p.a 114 equal monthly  
installments after a 
grace period of 06 
months

HNB

(1) Demand	promissory	note	for	Rs.	400	Mn Overdraft	Facility	 
for	Rs.	50	Mn

AWPLR+1.75% 
Weekly	Review

 

(2) Indemnity of the company Letter	of	Guarantee	
Facility	for	Rs.	100	Mn

Commission	1.5%	p.a

(3) Documents	of	title/	Duly	accepted	Usance	
drafts

Letter	of	Credit	
Facility	for	Rs.	350	Mn

Sight-0.150%

Usance-0.25%	 
up to 90 days

Usance-0.125%	 
for each additional 
month

Sight bills should 
be retired through 
import	Loan	Facility.	
Usance bills to be 
retired by utilising 
the	Company’s	Own	
Funds	or	Import	Loan	
Proceeds.

(4) Demand	promissory	note	for	Rs.	400	Mn Import	Loan	Facility	
for	rs.	350	Mn	(Sub	
limit under facility 
No 3)

AWPLR+1.25%	
(Weekly	review)

180 days including 
the usance period

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited
Sampath Bank PLC

(1) Overdraft	Agreement	for	Rs.	60	Mn Overdraft	of	 
Rs.	60	Mn

AWPLR+2.5%	p.a On	Demand

(2) Short	term	Import	Loan	Agreement	 
for	Rs.	100	Mn

Short term Import 
Loan	Rs.	100	Mn

AWPLR+2.5%	p.a Repayable over 180 
days

(3) Accepted Bills of Exchanged Acceptance facility 
for	100	Mn.	(Sub	limit	
under	facility	No.	2)

Prevailing Rate  
of	the	Bank

Repayable over 180 
days

(4) Documentary Credit Agreement

Relative Bills of Exchange and Shipping 
Documents

Documentary Credit 
facility for 100 Mn 
(Sub limit under 
facility	No.	2)

Prevailing Rate  
of	the	Bank

Sight/Usance	up	to	
180 days

(5) Master Counter indemnity of the Company  
for	Rs.	25	Mn

Bank	Guarantee	
Facility	for	Rs.	25	Mn

	1.25%	p.a	 1	Year,	Renewable

Commercial Bank

One Off Facility

(1) Corporate	guarantee	for	Rs.	250	Mn	dated	
27/03/2018	signed	by	Sierra	Cables	PLC

Overdraft	Facility	 
for	Rs.	25	Mn

AWPLR+2%	p.a 08 months

(2) Corporate	guarantee	for	Rs.	250	Mn	dated	
27/03/2018	signed	by	Sierra	Cables	PLC

Letter	of	Credit	
Facility	for	Rs.	200	Mn

Sight

1/4%	for	1st	quarter,	
1/8%	each	additional	
quarter

Usance

3/8%	for	1st	quarter,	
1/4%	each	additional	
quarter

08 months
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Name of 
the Bank

Assets Pledged  Facility Obtained  Interest Rate/ 
Commission Rate 

Repayment Terms

(3) Corporate guarantee for Rs. 250 Mn dated 
27/03/2018 signed by Sierra Cables PLC

Import Demand Loan 
Facility for Rs. 200 
Mn (Sub Limit Under 
Facility No. 02)

AWPLR+2% p.a 120  days

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

(1) i). Corporate Guarantee for Rupee Equivalent 
of USD 990,000 dated 01/12/2015 signed by 
Sierra Cables PLC

Term Loan Facility  
for USD 990,000

LIBOR+5% p.a  56 monthly 
installments 

ii). General term and conditions relating to 
Term Loan for USD 990,000 dated 01/12/2015 
signed by Sierra Cables PLC

36.  Related Party Disclosures 
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of the business on an arm’s length basis at commercial rates with 
parties who are defined as Related Parties as per the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, except 
for the transactions that the Key Management Personnel (KMP) have availed under schemes uniformly applicable to all staff at 
concessionary rates.

Non-recurrent related party transactions

There were no non-recurrent related party transactions which in aggregated value exceed 10% of the equity 5% of the total assets 
which is lower of the company as per 31st March 2019 audited financial statement, which required additional disclosures in the 
2019/20 Annual report under Colombo Stock Exchange listing Rules 9.3.2 and Code of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions 
under the securities and Exchange Commission Directive issued under Section 13(c) of the Securities Exchange Commission Act.

Recurrent related party transactions

There were no recurrent related party transactions which in aggregate value exceed 10% of the consolidated revenue of the Group 
as per 31st March 2019 audited financial statements, which required additional disclosures in the 2019/20 Annual Report under 
Colombo Stock Exchange listing Rules 9.3.2 and Code of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions under the securities and 
Exchange Commission Directive issued under Section 13(c) of the Securities Exchange Commission Act.

36.1  Transactions with Related Parties

(i) Companies within the Group engage in trading transactions under normal commercial terms and conditions

Name of the Company Nature of the Transactions Transaction Value Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

2020 2019 2020 2019

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Transactions with Subsidiary Companies

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited Amount Paid for 
Administration Expenses

 4,770,234  5,941,248  166,243,382  119,972,128 

Reimbursement of Services  6,918,355 20,755,066 - -

Funds Transfers/(Settlements)  23,370,185  (6,485,000) - -

Payments for Custom  11,212,479  18,445,573 - -

Long Term Loan  -    -   119,616,300 119,616,300

Purchase of Goods  (30,666)  -    (30,666)  -   

Settlement of Invoices  -    43,913 - -

Sale of Goods  685,080 - - -

Settlement of Invoices  (685,080) - - -

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Name of the Company Nature of the Transactions Transaction Value Balance Outstanding  
as at 31st March 

2020 2019 2020 2019

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sierra	Cables	East	Africa	Limited Fund transfers  30,476,700  41,825,151  33,895,332  3,147,710 

Amount	Paid	for	Operational	
Expenses

 270,922  977,290 - -

Reimbursement of Services -  (10,860) - -

Investment in Shares -  (94,570,866) -

Sale of Goods  39,379,146  51,672,915  120,588,080  128,360,878 

Settlement of Invoice  (56,397,534) - -

Exchange Difference  9,245,590  12,695,177 - -

Transactions with Associate Companies

Cables	PTE	Limited Amount Paid for 
Administrative Expenses

 1,748,375  1,340,478  32,853,526  1,340,478 

Fund Transfers  29,764,673  -   

Transactions with Other Related Companies

Sierra	Construction	Limited Sale of Goods  39,664,523  134,894,367 61,468,522  88,860,498 

Settlement of Invoices  (67,056,499)  (134,530,272)

Sierra Electrical Engineering  
(Private)	Limited

 -    -    616,785  616,785 

Sierra	Global	Networks	 
(Private)	Limited

Sale of Goods  3,374,698  -    157,950  -   

Settlement of Invoices  (3,216,748)  -    

Sierra Technology Holdings  
(Private)	Limited	(Previously	Known	
as Sierra Information Technologies 
(Private)	Limited)

Sale of Goods  -    527,500  7,542,499  7,792,499 

Settlement of Invoices  (250,000)  (527,500)

Sierra	Water	Works	(Private)	
Limited

Transfer -  (2,936)  -    -   

Sierra	Redimix	(Private)	Limited Sale of Goods  38,233  389,154  38,233  -   

Settlement of Invoice  -    (467,765)

Sierra Development (Private) 
Limited

Sale of Goods  630,049  302,850 615,221  (14,828)

Settlement of Invoice  -    (1,821,177)

Sierra	Piling	(Private)	Limited Sale of Goods  -    -    -    -   

Settlement of Invoice -  (15,410)

Sierra	Maldives	(Pvt)	Ltd	 Sale of Goods  -    8,924,866  -    4,408,392 

Settlement of Invoice  (4,447,452)  (4,899,501)

Exchange Difference  39,059  383,027 

Sintech	Engineering	(Pvt)	Ltd Sale of Goods  620,932  21,869,131  460,489  1,489,863 

Settlement of Invoice  (1,650,307)  (25,628,950)

Sierra System Engineering  
(Private)	Limited

Sale of Goods  9,362,546  8,334,614  7,531,752  1,953,807 

Settlement of Invoice  (3,784,601)  (6,380,808)

Large	Scale	Water	Supp.Proj.-ABD	
Assisted Greater

Sale of Goods  1,826,603  8,334,614 

Settlement of Invoice  (1,826,603)  (6,380,808)

Mayleen	Kenya	Limited Funds Received  -   -

Settlement  1,955,006  (1,563,001)  (67,384)  (2,022,390) 

Exchange Difference  -   (520,575) 
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36.2  Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Key	Management	personnel	are	those	having	authority	and	responsibility	for	planning	,directing	and	controlling	the	activities	of	the	
Group.	Accordingly	the	Directors	of	the	Company	(including	Executive	and	Non	Executive	Directors)	have	been	classified	as		Key	
Management	Personnel	of	the	Company,	Group.		

36.2.1  Transactions with Key Management Personnel 

(i)	 Loans	to	Directors

	 No	loans	have	been	given	to	the	Directors	of	the	Company.

(ii)	 Key	Management	Personnel	Compensation

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Directors’ Fees  9,600,000  9,900,000  9,600,000  9,900,000 

Short	Term	Employee	Benefits 18,700,000  13,437,500 18,700,000  13,437,500

28,300,000  23,337,500 28,300,000  23,337,500 

(iii)	Other	Transactions	With	Key	Management	Personnel

Details	of	directors	and	their	share	holdings	are	given	on	page	44	There	were	no	other	transactions	with	key	management	
personnel	other	than	those	disclosed	in	Note	36	to	the	Financial	Statement.

37.  Going Concern 
37.1 Sierra Industries (Private) Limited

The	Company	has	recorded	an	accumulated	loss	amounting	to	Rs.	246	Mn	as	at	31st	March	2020	(2018/19	-	Rs.	271	Mn)	and	its	
current	liabilities	exceeded	its	current	assets	as	at	31st	March	2020	by	Rs.	91	Mn	(2018/19	-	Rs.	117	Mn).	Further,	the	Company	‘s	net	
assets	are	less	than	half	of	its	stated	capital	and	faces	serious	loss	of	capital	situation	as	at	the	reporting	date.	

The	Company	is	currently	supplying	to	projects	worth	of	over	Rs.87	Mn	including	the	Department	of	Community	Water	Supply.	
Further,	the	company	is	in	favourable	negotiations	with	various	parties	for	a	value	amounting	to	Rs.	535	Mn	which	is	expected	to	
generate	revenue	from	ensuring	financial	calendar.

As	a	strategic	move,	the	company	is	now	focusing	on	the	institutional	and	project	market	instead	of	the	competitive	retails	market.	
Accordingly,	the	company	is	in	the	process	of	the	initialising	the	preliminary	engagement	work	for	the	supply	of	PVC	pipes	and	
fittings	to	upcoming	major	projects	including	Colombo	financial	city.

Accordingly,	the	Directors	of	the	view	that	the	company	would	be	able	to	generate	sufficient	revenues	during	the	next	financial	
year,	whereby	accumulated	losses	could	be	reduced	gradually.	Further,	the	parent	entity	will	continue	to	provide	the	financial	
support	to	the	company	 .

37.2 Sierra East Africa (Private) Limited

The	Company	recorded	a	loss	of	Rs.	46.3	Mn	during	the	year	ended	31st	December	2019	(2018/2019	–	loss	of	Rs.	98.8	Mn)	and	as	
that	date,	the	current	liabilities	exceeded	the	current	assets	by	Rs.	121.3	Mn	(2018/2019	–	Rs.	78.5	Mn).

The	Company	was	incorporated	in	2015	and	commenced	commercial	operations	in	2017.	The	Company	was	unable	to	operate	at	
optimum	capacity	and	recover	fixed	overhead	due	to	non-availability	of	sufficient	orders	during	the	year	under	review.	

With	the	financial	support	from	the	parent	entity,	purchase	orders	already	received	for	orders	and	bids	made	for	further	orders,	the	
Directors	are	of	the	view	that	the	Company	would	be	able	to	generate	sufficient	revenue	during	the	ensuing	financial	year,	whereby	
the	accumulated	losses	could	be	reduced	gradually.	The	Directors	are	of	the	view	that	the	subsidiary	is	able	to	continue	as	a	going	
concern	and	the	financial	statements	of	the	subsidiary	have	been	prepared	on	the	assumption	of	going	concern.
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38.  The impact of (COVID-19) Pandemic 
	The	sudden	shock	of	COVID-19	outbreak,	has	formed	some	uncertainties	in	the	Group’s	operating	environment	since	March	2020.	Sierra	
Cables	PLC	and	the	subsidiaries	faced	minor	disruptions	in	business	operations	during	the	Island	wide	curfew	imposed	from	20th	March	
2020.	Immediately	after	the	lockdown,	the	Company	has	started	its	operation	with	the	safety	regulations	and	guidelines	announced	by	
the	Government	of	Sri	Lanka.	Therefore,	the	ultimate	impact	to	the	Sierra	Cables	PLC	and	the	subsidiaries	due	to	COVID-19	was	minimal.

The	COVID-19	impact	on	the	country’s	economy	and	how	businesses	and	consumers	respond	is	uncertain.	This	uncertainty	created	
a	possible	increase	in	credit	risk	due	to	the	loss	of	income	by	some	of	the	businesses	and	the	individuals	which	would	delay	the	
settlements	of	customer	dues	as	well	as	some	of	the	customers	may	default	its	settlements.	But	in	the	case	of	the	Company,	as	the	
company’s	major	customer	is	Ceylon	Electricity	Board,	the	recovery	is	assumed	to	be	certain.	Further	based	on	the	assessments	
made	on	the	recoverable	amounts	of	non-financial	assets,	there	were	no	indications	that	required	to	make	an	adjustment	into	
financial	statements	due	to	the	COVID	-	19.	

This	uncertainty	of	COVID	-	19	is	primarily	reflected	in	the	Group’s	assessment	of	expected	credit	losses	from	its	credit	portfolio	
which	are	subject	to	several	management	estimates	and	judgements.	The	Company	reflected	the	impact	of	COVID-19	through	
the	macro-economic	factor	adjustments	with	respect	of	the	expected	credit	losses.	Assumptions	relevant	to	expected	credit	loss	
computations	are	further	discussed	in	Note	3.10.5	to	these	financial	statements.	

Impact on the liquidity of the Company 

COVID-19	pandemic	has	adversely	impacted	the	liquidity	position	of	the	Company	due	to	the	delays	in	payments	of	trade	
receivables	from	the	private	businesses	and	organizations.	This	is	reflected	in	the	increase	in	long	outstanding	age	buckets	of	the	
entity.	However,	the	Company	and	the	Group	have	a	positive	net	current-asset	position	as	at	March	31,	2020	with	a	current	ratio	
of	1.48	and	1.35	(current	assets/current	liabilities)	respectively.	These	assets	will	supply	the	working	capital	requirements	of	the	
Company	and	the	Group,	if	need	arises,	without	the	need	to	draw	additional	borrowings.

39.  Financial Risk Management 
39.1  Introduction and Overview

The	Group	has	exposure	to	the	following	risks	from	its	use	of	financial	instruments:
• Credit Risk  

• Liquidity Risk  

• Market Risk

This	note	presents	information	about	the	Group’s	exposure	to	each	of	the	above	risks,	the	Group’s	objectives,	policies	and	
processes	for	measuring	and	managing	risks,	and	the	Group’s	management	of	capital.	

Risk Management Framework

The	Board	of	Directors	has	overall	responsibility	for	the	establishment	and	oversight	of	the	Group’s	risk	management	framework.	
The	Group’s	risk	management	policies	are	established	to	identify	and	analyse	the	risks	faced	by	the	Group,	to	set	appropriate	risk	
limits	and	controls,	and	to	monitor	risks	and	adherence	to	limits.

i.  Credit Risk

Credit	risk	is	the	risk	of	financial	loss	to	the	Group	if	a	customer	fails	to	meet	its	contractual	obligations,	and	this	principally	arises		
from	the	Group’s	receivables	from	customers.

Exposure to Credit Risk

The	carrying	amount	of	financial	assets	represents	the	maximum		credit	exposure.	The	maximum	exposure	to	credit	risk	at	the	
reporting	date	was	as	follows;

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade  Receivables  1,783,016,443  1,986,860,232  1,483,009,531  1,526,680,266 

Amounts due from Related Companies  109,133,981  106,462,323  385,612,714  357,943,039 

Balances	with	Banks  41,471,530  71,790,022  20,063,915  66,681,058 

Loan	Receivable -  -    119,616,300  119,616,300 

 1,933,621,954  2,165,112,577  2,008,302,460  2,070,920,663 
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Trade Receivables

The	Group’s	exposure	to	credit	risk	is	influenced	mainly	by	the	individual	characteristics	of	each	customer.	The	management	has	
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the group standard  
payment	and	delivery	terms	offered.

The	requirement	for	an	impairment	is	analysed	at	each	reporting	date	on	an	individual	basis	for	major	customers.	Additionally,	a	
large	number	of	minor	receivables	are	grouped	into	homogeneous	groups	and	assessed	for	impairment	collectively.	The	calculation	
is	based	on	its	historical	credit	loss	experience,	adjusted	for	forward-looking	factors	specific	to	the	debtors	and	the	economic	
environment.

The	maximum	exposure	to	credit	risk	for	trade	and	other	receivables	is	the	carrying	amounts	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period,	and	
it	is	analysed	by	geographic	regions	as	follows;

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Local	Debtors 1,754,706,389  1,977,170,352 1,458,164,549  1,517,309,792 

Foreign Debtors 28,310,054  9,689,880 24,844,982  9,370,474 

 1,783,016,443  1,986,860,232  1,483,009,531  1,526,680,266 

Provision for Impairment  (245,391,816)  (164,443,310)  (198,850,740)  (126,041,125)

 1,537,624,627  1,822,416,922  1,284,158,791  1,400,639,141 

ii.  Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity	risk	is	the	risk	that	the	Group	will	encounter	difficulty	in	meeting	the	obligations	associated	with	its	financial	liabilities	
that	are	settled	by	delivering	cash	or	another	financial	asset.	The	Group’s	approach	to	managing	liquidity	is	to	ensure,	as	far	as	
possible,	that	it	will	always	have	sufficient	liquidity	to	meet	its	liabilities	when	due,	under	both	normal	and	stressed	conditions,	
without	incurring	unacceptable	losses	or	risking	damage	to	the	Group’s	reputation.

Group

As at 31st March 2020 Within 1 year Between
1-2 Years

Between
2-5 Years

More than
5 Years 

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables  1,435,904,330  -    -    -    1,435,904,330

Borrowings  861,313,286  113,244,087  -    974,557,373 

Bank	Overdraft	  186,423,083  -    -    -    186,423,083 

As at 31st March 2019 Within 1 year Between 
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

More than
5 years 

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Derivative	Financial	Liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables  1,685,703,610  -    -    -    1,685,703,610 

Borrowings  1,209,264,511  61,585,178  -    -   1,270,849,689

Bank	Overdraft	  276,052,246  -    -    -    276,052,246 

Amount due to Related Companies  2,037,218  -    -    -    2,037,218 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Company

As at 31st March 2020 Within 1 year Between Between More than Total

1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables 1,304,657,419  -    -    -   1,304,657,419

Borrowings  766,607,625 75,000,000  -    -    841,607,625 

Bank	Overdraft	  101,349,413 -  -    -    101,349,413 

As at 31st March 2019 Within 1 year Between
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

More than
5 years 

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables 1,353,219,974  -    -    -   1,353,219,974

Borrowings 965,401,757 4,749,998  -    -   970,151,755

Bank	Overdraft	 138,924,931  -    -    -   138,924,931

Amount due to Related Companies 14,828 - - - 14,828

iii.  Market Risk

Market	risk	is	the	risk	that	changes	in	market	prices,	such	as	interest	rates,	equity	prices,	foreign	exchange	rates-	will	affect	the	
Group’s	income	or	the	value	of	its	holdings	of	financial	instruments.	The	objective	of	market	risk	management	is	to	manage	and	
control	market	risk	exposures	within	acceptable	parameters,	while	optimising	the	return	on	risk.

(a)  Currency Risk

The	Group	is	exposed	to	currency	risk	on	sales,	purchases	and	borrowings	that	are	denominated	in	a	currency	other	than	Sri	Lankan	
Rupees.	The	foreign	currencies	in	which	these	transactions	primarily	denominated	are	United	Stated	Dollars	(USD)	and	Euro.

Exposure	to	Currency	Risk

The	summarised	quantitative	data	about	the	Group’s	exposure	to	currency	risk	as	reported	to	the	Management	of	the	Group	
based	on	its	risk	management	policy	was	as	follows:

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

USD USD USD USD

Trade Receivables 157,743  57,431 138,435  55,538 

Trade Payables (6,858,231)  (7,691,378) (6,853,437)  (7,579,706)

Net Statement of Financial Position Exposure  (6,700,489)  (7,633,948)  (6,715,002)  (7,524,169)

As at 31st March 2020 2019

USD USD

Trade Payables - Foreign Creditors 6,858,231  7,691,378 

Gross Statement of Financial Position Exposure 6,858,231  7,691,378 
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The	following	significant	exchange	rates	were	applicable	during	the	year

Average Rate Reporting Date Spot Rate

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

USD 179.47 168.72 189.80 174.75

Sensitivity Analysis 

A	strengthening	of	the	Rs,	as	indicated	below,	against	the	USD		at	31st	March	2020	would	have	increased/(decreased)	the	Equity	
and	Profit	or	Loss	by	the	amounts	shown	below.	This	analysis	is	based	on	foreign	currency	exchange	rate	variances	that	the	Group	
considered	to	be	reasonably	possible	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period.	The	analysis	assumes	that	all	other	variables,	in	particular	
interest	rates,	remain	constant.	

Strengthening
Profit or Loss

Rs.

Weakening
Profit or Loss

Rs.

31st March 2020

USD	(10%	Movement) 130,169,225 (130,169,225)

31st March 2019

USD	(10%	Movement)  134,406,837 (134,406,837) 

(b)  Interest Rate Risk

Interest	rate	risk	is	the	risk	that	the	fair	value	or	future	cash	flows	of	a	financial	instrument	fluctuate	because	of		changes	in	market	
interest	rates.	The	Groups	exposure	to	the	risk	of	changes	in	market	interest		rates	relates	primarily		to	the	Group’s		long	term	debt	
obligation.	The	Group	utilises	various	financial	instruments	to	manage	exposures	to	interest	rate	risks.

At	the	reporting	date,	the	Group’s	interest-bearing	financial	instruments	were	as	follows:

Carrying Amount

As at 31st March 2020 2019

Rs. Rs.

Variable Rate Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Long	Term	Loans	  323,805,805  244,624,418 

Import	Demand	Loans  650,751,568  1,026,225,271 

Bank	Overdrafts  186,423,083  276,052,246 

 1,160,980,456  1,546,901,935 

Cash Flow Sensitivity Analysis for Variable Rate Instruments

The	Group	is	exposed	to	changes	in	market	interest	rates	through	bank	borrowings	at	variable	interest	rates.

Profit or Loss

100 bp Decrease
Rs.

100 bp Increase
Rs.

31st March 2020

Variable Rate Instruments  (11,609,805)  11,609,805 

Cash Flow Sensitivity (Net)  (11,609,805)  11,609,805 

38.2  Capital Management

The	Board’s	policy	is	to	maintain	a	strong	capital	base	so	as	to	maintain	share	holder,	creditor	and	market	confidence	and	to	sustain	
future	development	of	the	business.	The	Board	of	Directors	monitors	the	return	on	capital	and	level	of	dividends	to	ordinary	
shareholders.
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The	Group’s	Net	Debt	to	adjusted	Equity	ratio	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period	was	as	follows:

Group Company

As at 31st March 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Total	Liabilities												  2,876,208,852  3,507,905,155  2,485,722,222  2,692,282,219 

Less:	Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents																																																									  (41,471,530)  (71,790,022)  (20,063,915)  (66,681,058)

Net Debt                                                                                            2,834,737,322  3,436,115,133  2,465,658,307  2,625,601,160 

Total Equity                                                                                               2,021,981,623  1,796,937,288  1,964,377,867  1,818,715,897 

Net Debt to Equity Ratio 140% 191% 126% 144%

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to Capital Management during the year and the Group is not subject to externally 
imposed	capital	requirements.

39.  Fair Value Measurement 
The	Company	measures	fair	values	using	the	following	fair	value	hierarchy	that	reflects	the	significance	of	the	inputs	used	in	
making	the	measurements.
Level	1	:	Quoted	market	price	(unadjusted)	in	an	active	market	for	an	identical	instrument.
Level	2	:	Valuation	techniques	based	on	observable	inputs.	
Level	3	:	Valuation	techniques	using	significant	unobservable	inputs

39.1  Financial Instruments carried at Fair Value and Valuation Bases

The	table	below	analyses	financial	instruments	measured	at	fair	value	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period,	by	the	level	in	the	fair	value	
hierarchy	into	which	the	fair	value	measurement	is	categorised.

Company

As at 31st March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Fair	Value	through	OCI  20,402,447  -    -    20,402,447 

 20,402,447  -    -    20,402,447 

Company

As at 31st March 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Fair	Value	through	OCI  25,148,489  -    -    25,148,489 

 25,148,489  -    -    25,148,489 

39.2  Fair Value of Financial Instruments carried at Amortised Cost

The	following	table	summarises	the	carrying	amounts	and	the	Group’s	estimate	of	fair	values	of	those	financial	assets	and	liabilities	
not	presented	on	the	Group’s	Statement	of	Financial	Position	at	fair	value.

As at 31st March 2020

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Rs. Rs.

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  41,471,530  41,471,530 

Trade	and	Other	Receivables 1,818,596,396 1,818,596,396

Amounts due from Related Companies 109,133,981 109,133,981

Liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables 1,435,904,330 1,435,904,330

Interest Bearing Borrowings 974,557,373 974,557,373

Amount Due to Related company 52,777 52,777

Bank	Overdraft	  186,423,083  186,423,083 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The	carrying	amount	of	the	cash	and	cash	equivalents	and	balances	with	banks	approximate	the	fair	value	as	theses	are	short	term	
in	nature.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are expected to be settled within one year from the reporting date and hence the discounting impact 
would	be	immaterial.	Therefore	carrying	amount	approximate	the	fair	value	as	at	the	reporting	date.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year from the reporting date and hence the discounting impact 
would	be	immaterial.	Therefore	carrying	amount	approximate	the	fair	value	as	at	the	reporting	date.

Interest Bearing Borrowings

Long	term	borrowings	are	repriced	either	monthly,	quarterly	or	semi	annually	in	line	with	the	changes	in	the	market	rates.	Hence	
carrying	value	of	these	borrowings	approximate	the	fair	value.	Other	borrowings	are	short	term	in	nature	and	hence	carrying	value	
approximate	the	fair	value.

39.3  Categorisation of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at the Reporting Date

Classification Fair Value

Group - 2020 Amortised 
Cost

FVOCI Other Financial
 Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Financial Instrument

Trade	and	Other	Receivables  1,818,596,396  -    -    -   

Amount due from Related Parties  109,133,981  -    -    -   

Other	Financial	Assets  20,402,447  -    20,402,447  -   

Cash and Cash Equipments  41,471,530  -    -    -   

Financial liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables  -   1,435,904,330  -    -   

Interest Bearing Borrowings  -   974,557,373  -    -   

Amounts due to  Related  Companies  -    52,777 

Bank	Overdraft	  -    186,423,083  -    -   

Classification Fair Value

Group - 2019 Amortised 
Cost

FVOCI Other Financial
 Liabilities

Level 1 Level 2

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.

Financial Instrument

Trade	and	Other	Receivables 2,056,372,724 -  -    -    -   

Amount due from Related Parties 106,462,323 -  -    -    -   

Other	Financial	Assets - 25,148,489 - 25,148,489 -

Cash and Cash Equipments 71,790,022 -  -   - - 

Financial liabilities

Trade	and	Other	Payables  -   - 1,685,703,610  -    -   

Interest Bearing Borrowings  -   - 1,270,849,689  -    -   

Amounts due to  Related  Companies - - 2,037,218 - -

Bank	Overdraft	  -   - 276,052,246  -    -   
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Income Statement (Summary)

For the three months ended,  2019/20

 30th June 
Rs. 

 30th September 
Rs. 

 31st December 
Rs. 

 31st March 
Rs. 

Company

Revenue  1,250,283,270  1,359,426,974  1,459,471,459  857,852,556 

Cost of Sales  (1,080,476,467)  (1,139,641,666)  (1,156,778,383)  (696,659,375)

Gross Profit  169,806,803  219,785,308  302,693,076  161,193,182 

Other	Income  7,922,253  5,529,733  3,337,844 17,550,262

Selling and Distribution Expenses  (58,367,757)  (63,246,885)  (68,509,956)  (84,222,418)

Administrative Expenses  (26,683,348)  (33,076,763)  (31,465,647)  (30,329,115)

Other	Operating	Expenses  -    -    -    (77,292,214)

Impairment of Investment in Subsidiaries  (8,900,000)  (31,600,000)  (52,152,618) 35,819,057

Profit from Operations  83,777,951  97,391,393  153,902,699  22,718,754 

Net Finance Costs  (33,504,702)  (55,365,157)  (21,038,314)  (66,729,911)

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation  50,273,249  42,026,236  132,864,385  (44,011,157)

Income Tax Expense  (5,000,000)  (7,000,000)  (53,000,000)  34,384,722 

Profit/(Loss) for the period  45,273,249  35,026,236  79,864,385  (9,626,435)

Statement of Financial Position

As at,  2019/20

 30th June
Rs.

 30th September 
Rs.

 31st December  
Rs.

 31st March 
Rs. 

Company

Assets  4,469,100,266  4,571,213,771  4,861,654,553  4,450,100,090 

Liabilities	  2,624,693,156  2,671,829,475  2,884,806,497  2,485,722,222

Net Assets  1,844,407,110  1,899,384,296  1,976,848,056  1,964,377,868 

Stated Capital  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898  894,565,898 

Reserves  949,841,212  1,004,818,398  1,082,282,158 1,069,811,970

Stated Capital and Reserves  1,844,407,110  1,899,384,296  1,976,848,056  1,964,377,868 

Quarterly Performance
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Shareholder Information

Distribution of Shareholders as at 31St March 2020

 Shareholding As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

 1-1000  13,897  12,513,662 2.33  13,896  12,599,450 2.34

 1,001-10,000  6,419  15,138,597 2.82  6,482  15,236,803 2.83

 10,001-100,000  916  30,863,604 5.74  1,000  33,057,254 6.15

 100,001-1,000,000  200  57,778,586 10.75  201  58,323,712 10.85

 1,000,001-10,000,000  24  421,217,981 78.36  22  418,295,211 77.82

 Total  21,456  537,512,430 100.00  21,601  537,512,430 100.00

 Composition of Shareholders As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of
 Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Resident  21,406  531,095,160 98.81  21,555  532,198,985 99.01

Non-Resident  50  6,417,270 1.19 46  5,313,445 0.99

Total  21,456  537,512,430 100.00  21,601  537,512,430 100.00

 Composition of Shareholders As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

No. of
 Shareholders

No. of Shares % No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Individual  21,178  142,334,546 26.48  21,318  146,187,142 27.20

Institutional  278  395,177,884 73.52  283  391,325,288 72.80

Total  21,456  537,512,430 100.00  21,601  537,512,430 100.00

20 Largest Holders of Equity 

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

Name Shareholding % No. of Shares %

1 Sierra	Holdings	(Pvt)	Ltd. 312,335,490 58.11 312,335,490 58.11

2. Hatton	National	Bank	PLC/Carlines	Holdings	(Pvt)	Ltd. 21,728,038 4.04 - -

3. Amana	Bank	PLC/Almas	Organisation	(Pvt)	Ltd. 20,988,786 3.90 23,851,436 4.44

4.	 Mr.	D.	S.	Panditha 17,601,297 3.27 17,601,297 3.27

5.	 Mr.	P.	A.	D.	R.	U.	Pushpakumara 6,279,101 1.17 5,898,400 1.10

6.	 J.	B.	Cocoshell	(Pvt)	Ltd. 4,028,574 0.75 - -

7.	 Mr.	W.	A.	P.	Perera 3,920,510 0.73 3,920,510 0.73

8.	 Tranz	Dominion,	L.L.C. 3,600,000 0.67 3,600,000 0.67

9.	 Mr.	R.	E.	Rambukwella 3,392,257 0.63 1,776,000 0.33

10. Mr.	B.	C.	Ranaweera 3,000,000 0.56 4,500,000 0.84

11. Mr.	M.	Ilamperuma 2,803,000 0.52 2,150,000 0.40

12. People's	Leasing	&	Finance	PLC/Mr.	C.	N.	Jayasuriya 2,500,000 0.47 2,500,000 0.47

13. Macksons	Holdings	(Pvt)	Ltd. 2,148,085 0.40 474,782 0.08

14. Mr.	A.	D.	Edussuriya 2,000,000 0.37 2,000,000 0.37

15. Mr.	A.	B.	S.	Herath 1,986,550 0.37 1,986,550 0.37

16. Ms.	K.	S.	Rangedara 1,786,493 0.33 1,786,493 0.33

17. Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara 1,709,800 0.32 1,709,800 0.32

18. Mr.	M.	N.	M.	Mubarak 1,600,000 0.30 300,000 0.05

19. Merchant	Bank	of	Sri	Lanka	&	Finance	PLC	01 1,500,000 0.28 1,390,000 0.26

20. Mr.	R.	G.	Seneviratne/Mrs.	A.	Seneviratne	(Joint) 1,423,600 0.26 1,423,600 0.26

Public Shareholding
The	percentage	of	public	shareholding	as	at	the	31st	of	March	2020	was	37.44%
Compliant	under	option	5	-	Float	adjusted	Market	Capitalisation	Rs.	1,129	Mn.	
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Glossary

Actuarial Gains and Losses 
Gain or loss arising from the difference between estimates and 
actual	experience	in	a	company’s	pension	plan.

Assets Held for Sale 
Non	derivative	financial	assets	that	are	designated	as	available	
for	sale	or	are	not	classified	as	loans	and	receivable,	held	to	
maturity	investment	or	financial	assets	at	fair	value	through	
profit	and	loss.

Cash Equivalents 
Liquid	investments	with	original	maturity	periods	of	three	
months	or	less.

Contingent Liabilities 
A possible obligation that arises from past events and 
whose	existence	will	be	confirmed	only	by	the	occurrence	or	
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly	within	the	control	of	the	entity.

Current Ratio 
Current	assets	divided	by	current	liabilities.

Deferred Taxation 
The	tax	effect	of	timing	differences	deferred	to/	from	other	
periods, which would only qualify for inclusion on a tax return at 
a	future	date.

Earnings Per Share 
Profit	attributable	to	equity	holders	of	the	parent	divided	by	the	
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the 
period.

Fair Value 
The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer	a	liability	in	an	orderly	transaction	between	market	
participants	at	the	measurement	date.

Financial Liabilities 
Any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or 
another	financial	assets	to	another	entity.

Market Capitalisation 
Number	of	shares	in	issue	multiplied	by	the	market	value	of	a	
share at the reported date

Net Assets Value Per Share 
Net	assets	as	at	a	particular	financial	year	end	divided	by	the	
number	of	shares	in	issue	as	at	the	current	financial	year	end.

Non-Controlling Interest 
The interest of individual shareholders, in a company more than 
50%	of	which	is	owned	by	a	holding	Company.

Other Comprehensive Income 
An entry that is generally found in the shareholders’ equity 
section	of	the	balance	sheet.

Public Holding 
Percentage of shares held by the public calculated as per the 
Colombo	Stock	Exchange	Listing	Rules	as	at	the	date	of	the	
Report.

Related Parties 
Parties	who	could	control	or	significantly	influence	the	financial	
and	operating	policies	of	the	business.

Remuneration 
Basic salary plus additional amounts such as those based on 
years	of	service,	bonuses,	benefit	payments,	overtime,	time	
owed,	and	any	additional	allowances.

Return on Capital Employed 
Earning before interest and tax as percentage of capital 
Employed.

Stakeholders 
Stakeholders	are	defined	as	entities	or	individuals	that	can	
reasonably	be	expected	to	be	significantly	affected	by	the	
organisation’s	activities,	products,	and	services.	Stakeholders	
can	include	those	who	are	invested	in	the	organisation.

Working Capital 
Capital	required	to	finance	day	to	day	operations,	computed	as	
the excess of current assets over current liabilities
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Notice of Meeting

Sierra Cables PLC 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that	the	17th	Annual	General	Meeting	of	SIERRA	CABLES	PLC	(“The	Company”)	will	be	held	on	
30th	September	2020	at	10.00	a.m.	at	Lecture	Hall	No.	08,	First	Floor,	The	Sri	Lanka	Foundation,	100,	Independence	Square,	
Colombo	07,	Sri	Lanka.

Agenda 

1.	 To	receive	and	consider	the	Report	of	the	Directors	on	the	State	of	Affairs	of	the	Company	and	the	Audited	Financial	
Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2020	and	the	Report	of	the	Auditors	thereon.

2.	 To	re-elect	Mr.	W.	A.	P.	Perera	who	retire	by	rotation	in	accordance	with	Article	91	of	the	Articles	of	Association	of	the	Company	
and	being	eligible,	offer	himself	for	re-election.

3.	 To	re-elect	Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara	who	retire	by	rotation	in	accordance	with	Article	91	of	the	Articles	of	Association	of	the	
Company	and	being	eligible,	offer	herself	for	re-election.

4.	 To	re-elect	Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge,	who	retire	by	rotation	in	accordance	with	Article	91	of	the	Articles	of	Association	of	the	Company	
and	being	eligible,	offer	herself	for	re-election.

5.	 To	re-appoint	Messrs	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants	as	Auditors	of	the	Company	for	the	ensuing	year	and	to	authorize	the	
Directors	to	determine	their	remuneration.

BY	ORDER	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	OF
SIERRA CABLES PLC

(Sgd.)
P.R. SECRETARIAL SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Secretaries

At Colombo, 31st August 2020

Note:

 y A	Member	entitled	to	attend	and	vote	at	the	meeting,	is	entitled	to	appoint	a	Proxy	to	attend	and	vote	instead	of	him/her.

 y A	Proxy	need	not	be	a	Member	of	the	Company.

 y A	Member	wishing	to	vote	by	Proxy	at	the	meeting	may	use	the	Form	of	Proxy	form	enclosed.

 y Any	member	or	Proxy	holder	attending	the	meeting	is	kindly	requested	to	bring	this	report.

 y The	completed	Form	of	Proxy	should	also	be	deposited	at	the	Secretaries	of	the	Company,	P.R.	Secretarial	Services	(Private)	
Limited,	No.	59,	Gregory’s	Road,	Colombo	07,	not	less	than	forty-eight	(48)	hours	before	the	time	appointed	for	holding	of	the	
meeting.

 y For	security	reasons,	Members,	Proxy	holders	are	kindly	advised	to	bring	along	with	them	their	National	Identity	Card	or	similar	
form	of	acceptance	identity	when	attending	the	meeting.
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Form of Proxy

Sierra Cables PLC 

I/We…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….	of 

……………………………………………………………………………………	being	a	Member/Member*	of	the	above	named	Company,	hereby	appoint			(1)	

………………………………………………………………………	of	……………………………………………………………………………………	failing	him/her.

(2)	 Mr.	W.	A.	P.	Perera,		 or	failing	him		
(3)	 Mr.	D.	S.	Panditha,		 or	failing	him
(4)	 Ms.	G.	S.	M.	Irugalbandara,		 or	failing	her
(5)	 Mr.	E.	A.	D.	T.B.	Perera,		 or	failing	him
(6)			Prof.	A.	K.	W.	Jayawardane,		 or	failing	him
(7)		 Mr.	B.	W.	N.	Rupasinghe,					 or	failing	him
(8)	 Mr.	M.	N.	Gunasekera,								 or	failing	him		
(9)		Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge

as	my/our*	Proxy	to	represent	me/us*	and	vote	and	speak	for	me/us*	on	my/our*	behalf	at	the	17th	Annual	General	Meeting	of	
the	Company	to	be	held	on	30th	September	2020	at	10.00	a.m.	at	Lecture	Hall	No.	08,	First	Floor,	The	Sri	Lanka	Foundation,	100,	
Independence	Square,	Colombo	07,	Sri	Lanka,	and	at	every	poll	which	may	be	taken	in	consequence	of	the	aforesaid	meeting	and	
at	any	adjournment	thereof.

I/We indicate My/Our vote on the resolutions below as follows;

For Against

1.	 To	receive	and	consider	the	Audited	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2020	
and	the	Report	of	the	Auditors	thereon.

2.	 To	re-elect	Mr.	W.A.P.	Perera,	who	retire	by	rotation	in	accordance	with	Article	91	of	the	Articles	
of	Association	of	the	Company	and	being	eligible,	offer	himself	for	re-election.

3.		 To	re-elect	Ms.	G.S.M.	Irugalbandara,	who	retire	by	rotation	in	accordance	with	Article	91	of	the	
Articles	of	Association	of	the	Company	and	being	eligible,	offer	herself	for	re-election.

4.		 To	re-elect	Ms.	S.	N.	Lokuge,	who	retire	by	rotation	in	accordance	with	Article	91	of	the	Articles	
of	Association	of	the	Company	and	being	eligible,	offer	herself	for	re-election.

5.	 To	re-appoint	Messrs	KPMG,	Chartered	Accountants	as	Auditors	of	the	Company	for	the	
ensuing	year	and	to	authorise	the	Directors	to	determine	their	remuneration.

Signed	this	………………………………………	day	of	………………………………………	2020.

………………………………………………	 	 	 	 	 	 	 ………………………………………………
Signature	of	shareholder/s					 	 	 	 	 	 	 NIC/Passport	No.

Note:	

(i)		 Please	delete	the	inappropriate	words.	
(ii)		 Instructions	for	completion	of	Proxy	are	noted	below.	
(iii)	 A	Proxy	need	not	be	a	member	of	the	Company.	
(iv)	 Please	mark	¨X¨	in	appropriate	cages,	to	indicate	your	instructions	as	to	voting.
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Form of Proxy

Instructions for the Completion of Proxy  

1.	 Kindly	perfect	the	Form	of	Proxy	by	filling	in	legibly	your	full	name,	National	
Identity	Card/Passport/	Company	Registration	Number,	your	address	and	
your	instructions	as	to	voting	and	by	signing	in	the	space	provided	and	filling	
in	the	date	of	signature.	Please	ensure	that	all	details	are	legible.	

2.		 Please	mark	“X”	in	appropriate	cages,	to	indicate	your	instructions	as	to	
voting	on	each	resolution.	If	no	indication	is	given,	the	Proxy	holder	in	his/her	
discretion	will	vote	as	he/her	thinks	fit.	

3.		 To	be	valid,	the	completed	Form	of	Proxy	must	be	deposited	at	the	office	
of	the	Company	Secretaries	P.	R.	Secretarial	Services	(Private)	Limited,	
No.	59,	Gregory’s	Road,	Colombo	07,	not	less	than	48	hours	before	the	time	
appointed	for	the	holding	of	the	meeting.	

4.		 If	you	wish	to	appoint	a	person	other	than	the	Chairman	(or	failing	him,	one	of	
the Directors) as your Proxy, please insert the relevant details (1) overleaf and 
initial	against	this	entry.	

5.		 In	the	case	of	a	Company/Corporation,	the	Proxy	must	be	under	its	Common	
Seal,	which	should	be	affixed	and	attested	in	the	manner	prescribed	by	
Articles	of	Association/	Act	of	Incorporation.

6.			In	the	case	of	a	Proxy	signed	by	an	Attorney,	a	certified	copy	of	the	Power	of	
Attorney should accompany the completed Form of Proxy for registration, if 
such	Power	of	Attorney	has	not	already	been	registered	with	the	Company.
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Name of the Company 

Sierra Cables PLC

Company Registration No. 

PQ 166 (Under Companies Act No.07 of 2007)

Registered Office 

No.112, Havelock Road, Colombo 05.

Domicile and Legal Form 

Sierra Cables PLC is a Limited Liability Company incorporated 

and domiciled in Sri Lanka.

Principal place of business is located at 39/1A, Galvarusa Road, 

Korathota, Kaduwela.

Tel : +94 11 4412000 - 4

Fax : +94 11 2770291, +94 11 4412573

E-mail : info@sierracables.com

Web : www.sierracables.com

Company is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) since 

22nd November 2005.

Subsidiary Companies 

Sierra Industries (Private) Limited 

Sierra Cables East Africa Limited, Kenya

Equity-Accounted Investees 

T & G Lanka (Private) Limited - Associate

Tea Leaf Resorts (Private) Limited - Associate

Cables PTE Limited, Fiji - Joint Venture

Company Secretaries 

Messrs P.R. Secretarial Services (Private) Limited  

No.59, Gregory’s Road, Colombo 07.

Tel : +94 11 2671439, +94 11 2671441

E-mail : info@prsslk.com

Auditors 

Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants

No.32 A, Sir Mohomed Macan Markar Mawatha,

P.O. Box 186, Colombo 03.

Tel : +94 11 5426426 

Fax : +94 11 2445872

Legal Advisors 

Messrs Paul Ratnayeke Associates

No.59, Gregory’s Road, Colombo 07.

Tel : +94 11 2697893, +94 11 2697894

E-mail : info@prlaw.lk

Bankers 

Bank of Ceylon

Cargills Bank Limited

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

DFCC Bank PLC

Hatton National Bank PLC 

Peopless Bank 

Sampath Bank PLC

Standard Chartered Bank

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations 

The principal activity of the company is manufacturing, 

marketing and distribution of power cables.

Parent Enterprises and Ultimate Parent 
Enterprise 

In the Directors’ opinion, the company’s ultimate parent 

undertaking and controlling party is Sierra Holdings (Private) 

Limited which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

Number of Employees 

The number of employees at the end of the financial year was 

290 (2018/19 - 300).
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